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projects iu the west,

Q. The whole wesfern tegion?

A. Wost of the Mississippi.

Q. Are you based here in Las Vegas?

A, Yes, Lam, ‘

Q. Aud how long have you been in that position
with Fores(Cily?

A. Fiffeen years,

Q. And prior to that, where were you employed?

A, Iwas employed with Dominge Camave
Architee(s, ) .

(. 'What was your position with --

A, Tavas the director of construction serviees.

Q. And have yon been based hero in Las Vepas for
15 years with PorestCity?

A, Yes. o )

Q. Okay, So this litigation concetns the
new Lag Vegas City Hall, as T am stirc you arc aware. 1
am going to use the word "project.” I£1 use the word
“project,” T am poing fo be referring to that
particular project, So can you describe to me
TorestCity Construction Qervices' rale on That project.

A, Wewere employed by --we were employed as
the owner's representatlve on-site by QUL Las Vegns,

srart?

LLC, which was the entity that ovned the property and

developed the property-

Q. Okay. And then is there also a PQ Las Vegas?

A, There is n PQ Las Vegas, LLC,

Q. Wit Is that?

A, That was the enfity estabiished for -~ there
iz a Jand swap within the development sgreement,
(¥ Las Vegas Is the property in Symphony Park. And
it's the tvo pareels, Q and H. And g0, you know, QH is
Queen of Hearfs, beeause {hat is the property. The
Gueen of Henrts sat on that prapery. So that is how
they determined the two LLCs,

Q. Tust coming up with s nameT

A, Coming sp with a name, Sa PO was tied fo the
development agreciment with the City. And wlhenwe
closed we swapped land,

Q. Okay. Sothen what is ForestCity
Enlerprises’ rofe? Are they like the parent
corporation?

A. That is the parvent corgiovstion,

. Torall the different individual -~

A, Endities.

Q. Andistherea ForestCity Commercizl
Consiruetion Entity?

A. Tt the fvst quarter of 2012 we m evged our
fwo constrnetion divistons together, We had n

Page 6 -Page 8
-1 commercinl construction division as well as a
2 residential constructian, Andin the veorganization of
3 the company, as everybody s doing, we merged, And now
4 we are just Construetion Services to deal with
5 everything, )
6 €. Soat the time was it ForestCity Commereial
7 Construction that was fhe owner's rep on this projeet?
B A, It was ForestCily Commereial Construction CO,
9 Tnc.
10 . Were there any otfier owner affifiated
11 comprnjes that were inynlved in die projects, or did we
12 cover thom? |
13 A. The project wns developed under FovestCity
14 Commereial Development Californfs.
15 Q. Canyou think of auy others? 1
16 A. That Is a1l the entities F believe that was
17 involved, ' . I3
18 . Sowhat was your role on tie project?
1ia A, Tiwns deslgnnted by the City as well as owr
20 company as the awnet's rep 1 assisted in fhe
21 development of the construction documents with the
22 avchiteets, Twas fnvoived fn the RE for the
23 consfruction manager at gk, [ was involyed in the
24 final seleetions of contraetors; subeontractors, with
25 Whiting Tnmer, And thenI was on site to make sare
page 7 Page 9
1 (hat the construction was pursuam {o eenstrnetion
2 documents.
3 ¢, Did youhave an office on site?
4 A. Thad atealler.
5 Q. And were you there on a daily basisor &
6 weekly basis?
7 A. Every day.
8 Q. Sowhen you are therc at {he project, ate you
9 just observing the construction activities, or did you .
10 Niave @ particuiar rolo you took on at different tines?
11 A, Ne. 1was there to fust abserve and make
12 suye (hat the project was moving smoothly; it was
i3 wlflin sehedule, within budget; if there wns any .
14 questlons that occurred that I cowld answer, or T would
15 tnke to fhe engineers to get answered. So T was more
16 of an assistant o make suve that the project van
17 smoothly,
18 Q. And then did you hald meelings at the project
19 with the general conlractor?
20 A. We had one once & month, DAC meetings, what
21 we ealled OAC, which is the owner, avchitect,
99 controctar neetings. Al that time that would include
23 City staff vepresentatives, A lot of my corporatc froni
24 Cleveland would come gown; the developer from LA would
25 come over, And we would just doan overview of the
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Page 10 Pags 12
I project, how the schednle was going, how (he eosts yere 1 Manfredi out of Boston, worked under JMA. And his
2 going They would walk the project just ta see how 2 conteact, JMA's contract, incladed sl subtlers of
3 everything was golng. 3 struetural engineers, mechanieal, electvicnl engineers.
4 Q. Okay. Then did you participate in any A Tt was ail under thefr control,
5 meetings with the subeenfracters? 5 Q. So did they act as part of their rofc to be
6 A, No. 6 the owner's rop coticerning cerfain flems on the
7 Q. Did you keep any records on site, concerning 7 prolect?
8 preliminary notices or ofher things that the owner 8 A, Noo
9 might receive as part of conslrpotion? & Q. What was fheir role, then, in, I guess,
190 A. T only received things that corporate wonld 10 dezling with those subtiers? Like JDA was one of their
11 sotnehow sead to me, They afl went to aur corporate 11 subtiets?
iz office, which they kept, you knosw, lien notices and 12 A, Right,
13 things. But they weren't mailed diveetly to the 13 Q. So what was fheir rolo if they weren't acting
14 traifer, i4 as owner's rep for certain approvals, or how did that
15 Q. Becanse the record nddress was (he address - 15 work? _ i ‘ '
16 A. Public Square and Queen, 16 A. Tam not sure what you ave asking.
17 Q. Sowho in Cleveland would be responsible for 17 Q. Like, for instance, if they asked for
18 tracking that information? 18 subuittals on certain liems to meke sure that what was
19 A. Tannot guite sure whe in onw corporate 19 going fo be provided by a contactor or subcantractor
240 offfee Jid thaf, Tt went to Jegal, I believe, | 20 was to contract, were they the one that would have the
21 . How big is ForesiCity Enterprises? 21 ultimnte approval or would it go all the way up to,
22 A, We are n nudti-billion-dullar corporation 22 say, you as the owner's rep for approval?
23 with ahout 2800 employees across the eonntry. 23 A, How did that precess work?
24 Q. Thatis pretty big. 24 Q. Yoah, bow did that process wozk?
25 A, Xtused to be a lot Inrger 25 A. Well, the process is that fn the consiruction
Page 11 Page 13
1 Q. Oh, yeah? 1 doeuments there is apeclfientions hat clenrly indicate
2 (Bxhibit 1 marked) 2 what submitials ave required in the project, The
3 BY M§, LLOYD: 3 subeeniractor wonld prepare these specifientions; yon
4 Q. Sohave you seen this document? 4 Kuow, produet data, drawings, whafevel was veruived
5 A, Tdon'i recal] seelug fhis one. 5 within the spec. 1&would flrst go to Whiting Tupier,
6 Q. So itwould have been served obviously on the 6 ~ “They are requived by our contract to veview those
7 Cleveland sddress for QH Les Vegas, and then you dide't 7 documents to make sure (hat dhiey meet and fali within
8 necessarily get copies of everything, 8 the range of the conbrnet documents. 1T they did; they
9 A, No, Tdidn't. 9 transmitfed divectly to JMA.
10 Q. Ckay. Dut do you think that (her are 10 JALA wouid then disbribute to whatever parly
11 records In Cleveland concerning the preliminary notices 11 was reguived, either JBA or the structurs] englneer.
12 that were received? 12 They would revies them Tor the specifieation, to neet
13 A, Well, if it went to Snite 1003, that is 13 all the specificatians, If they did, they would stamp
14 ForestCity Constrnetion Services or TorestCily 14 them reviewed. Sometinies they stumped (hem yoviewed as
15 Comuercinl Constraction snlte nuntbers. 15 noted, just beeause there might he some minoy errors,
16 Q. So they would likely kept records there 16 Tt would go baek to IMA IMA woull revlew e, Then
17 somewherte conceeaing all of these preliminary notices 17 if {hey were npproved and simuped by them, fhen K
138 or ofher notices tint they might inve recelved? 18 world go back to Wiiting '‘Twrner. Then Whiting Turner
19 A Yes 19 swould in turn give copies back fo the subrontractoi,
20 Q. Tets falk a Tittls bit about FIMA's role on 20 Q. And down the line?
21 the praject. Conyou tell me what IMA was hired o do. 21 A. Down the fine, The ondy time I ever got
22 A. TorestCity Commereial Development hirved InfA L 22 {nvolved on anything would be if the submittnl yas
23 a5 the execafive architect, which under the exeeufive 23 totally out of vange of the speelfientions,
24 arehitect hey were to do all the eanstroetion 24 0. And do you recall any inglances like that on
25 25 this project?

documents, ‘The desipn avehiteet, which is Hellls
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1 Ai No 1 for thelr final cost proposal.
2 Q. So in the submitial process, Then, IMA had 2 At that point Whiting Turner would alse have
3 the: finnl approva) of the submittls Gt were Tor the 3 amajor et and provide their solection fo ForestCily
g contract worlk? o 4 for approval. And at that fime we would review the
5 A, Well, ii'sa combination, ¥ requive that the 5 final packages and pake, you knew, andl say that is the
& contractor approve them hecause he bid the job, and I 6 confracior. ’
7 am holding him responsible for, you know - Lam 7 ). That is a very owner-nvolved process.
8 holding Whiting Turner responsible fo build it within 8 A. ForestCity Is a genernd confractor. ¥e got i
9 the speeifications, So from my point of view, Whiting o away front it years ago beeanse deveiopment goes up and |}
10 Turner's approval 1s Just as impm'tnnt}lé the 10 dowst, Buf we are a very hands-on group sl we do
11 engineet's approval, They are all equal in the realm 11 understand censtruction, Andwe have done it
12 of vesponsibility, b 12 ourselves, 5o, you knew, we pride ourselvas on, you
13 Q. IMA, Whiting Turnet? o 13 know, producing quakity projects on time and on budget,
14 A. JBA. Everyone is -- from the ownet's point 14 or that ave under budget, which this project was under
13 of view, they ave all helil - 15 g,
i6 Q. Equally responsible? 16 Q. Oh, really? Twasn't aware of tha,
17 A. - cqually vesponsible, 17 Sa you were involved In obviensly with the
16 Q. What was your involvement with the sefection ig selection of Mojave --
19 of subconiractors on the project? 1% A Yes,
20 A. What the process is that we go through is 20 Q. --ns a subconfractor?
21 that we do aa RFT, Whiting Twrner did an RFP to at 21 A, Along with ofher ForestCity entifics — or
22 Teast (hree and mostly five subeontraciors Tor ench 22 persomicl
23 teade. We would review who they were bidding to in 23 Q, Okay. Anddo you go any fisther down he--
24 ease we hiad people that we wanted to add; or ifwe had 24 A, No. )
25 cxpertonces wilh confraclors we dont want fo deal with | 25 Q. --subtier?
Page 15 Page 17
1 anymore, then they wonld hid the profeet. We would as 1 Adid when it eonses 1o, T guess, management of i
2 a fesnt - and Hatwonld Include imyself and our 2 Daynens, ate you = is the owner involved in managing
3 corporate -~ we hive a esfimating grovp and we have 3 payments to sibcontractors?
4 sther people in Cleveland that would review the scope 4 A, Ne
5 of worlg, male sure that the scope was comiplete. We 5 Q. Sowontid you aniy ihen be approving payments
6 would evahuato the cost, o 6 to Whiting Tomer, or how did the whole pivinent process
7 As a pubiiic conspany we o nof bave to seleet T work?
8 ihe lowest bldder, buf we de seleef the Jowest 8 A, The pagntent process was also pretly detatled.
2 qualified bldder on the project, VWewould novmally 2 Tt was detabled in development agroement of Bow it
10 aprrow tat down fo three, We tiad - Tmean, we had 10 would be done, Onee o month all the suhcontraciors
11 five to sis on ench trade hecause of the thalng, aml 11 would provide Whiting Tuvner with their billing
12 everybody wanted to work on the Cley Hali project, So 12 informiation. Twould veview all the detall of Mojave's
13 swo narvow it down fo threc, 13 billing per se. Because it's bifled on a percentage of
14 We would briug them Inani have ra nterview. 14 campletion, Twould s&y yes o1 ng, o1 this aves i¢ nof
15 We requive — ForestCly requires interviews, which 15 what hie is bililng for or whntever; we would make
16 nteans you bring your proleet managers, you hring your 16 corvections.
17 foremen, Yeu hring anyaue In npper Jevel that would be 17 At it poing, when thaf was covreated, we
18 o thnt sife i, And we woutd iave resuntes, Awd we 18 would sit down with the Clty staff and walk the
19 fratly -- you know, if's a teans efforf, Sowedoa 19 projeet, ‘They would aiso yeview the compietion
20 complede veview. 20 pereentnges, as well as {he avebitect af the sonve fve,
21 Ad that time, we would go back and reconvenc. 21 When thet was — when everybody agreed to that package,
22 Wewonld say, oliny, we like, yau naw, this porson or 22 then we would - 1t would be signed by the nrchitect,
23 {hat pevson, There was shvays qualifications of the 23 I vould send that package to Cleveland, where the
24 {nitial bid, beeause someone would milss this or we 24 executlve viee president was requived to initial ofl to
25 wonld have questions, Then we would bring them backin | 25 malie suve, which Je understond that Twent through it
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pretty thereughly. e
And then the invoice wowld at that paint be
put together - Hat Difling would he put together with
pur invoice, for owr fees and architeetural fees or any
otlier fees e woull have a cowbined fnvoice of
everyone's, That would be submlteed fo the City, The
City had g five-person signoff of that inveice.
At that fime if would be gent to the trustce

for Hie project, which is I believe Bank of Amerien,
They would at that time wire transfer funds to Whiting
Turner for their billing. They would wire teansfor
ToresiClty, which in fern we would wire transfer to our
thivd-pariy consulianis,

Q. And that hapyened every month?

A, Every monti, ‘

0, Wow, Sohow fong would that process take for
the opprovel of a billing?

A. Wewere requirved to do that within ten dnys
in the developmont agreentent. The City had -- ns soon
as e completed onr process, the City hind ten days to
do i, We weve Following under the State statute of 1
believe 45 days, which wo always met,

Q. Wow, SoT guess just to backirack a tiny
bit, how exactly did the wiiole development -- because
it was privately owned property, bul there Ths
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Which wo ended up getilng over 20 percent af the end of
{he day.

Q. So did you leave it to Whiting 'Turner, thes,
to enforce it or encourage swbeontracters (o meet
certain ponls? ‘

A. During that fiest interview process before,
you know, we awnrded contractors, we fold tiiem that It
wns An important factor in salectlon, ns well ns for
solection purposes, They needed to come (o the imble
with seme diversity.

Q. Sowere they required to idewify like which
areas they would b, you know, meeting diversity with?

A, Tarly on, no, They basleally enme back and
snid, We feel for this contract we can get 8 pereent or
weean get 10 pereent; you know, Assif e monitoved
them, And most of the coniracloys met their genls.

And the ones (iat didn's actuaily we hnd them
contribute. .

(. How do youmean?

A, There wis ene conteacior that poorly missed
his ponk. Andt swe had lim - well, he volunteered to --
in the rainorlty pubiieations take out ads for ns
company, whicl was n benefit to fite rinority magazines
and to the winerity groups, Sowe convinged them to do
thlngs of that nature.

Page 19

abvipusly 4 public component, T guess, in some way.
Can you deseribe o tng oy (et sort of worked?

A, Tevwas a private pulilic pasineisip. The
funding came from Bulld Ameriean Bonds, antl we were
able to constret and develop it for the City, Andwe
negotinted for Jand costs fo da the trade of the fwo
pareeks for the rest of I,

¢, Okay. So did you havea reqiirement for
Whiting Turner concerning the Disadvantaged Business
Eniitics percentage that was to be mel or fo Iry to b
et on the project? -

A. That was-- during our negotiations wiih the
Ciy, Iwas at & {ime when fhey were Tnying off
people, Tiwasa tough thne to seil o now City Hall,
The City had a lot of pressure on fhem from {he
nhitority groups to say, 1T you are going o do this,
please get participation, The City doesnol have a
diversity progeant that they ean enforee in the effy,

So they eante (0 us and saddl, We would e
you {o try and get the participation, Andwo agrecd as
o gonl to try to get 15 pereeni. We ineloded that gonl
to Wiiting Turner's contracts. And from theve they
managed how thai was obiained,

. Soitwasacily requiremeni essentially?

A. Waoll, it was a request, a strong request,

i .
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Q. Okay. Was there -- T guess speaking of if

(hey dldn't meef their poal, was there nay conseduence?
A, No. Wewould only ask that {hey do

sometiing.

Q. Okay.

A, Ttwas monitoved on n monihly basis during
the pay npplication process.

Q. Because {hey were sequired to submit like the
certificates of DBE with their pay aps?

A, Yealh.

Q. So didyou cheok that with Whiting Turaer on
1 monthly bagis?

A, No. They provided ForestCify with a veport
Tt was hased off costs of the project; costs of each
atbeasitenctor. They provided us a breakdown and we
never auditerd,

Q. Then 1 guess i confunsetion with payments,
did you require a certain walver or icleases from subs
and suppllers for Whiting Turner fo get those, ot did
you rely ot Whiting Turner to make swre that they were
sbipining the proper releases? '

A. We did get ail veleases.

Q. How did yon masitor, T guess, what releases
you would need?

A, They ha n-- Whiting Turner hiad a brealdown

TS Lo pi i i e T e

SRR T ek

[P RO TR

6 {Pages 18 to 21)

Depo International, LLC

(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@depointernational.com

JA 00001879



' David Phillips - 1/10/2013 _
Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., ¢t ak.

rage 22 Page 24
3 within fe pay appiication for the previous mon(h's 1 Q. Andwhat is, 1 guess, left open?
pid payments, We would get unconditfonsls, you know, for 2 A. The centract with Yhiting Turaer is still
3 that brenledown after the payrient anst {hey Toukd pravide 3 opem ) ‘ H
4 us conditional wraivers with the initial payment. And 4 (. Why is it open? '
5 Whiling Turier tind to do ymconditionals ond 5 A, Wewere still nagotinting sonte reguests from
6  conditionals fous for the project too. 6 themt specifically, We still have e Mojave contract
7 Q. So did you hove anyone in your offiecs i open beeause there fs payments still within that -
] wracking, say, pretiminary notices with releases, or f thielr ling items or schedulo of values for the
9 hewdid you - ) 9 genevator, whieh T held after ~ it was prety much ' ;
10 A, Yes, that went fo onr corporRie. 10 paid out, but it was the completion portien that's
i1 (. Sosomconc in Cleveland was handbing that? il there.
12 A, Yes. Michelle dif -« Michelie Lagina did 1z Q. So you are holding money for the generator
13 that, She bugged me all the time, When am I getiing 13 from Whiting Turner? 1
14 my releases? ‘ 14 A. From Mojave. '
15 Q. So did yourely ona comtbination of Whiting 15 Q. From Mojave. Do you recall offhand how much
16 Tumer keeping leack of which supplicrs were supplying 16 you are botding? Ts it the full cost of {he generator
17 1o the projects under subconfractors, or did you have 17 fine ftem?
18 your own tracking system? 18 A. Mo, Twould be surprised if it's $30,000. .
19 A, We did not get condltionals or unconditlonals 19 I¥'s somewhere in there, I think,
20 from suppliers, [t was from (he first tler, Sowe 20 Q. Sotheproject hasa permanent C of o?
21 would get - llke, Mojave would provide us conditionals 21 A. Corvect :
22 and uncondifionals for - 22 Q. Doyourecall when you got that?
23 Q. lspaymonts? 23 A, On February 14th, ]
24 A, Yeah, ) z4 Q. And then -~ [ mean, 1 ntn sure you generally H
25 Q. Then you weren't tracking downsirean subs and 25 now that we ae here because Cashman didn't get paid
ﬂﬂ
Page 23 Page 25
1 supplicrs to Mojave? 1 for the generator and the UPS coquipment that it
2 A. No. 2 supplied fo the project.
3 Q. Is there o renson why you weren't iracking 3 A. Thave been fold that
4 downsiream? 4 G. Sowhen we talk about the generator and UPS
5 A, Beeausc that is not part of our standard 5 cquipment, it's kind of package deal. You know whit i
13 process. 6 Tam sefersing 107
7 Q. Did yourely on Whiting Tutner lo be tracking T A, Yes, .
9 downstream? ] Q. So whatis the status of the generator, UPS
9 A, Mo, notin our contract it's not requived], 9 equipment on the pecject now?
i0 Q. Wereyou concerned about fien claims from 10 A, Well, 1s instatled, Tam being told {hat
it people who might be unpaid vader the subconiractor's 14 1 would operate In case of an smergency. 1 have nof
12 second, third tier suppliers or subs? 12 wlinessed that, Pue to a Iackof soine programming on
13 A, Coneerned abont it? 1t happens all the fime 13 (e systein ilsetf, i does not give my cllen, the
14 Q. Bui, T mean, not concordied cnough 10 require 14 Clty, the opportunify fo go inton Tipdo on stic or
15 that, I guess, releases be pravided? ' 15 off slie and monitor the status of the genevatoy
16 A. Tt liasn’t been in our past history a niajor 16 sysfems, which is eritient, Maost Tuildings ave fully
17 coneern for us on subtiers and suppliers. 17 atttoruted and have a building weanagement systems, And
i8 Q. Okay. Canyou telf me what the status of the 18 they sit up in an offiee when they need to cheelt to
19 project is now? 16 verily thak fhe fucl is corvect, fhe batterles ave
20 A, ‘Well, on February 14ih of this vear if's 20 operating, how (hat systen iz opevatlng after it staris
21 going to be ane yenr opened, Webad substantial 21 up for RUNs and fhe technical ihings that need to he
95 completion on February 14th of 2012, | 22 monitoved on iese systems in case of an enteYEeneys and
23 Q. TIsthe project totatly closed outat this 53 that Is net avalinble.
24 point? ' 24 Q. And so as aresnitof ghiat, were you taking
25 A. No 25 any action againgt Whiting Taener or Mofave or --

|
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Page 26 Page 28 ,
1 A. We have been, you knew, pushing to get 1 Q. What type of file, like, recotdkesping
2 resolution of that, 2 soflware do they use?
3 (. OfF that issne? 3 A, Idon't know.
4 A. Of that issue. _ 4 (. There wasn't a requizement for a specific
5 Q. So does that leave any pending jssues between 5 program? .
6 you, Your ¢ompany, or PorestCity and the City of Las ) A, {Shakes head))
] Vegas? 7 Q. So that withholding on there ig not related
8 A, The City is aware of the situation. Being 8 to the generator?
8 aware of if, ey can manually go cheek things, which ] A, No,
16 they ave doing, but tiiey are not very pleased about it. 10 €. Tnspeaking with Nancy from Whiting Turner,
11 Beenuse there is a fault on the generator panel. 11 she seamed 1o indicate thal [bwas related to the
12 2, What do you mean? What does that mean? 12 gencrator, UnlessI misuderstood -- T guess Tam
13 A. It's o big ved Hght that flashes, 13 teying to understand, Do you recall -- yonare still
14 Q. Like somsthing is wrong? 14 holding i, or have you paid it oul?
15 A. Yeah, 15 A, No.
i6 (Exhibit 2 marked)) 16 Q. You ure stil holding i1?
17 RY M8, LLOYD: ‘ 7 A. Until a project ls completely closed out with
18 ), Canyoutakea look at this docmaent? This 18 2 contractor, 1 do not relense, T release 5 pereent,
19 was produced in conjunction ith a subpoena that I 19 That is § percent, I believe. Aud then colwmn, I think
20 issuied fo ForestCity. Do you recoguize thig document? 20 it says 5 porcent, 1 released under percentage
21 A, Yes, Tt's the one I provided. Tt's the last 21 retainage; bi's 5 pereent. Untlia project Is closed
22 exeeuteil pry application to Whiting Turner. 22 ont, ForestCity's policy is we do niof release alt ihe
23 Q. Okay. And then if you go to page Baios stap 23 retainage. And it's not specifically to muy certain
24 5, can you teil me what -~ under the electrical, that 24 e, ‘
25 first line flemy, it looks like there is g withholding. 25 Q. Well, that particular item shows both a
page 27 _ Page 29
1 Am | reading that correctly? 1 balance to finish and a refainage amount, Those arte
2 A, Yenh, there was a retainnge stitl held. 2 two separate - are those two separate -- because tost
3 Q. ltlooks ike -~ is that 792 or - 3 of the items show basienily no balance to finish,
4 A, Yealy, it's - 4 because they are alf looking like they are complete and
5 Q. Tnthatrange? 5 have bees paid out, except for some show retention. Se
6 A. Yeal, I helleve. 133 that's why T was trying fo understund exactly what the
ki Q. Ts that stifl deing witliheld? T alatus of the prymetd to Whiting Turer was ot thnt
8 A. Yes. 8 partleular iony, beeause it looks tike thare isa
9 Q. From Whiting Tuenci? 9 balancs 1o fnish aud then a refainage amount,
i0 A. From Mojave. 10 A. The balwnee o findsh was fisied of the
11 Q. Througl Whiling Tumer, T guess, So wiy i 11 confract change orflors that we were still negodiating.
12 that being withheld? 12 Q. Do you recall what those were aboul?
13 A. TWe were tlosing out with Mojave. Therewere | 13 A No '
14 several change arders {hat tiey had asked for that did | 14 Q. So did the owner withhold avy funds from
15 not got approved befove this was dane. 15 Whiting Tuener and Mojave related to the generator
16 Q. Sothat line item is not retated 1o the 16 beyond -- I think you identified 30,0007
17 generator equipment? ‘ 17 A, That's alf we did beesuse it was 2 specific
1B A, No, 18 line item. Mojave's contract wonld have -- o7 pay
19 Q. Do youhavea breakdown of what it is related 19 application wonld have this caver sheef, And thea they
20 ie somewhere else? 20 were requived to glve us sehedule of values for every
21 A, Whithhg Terner wonld, Whiting ‘Turner held 21 tem of their scope of work, which entailed the
22 all ihie files for hls projeet. Y did not keep - they 22 clectrienl, audio, visual, Tmean, the whole brealaleywn,
23 are to provide me on disk the eatire file systein, which 23 It was a specific Ine ien for the generator.
24 T have not reeclved Decause we haven't tlosed out yat, 24 Q. So the gencrafor Jine ffent was somewhliats in
25 So this is all T had available. 25 the range of 360,000, But if it wes, would you have J

"
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David Phillips - 1/10/2013 _
Cashman Equipment Company, ef al. vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., ef al.

Page 30 Page 32 i
1 withheld 800,000 or would you withhold an sinount you 1 reqitirement, We cannot single-source a produet for
2 detormined sepatately, or did you have o way of coming 2 ForestCity, We are a public company, Any of (hose
3 up with whal you wers going (0 withhold? 3 manufacturers would ktave to meot the performance
4 A. The generator was alrendy paid out before 4 specifications that the engincers design to, If
5 this was brought to sur attention, SoT just refused 5 those - that seleetion process, they ave all equal in
& topay any more on that Iine item. 6 the engineer’s eyes s well as the owner's eyes, then
7 Q. Okay. T guess what's the status of the 7 they can -- fhey are responsible for making sure that
8 negotiations with Whiting Turver fo close everything B system fs complete.
9 out? . 9 (Exhibit 3 marked.)
10 A, W are hoping to have it all closed out it BYMS.LLOYD:
11 within flie next fwo weels, 11 Q. Take a look at this document. Have you scen
iz Q. Then what is your plan, I guess, in reference 12 it before? '
13 to the operation of the genetator equipment as far as, 13 A, Yes,
14 you know, | guess sort of how that is going to work 14 Q. And when did you first sce the lien? i
15 with the Cigy? 15 A. 1donwt recnll exactly witen Tsnw the lien.
i6 A. 'We have asked Whiting Turner to give us a 16 0. Was it shortly after it was recorded?
17 proposal on how they want to handle it. They have to 17 A. Atsome poinf. Like Isaid, I can't give an
18 deal with their coutractor. i 18 exact time. :
19 Q. Have they come to you with any proposal yet? 19 Q. Did you =- it was forwarded to you from
20 A, No, They are in the — they ave just 20 Cleveland, your Cleveland offices?
21 following this process. That is all fhey can give s 21 A, Yes
22 e infoviation, 22 Q. And then what action did you take once you
23 Q. Soisthat item just going fo remain open 23 were aware of the lien?
24 wniil the litigation is complete? 24 A. Itaok a copy vver to Whiting Turaer and
25 A, Woell, the lien has been honded around. As 25 said, Address this issue.
Page 31 Page 33 |
1 far as the City, the lien has been bonded, Dut 1 0. And what did they say?
2 operafienabwise L am not suve. We linve been frying (o 2 A. That s when it was bonded srowid.
3 get resalution of this, so that T ean go down and talk 3 Q. And so did you fake any other astlon in
4 te the City to determine exactly what their position fs 4 relation to the Hen ot the Hen claim?
5 on this, ‘ 5 A, MNo.
% Q. Okay. Did you have any lavolvement in & Q, Did you have any discussions with Whiting
7 choosing the generator systeln zequirements? 7 Turner about what happened oz wlyy there was a licn?
-8 A. No,1am not an electrienl engineer. a A, Tasked whit was going on and they said thay
9 Q. So was that 8 IMA role as part of thelr ] were fiving to contact Mojave to find out.
10 design services? 10 0. Did you do any inquiry beyond that
11 A, Yes. JMA, JBA. ) 11 afterwards? '
12 Q. DId you have any involvement in approving the 1z A, N
i3 system that was proposed by Mojave to be used? 13 MS. LLOYD: 1don't think T have any other
14 A. No. 14 guestions.
15 Q. Would that just have been IMA and Whiting 15 MR, BOSCHEE: Ithink! have a couple.
16 Turner? 16 EXAMNATION
17 A, Ti's 0 combination of TMA, Whitlng Turwer and 17 BY MR. BOSCHEE:
18 JBA. . i8 (. Looking at Exhibit 3, 1 understand that you
19 Q. So would you have seefr miy of the submitials 19 don't reeall oxactly what date that you saw that, Was
20 concerning any type of the equipment that was being 20 shat the fiest time thet you learned o asceriained of
21 supplied 1o the projeci? 21 the issue that has caused us to sit here foday? ]
22 A. No, nof on that speeific fteu, no, The 22 A, Wall, this was not speeific to the issues we
23 specifications are perforimanee specifieations. 1t 23 ave stttheg heve taday. It was a lien from Cashiman for
24 vequires - it whi provide at least thee different 24 equipment. ‘Tliat didn't explnin why we nre sitilng here
25 wanufaciurers of equipment, three to five, which s owr ;25 today.
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_ " David Phillips -~ 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, et al, vs, CAM Censulting, Inc., ef ak

Page 34 Page 36
1 Q. Well, what is your understanding of why wo 1 Q. Now, I had another question from my notes in
2 are here foday? 2 taiking to yor. Do you recall - I believe there was a
3 A, T all henrsay. 3 pending log that you reviewed from time o time; is
4 Q. Okay. 4 that correct?
5 MS, TLOYD: Depos are okay for hearsay, 5 A, Every day.
6 THE WITNESS: When we starled to commission 6 Q. Tdidn't want to hold your feef to the five
7 this building, we have a third-party gommissiener on T on the everyday thing, but T knew it was pretty much
8 tie project. $When they started to conto ond and test B every day. Do you recall secing anything it the
2] equipient and do things, there was this flag that was 9 pending log about change orders with respect to the
10 put on the generator system by et Grird-pacty 10 generslors?
11 consultant congcorning, you know, PCL or whatever. And 11 A, There was nane,
12 ot that point it sat there and Ekept asking, Is this 12 Q. Okay, Auwd agein, just to clarify, your
13 resolved? Is this reselved? And they said, No, not i3 company and you personally had ptayed no part in the -
14 vet, ot yel. And finally it came out that -- how it 14 T puess we will ealt it {he screening process for the
15 was told that lhere was an issue with Cashman and CAM. 15 disadvaniaged business eatities (hat were used on this
16  RY MR BOSCHEE: ie project, did you?
17 Q. Yeah, 17 A, Mo,
18 A, And they explained fo me the sltwation. At ig Q. Andwith respect to - with respect to BdA's
19 that peint they didn't have all Qe detaited facts. 15 involvement, you tatked to Wis, Lloyd about this a
20 Tlhey just -- you ltnovy, they reassured ForestCily, It 20 Hittle bit earlier, Is it fatr to say that their
21 was 4t an owner's meefing. We would have o nieeting 21 primary job was io deal with the design and the destgn
22 prior o -« before the Cliy eame in. 8o hn our meeting 22 changes once the project got going; is that fair?
23 they explained of the situntion, And that they assared 23 A, Yes. '
24 us thatwe hiad finat veleases and things of that 24 MR. BOSCHEE: I don't think I have anything
25 nature, That put people somewhat to comfort and it was 25 further. i
Page 35 Page 37
1 bonded arennd. Andwe didn't lenow how -- we linesy we 1 MS, LLOYD: Ilhavea follow-up.
2 needed to gef the program so thatwe could complote our P FURTHER EXAMINATION
3 commlsstoning and nove forward with the Cify. 3 BY MS. LLOYD: '
4 Q. Prior {0 seeing this Tien and getting this 4 Q. What is a pending log?
5 from your eorporate office, did-yoy have any actual 5 A. TorestCity vequires al of oy eontractors o
6 knowledge thit Ceshman Equipment Company was involved 6 Ieep track of any possible clnge or foresceable change
i in what we will call the project? Have you ever heard T and project o cost that couldl impact the profect, e
8 of them before? 8 don't like surprises, H you knaw you liave
9 A, Ihave been here for 24 years, T have heard 9 prablen - Hwe know we have a preblem ont there with
10 of Cashman, Buf ne, generators show up, cquipnient 10 some steel, we would fndiente Hiat on this pendleg log
11 shows up, Who sepplios if, who s installing it, T am 11 and we would project a cost, So every month we lmew
1z just refylng on Whiting Turner to male suve H's done. 12 what owr exposure was fo fhe project In any changes.
13 Q, Okay, And T mean, sitting hore right now, do 13 Tt mlght end up being zeva,
14 you have any actuat knowledge of when or whether 14 The CHy wight coie and say, Dave, I wid you
15 Cashman Equiptient Company actually supplied the 15 to redo these Aoor pians, which fhey did. We would
16 penerators to the project? 16 put that on there and we would projeet n eost luvolved
17 A, No,Tdon't. 17 it that. So thaf af the end of the day, every mtonth e 3
18 Q. And foliowing up on that, do yon Tiawe any .18 knew what our truo cost exposure was on s monfhly basis
19 specific recofloction of whert the penerators were 19 for finanee purposes.
20 delivered to the project? 20 (. Would you sce, like, a pending cost il
21 A, Mot speetficaily, no. 21 Whiting Tutner descrmined that, say, a sub missed
22 Q. s it fnir to say you just know that they got 22 something and didi't bid it properly so they were golng
23 thers and it got put in and the construction kept 23 fo eszentially put the cost back onto the sub? Would
24 flowing? 24 they fuwve nofified you of someihing like thal?
25 A. Correct, 25 A No.
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_ David Phillips - 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, ef al. vs, CAM Consulting, Inc., ¢f al,

Page 38 Page 40
1 Q. Oronly ifit was going fo be an 1 CERTIFICATE OF DEPONENT _
2 owner-impacted chenge or potential cost? 2  PAGE LINE CHANGE REASON
3 A. Tt teacked — £ Whitlng Turner missed ::
4 solething In the contract ifself, that ttem would be 5 i
5 put -« it would be tracked fo Whiting Turner, IT 5
6 ForestCity asked for a change, it would be listed as 7
7 ForestCity, And if the City made a change, it would be g
8 City. Beyoanrl that, nothing else went on that log a ]
9 Q. 8o it was only if] say, Whiting Turner was 10
16 going to.ask for more mongy «- ‘ 11
11 A, Right." ' 1z
iz Q. «=related to a cettain ifen. 13 —h
13 ) S0 1.5‘ they madea cictermlnumon that, say, ) 15 . 1, David Phisllps, deponent hierein, do fiercby
14 Mojave missed so'mething fmd it yvas in _|ihs c{rawmgs and certify and declace the witiin and foregoing
i5 they should have Incladed ftand it wasn't going to bs 16 . transcription to be niy deposition in said netion; that
is a chabge to the owner, you wouldu't be notiffed -- 1 ltave rendi, carrected and do hereby nifix nry sigtmturc
17 A. No,Iwasn't 17 to said deposition under penalty of parjury,
18 Q. - an issuc like that, 18 :
19 Talking about the generstor, T guess, DAVID PHILLIPS, Deponent
20 delivery. Do you recall secing the generators be 13
21 delivered? o
22 A, T justsaw them sitting fiere one day, 22
23 Q. Before they were in the boX or however they 23
24 qre housed in the equipment room, or efter they were 24
25 already in the squipment room? 25
Page 39 Page 41 |
1 A, After they were already by the — it's a wall é STATE Og%‘g\lg\]gg\'ff OF REPORTER
2 enclosnre, ] s
3 Q. Okay. Do you recall meeting Shane Norman of 2 COUI\I],TgthyC%ALg gk or aduly commissoned
N 1t} . O > '
4 Cashman Equipiwent Company? Hotary Fablie, Clack County, State of Meyads, do hereby
5 A, His name doesn't sound famitlar, 5 %?Iﬂ‘liﬁ 'rha:Ichgﬂed ;h,lgliicpgsm%: nan?\Egi 012 2t
6 Q. Tt would hiave been around the: time of the 6 b s commencing onThursdng, Sanvscy 10, 20124
7 lien, sort of ihe dispute concerning the prynient 7 y That lf,"'orm[bEi"EgeEmffd’tm:{}‘ﬁ}fig,w“
B lssues, He recalled, I guess vislting the site and B lhcseafer Koasertbed iy Srid shorthand notes falo
g meeting you, but T don't know if you had reealled. typewriting and that e iypewritien leanscript is s
g comtplets, frue and accurate franseription of nyy said
10 A. 1metsomany people. shorthnnd niotes, That review of fhe franseript was
11 Q. No, Lam sure. Bspecially every day. ﬂ rcqueslﬂig; et certife hat Lava mot 4 celti '
12 A. The nanie doesn't sound famijing, but I am not cmployccr(l)r igﬁggé?dm‘co?::nﬁ;? ;;,:JL‘;E’M ofany of
13 saying T ¢idn't meef hina, Tam just saying I don't 1z e Fnﬂlies; r{gc:;a "3;,‘”"? cmlplé%fga “‘.i;‘d"ll?cﬁd;“‘
e 1 canlractor of the padies snvolved in said action; nor
14 vecall mecting him. . 13 aperson financially interested in the action; nor" dal
15 Q. But you dor't recall having a conversation “ hqvlt: any nﬂ!mr ;nln!iu?sl]kip “;i'1l_il a?ly Dlﬂhs pngles or
o : p . b ywith counsel of aay of the parltes Jinolved 1t the
16 concersing this bounced check and the isswewith the acslon fhat veny reasoably enuse wy fmpartiality to b
17 nonpayment of the generator? 15  queslioned,
18 A, Tdon't recall 8 16 N WITHESS WHEREQOR, 1 have s¢f my hand in my
« Tdow'trecall that, office in the County of Clark, State of Nevada, this
19 MS. LLOYD: Qkay. That is #ll I have. %g 14ih day of Jusuary, 2013, -
20 (Thereupon, the deposition 1s
21 concluded af 4:00 p.ny.) 20 }
22 CHRISTY LYN DeJONKER, CCR NO, 694
21
23 22
24 ;
25 25
]
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MATERIAL RELEASE ORDER

2758 W, Hadlonda Avenue
Las Vegas, Mevada 801151768 .
{702) 708-2970 - FAX {702) 798-3740 DATE: " August 11, 2040

TO; CAM CONSULTING G/O CASHMAN |  RE: NEW CITY HALL
ATTN:; ANGELO CARVALHO / KEITH LOZE; PO 767810-QEN-10010
FAX ¥ From:, Julle Vaviek
PER APPROVED SUBMITTALS FOR THE ABOVE PROJECT, PLEASE MAKE ANY CORRECTIONS
NOTED AND RELEASE THE ITENMS AS LISTED BELOW, '
PLEASE RELEASE THE FOLLOWING; .
LINE[YEM _ @TY  TYPE  DESGRIPTION ’

i 1 | GENI |900KW, 480/277Y, 4P, AW, N3R Enclosed Generafor - "
GENE .

2 1 182 {Shunt Trip Station .

3 1 GENE2 |900KW, 4807277V, 4P, 4W, N3R Enclosad Gengralor

4 1 PSG_[3000A, 480/277V, 3P, AW, N3R Paralleling Switchgear

8 1 __|ATS¥2 SGéA. 450!277‘;(, 4P, AW, N8R Avlomalic Trahafer Swilch

B 1 1 ATS-E111200A, 480277V, 4P, AW, N3R ﬁ'mtomatic Transfer Switch

7 1 | ATaX1 [1000A, 4807277V, 4P, AW, N3R Automatio Translot Swilch

8 1| ATS#1 |Remots Annunicator

Plaast: contact us ahead of tme to make sure the site is pfepped. Thank youl

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE TQ MOJAVE JOBSITE
518 South First Street j.as Vegas, NV 89101
15 GALL MOJAVE ELEGTRIG 24 HRS PRIOR TO DELIVERIES

{WHEN APRLIES) NOTIFY Chne(702) 798-2070

2) MARICALL GARTONS, BTG, WITH JOB NAME, THANKYOU
PO, ITEM# AND TYPE I

8) MAKE SURE ALLITEMS COMPLY WITH PLANS, .
SPECS AND ADDENDA I} QUDJ\/ \) Y‘W/
#) DOUBLE CHECKALL VOLTAGES WITH THIS OFFIOE JI ,(/:M .
JULIE VAVREK PM ASSISTANT
ORIGINAL: SUPPLIER COPY: DN, LEO, FILE (RED FOLDER, P ASSISTANTS

Paga 1 of 1 JA OOOQA%ﬁ




MATERIAL RELEASE ORDER

2756 W, Haclenda Avenus

Las Vegas, Nevada 891181765 ‘

{702) 798-2970 - FAX {702} 788-3740 DATE: August 11, 2010

T0: CAM GONSULTING GO CASHMAN | RE: NEW GITY HALL
ATTN: ANGELQ CARVALHO { KEITH LOZE, PO 767810-UPS-10011
FAX #h From:_ Julle Vavrek

PER APPROVED SUBMITTALS FOR THE ABOVE PROJECT, PLEASE MAKE ANYCDRREOT[ONS
NOTED AND RELEASE THE ITEMS AS LISTED BELOW,

PLEASE RELEASE THE FOLLOWING:

UNEITEM QTY  TYPE  DESGRIPTION

1 1 1400 K, 277/480V 3 PHASE WITH BATTERIES AS SHOWN

ON CONTRAGT DRAWINGS DATED 11/06/09

MGE Model # EPS6000

2 1 Shunt Trip Stalion

| - | | B

Piaase contact us ahead of time to make sure ths sfte Is prepped, Thank youl

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE TO MOJAVE JOBSITE
518 South First Strest Las Vegas, NV 89101
1) GALL MOJAVE ELECTRIG 24 HRS PRIOR TO DELIVERIES

[WHEN APPLIES) NOTIFY (i 702) 1882970

2) MARK ALL CARTONS, ETC, WITH JOB NAME, THANK YOU
, PO#, ITEMAAND TYPE
2) MAKE SURE ALL ITEMS COMPLY WITH PLANS,

SPECS AND AUDENDA i w ,UL/
4) DOUBLE CHECKALL VOLTAGES WITHTHIS OFFICE N BY: ('.,L[ ﬂ
JULIE }WRE‘K Pl ASSISTANT
ORIGINAL: SUPPLIER COPY: DN, LP.O. FILE (RED FOLDER, PM ASSISTANTS
Pags 1 of f
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CASHIIAN POWER SOLUYIONS
3300 SAINY ROBE PARKWAY
HENDERSON, NV 96062

PHONE: (702) 049-6777

PRI (DL LS e ED

FAX; {702) 639.5000
Bee. | NOVGIABET 4%, 26711
Mojave Elaolflo Fa No. . .
To ' N
: Materinl
All Brofaot Las Vagas CHy Hall !

[ Isusmittal 7 Restbmallies

IF EICLOSURKS ARE NOT AS NOTED, PLEASE ZDVISE MMEDIATHLY,
" [ Iieottuot epesiitoation Sheste f Broshiras [ epsoitteations / Plans

I Joparation & Malntenange Manunls [ |slop Dravtnge- Wing Dlagrame 1 Totier
Y Copiigs,|... . Manilgelice ) R Baso/iplion
. CAT 092 Gonorafors SIN J3I57076, 801 0138 —
] L . !
b : -
” Py - e l Loy
[ JAs Requasiad | __IRevlow/ Comenant/ Glutionion . [ Jmiormation Oliser
Jﬁ A iienal oleband Continers
7 ' )
Racolvad By: el THer MMWC
4 YR
T 7 Date Reoolvad: ﬁﬂér’// ‘

N k]

Submittad By;

2

Dals

CASHD00
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fry i

+. Sibmittal Transmittal
Project Name ; Las Vegas New City Hall .
Project Numbor : 12600 ' WHITING - TURNER
pPackage Nams: Engine Generator Systems Parts List & Installation Manual i

Mojave Electrle, Inc, ‘ ' . The Whitlng-Turner Contracting Company
3755 W. Haclenda Ava. , . 6720 Via Austl Parkway '
Las Vegas, NV 89118 © o Sulte 300
Tel; 702-798-297¢ : Las Vegas,.NV 89119
Fax: 702-798-0347 ' Tal: 702-650-0700
. : . Fax: 702-650-2650
Agtn: Chrls Melers "+ Prom; Eltiott Lioyd
Delivered Vial _ Tracking Number:
Spea | Submiital ‘ Tiile - " | Thpel. [Coplosf Sent T Due™ | Agtlon

- Rate. -l Dale -

Seollon | Number ,
Toroduct'} 27 | 08/24/2010 .D‘!IZUZD%B:%%&-
Dala R T ﬁ'ﬁ

263213 766

Subcontractar 1 | Mofave Elaetrle, Inc, -
Contractor
Comnents;

Transmittal
Remarls:

. ) Packago Reviewsrs. . )
To Company To: . | From. Date Rev'd | Date Sent, JActlon Taken

JWA Archltects Robart MessTana Ellintt Lloyd 09/16/2010 | 99/07/20(0 |Approvad
Mojave Electrlc, Ine, JChrls Melers ‘ Elliott Lioyd - 09/16/2010.1 0972172010 |Approved

A/E Remarks

Coples To!

/2112010 Whilng Tuiner yaavaiiingurmar.co Pagaiald
mtagilinghmetcon K’ 00001893

CASHI1768
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SUPP : )
BRIAN W, BOSCHEE, ESQ. Ok S
Nevada Bar No, 7612

E-mail: ‘bboschee@nevadafirm.com CLERK OF THE COURT
COTTON, DRIGGS, WALCH,

HOLLEY, WOLOSON & THOMPSON

400 South Fourth Sireet, Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Telephone:  702/791-0308

Facsimile:  702/791-1912

Attorneys for Defendants West Edna, Ltd., dba Mojave Electric, Western Surety Company, The
Whiting Turner Contracting Company and Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland,
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of America, Counterclaimant and Crossclaimant

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a
Nevada corporation,
‘ : Case No.: A642583
Plaintiff, Dept. No.:. 32

v, (Consolidated with Case No. A653029)

CAM CONSULTING, INC,, a Nevada
corporation; ANGELO CARVALHO, an
individual; JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL
CARVALHO, an individual, WEST EDNA
ASSOCIATES, LTD. dba MOJAVE
ELECTRIC, a Nevada corporation; WESTERN
SURETY COMPANY, a surety; THE WHITING
TURNER CONTRACTING COMPANY, a
Maryland corporation; FIDELITY AND
DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, a
surety; TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND
SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA, a surety;
DOES 1-10, inclusive; and ROE
CORPORATIONS 1-10 inclusive;

Defendants.

AND RELATED MATTERS.

DEFENDANTS’ SUPPLEMENT TO MOTION TO EXPUNGE LIEN AND OPPOSITION
TO MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT AS TO LIEN AND BOND CLAIMS

COMES NOW, Defendants/Counterclaimants WEST EDNA ASSOCIATES, LTD. dba
MOJAVE ELECTRIC, a Nevada corporation (“Mojave”), WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a
surety (“Western”), THE WHITING TURNER CONTRACTING COMPANY (“Whiting™),

15775-72/1049095.doc
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TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA, a- surety
(“Travelers™), and FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF MARYLAND, (“Fidelity™)

(collectively “Counterclaimants” or “Defendants™), by and through their attorneys of record,

‘Brian W. Boschee, Esq. of the law firm of: COTTON, DRIGGS, WALCH, HOLLEY,

WOLOSON & THOMPSON, and hereby submit the following Supplement to their Motion to
Expunge Mechanic’s Lien and Opposition to Motion for Summary Judgment as to Lien and
Bond Claims (the Supplement”).

This Supplement is supported by the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities
below, the pleadings and papers on file and such oral argument as may be adduced at a hearing
on this matter.

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

1. INTRODUCTION

In November of 2012, the Court permitted Plaintiff Cashman Equipment Company
(“Cashman” or “Plaintiff”)) additional time to conduct limited discovery with respect to whether
or not the owneré of the Project (defined below) received proper_nbtice of Cashman’s tight to
lien pursuant to NRS §108.245. After conducting discovery for several months, this is what
Cashman has “supplemented” its prior briefing with:

e The owner’s representative, David Phillips, testified under oath that he never had
any idea Cashman was working on the Project and never received any pre-lien
notice fréin Cashman.

» Cashman has produced some type of mailing slip purported showing that the pre-
lien notice was mailed to the owners in Cleveland, OH, but strangely, this
“certified mailing” does not show a receipt signed by any owners’ representative
i Cleveland. Obtaining a return receipt is the entire point of sending something
via certified mail, and Cashman has no such receipt showing that the owners cver
actually received the pre-lien notice. |

o Cashman has nothing to refute the sworn statements from Forest City that they
provided all of the documents that they had in response to Cashman’s subpoena in
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November of 2012. Notably, the pre-lien notice was not included with those
documents.

¢ Cashman-has provided an unsupported statement that it still had personnel on the
Project as of May 23, 2011. Cashman represents that this statement is supported
by Exhibit “1” of their Supplement, but Exhibit “1” has nothing attached other
than a note saying “To Be Supplemented.” The last invoice Cashman sent with
tespect t0 a minot amount of work and materials provided as dated March 23,
2011. There is absolutely no evidence in this case that Cashman did any work or
provided any materials after the date of the last invoice. -

» Cashman has provided another “certified” mailing slip dated April 19, 2010, but
there is nothing attached to that mailing slip to show what was purportedly sent to
the owners in Ohio eight months prior to Cashman actually delivering any

" equipment to the site. Further, if the document attached to the Plaintiff’s
Supplement as Exhibit “9” is the only pre-lien that was sent in 2010, it is woefully
deficient in that it does not describe in any detail what work Cashman is allegedly
going to perform, nor does it provide the value of the alleged work. Also, like the
other “certified” mailing evidence Cashman has presented, Cashman also
strangely has no receipt from the owners for this purported mailing,

So, after five months of taking additional depositions and trying to obtain additional
discovery, the Plaintiff still has no actual evidence that notice of its work was ever received by
the Owner or the Owner’s representative on the Project. Instead, having been told by the
Ownet’s representative that he had no idea that Cashman was on this Project, and also having
been provided with sworn statements from the Owners articulating that they had provided what
they had in response to Cashman’s subpoena (said document notably not including any pre-lien
notices), Cashman has attempted {o circumvent the Court’s requirement that Cashman provide
evidence of actual Owner’s notice that Cashman was working on the Project. Instead of
providing actual evidence, Cashman is relying on a third-party mailing slip, purportedly claiming
to have sent the pre-lien notice via “certified mail,” that contains no proof of receipt, no proof of
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service, and that confradicts sworn statements and sworn testimony of the Owner’s
representative.

. Cashman then attempts to defeat its deficiency with respect to both the lien and the
payment bond by making an unsupported, unsubstantiated claim that Cashman representatives
were on the Project as late as May 23, 2011. Cashman has no logs of employees on site that late
into 2011, May 23 is almost a month after CAM Consulting, Inc. (“CAM™) tendered the check
containing insufficient funds to Cgshman, and it directly refutes testimony obtained from both of
Cashman’s persons most knowlcdgeablé that Cashman’s employees were likely off the Project
by the time of the last invoice.

Cashman has provided this Court with no new evidence demonsirating that it complied
with both its statutory obligations and this Court’s requirement that Cashman demonstrate actual
notice of its work to the Owner of the Project. Further, Cashman has provided no new evidence
that it provided notice to Whiting within 90 days of completion of its work on the Project, While
Cashman now claims to have been working on the Project as of May 23, 2011, it provided this
Court with no evidence to support that claim. Thus, given that the Plaintiff has provided no new
evidence to defeat the Defendants’ Motion to Expunge the Lien or to support their Motion for
Summary Judgment on both the lien and the payment bond, the Court should, at this stage,
expunge the lien and hold that Plaintiff is not entitled to recovery under the payment bond.

II. STATEMENT OF FACTS

Most of the facts of the case are not in dispute. Mojave entered into a purchase order
(“Purchase Order”) dated April 23, 2010 with CAM c/o Cashman Equipment to purchase the
necessary generator equipment for the City Hall Project in Las Vegas (the “Project”). To that
end, there were two agreements, one between Mojave and CAM, and the other between CAM
and Cashman. Cashman now claims that it sent a pre-lien notice to the owners on April 29, 2010

and another on December 7, 2010, See Exhibit “9” and Exhibit “11” to the Motion.

However, as of April 29, 2010, Cashman had not supplied any materials or labor to the
City and would not supply anything to the Project for another eight months. By Plaintiff’s own
admission, Cashman began delivery of materials in “late December of 2010,” which also would
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have been after the service of the purported second pre-lien notice dated December 7, 2010.
Plaintiff now claims that it “started to perform work™ in April of 2010, but Cashman has
provided no evidence that it did anything prior to December of 2010. Additionally, the pre-lien

notices attached to Plaintiff’s Motion as Exhibit “9” and Exhibit “11” contain no receipts of

acceptance by any of thé parties it was purportedly sent to, nor do they contain any specifics as
to what Cashman was going to provide br the amount of the work Cashman was going to
perform. Thus, given that thesc alleged notices were sent well before any work was performed
and have no proof of service or description of the work performed, they are simpty not valid pre-
lien notices as required by NRS §108.245.

However, the parties also do not dispute that Cashman provided mosf of the materials and
labor required for the generators per its agreement with CAM. Per the testimoﬁy of Cashman’s
key witness in this case, Keith Lozeau, which the Plaintiff now apparently disputes without any
evidence to the contrary, Cashman began delivery and installation in late December of 2010 and

concluded sometime in February of 2011, See Deposition of Keith Lozeau, P. 59, 11. 5-15, P60,

1. 1-135, attached hereto as Exhibit *A” and incorporated by reference. Cashman did net

complete the delivery and installation, as the Court is now well-aware based upon the extensive
briefing with respect to the PLC Codes.

After Cashman provided most of the equipment and work that was invoiced by CAM, it
is also undisputed that Mojave tendered full payment to CAM, as required by its contract with
CAM, and that CAM then provided Cashman with a post-dated check, which Cashman accepted,
Cashman then provided an unconditional, final lien release with respect to the materials and
labor it had provided to the Project. CAM’s check was returned for insufficient funds, and that
essentially started this entire process. Cashman liened the Properly, despite already providing an
unconditional lien release, Cashman initiated this action, has now brought three sureties, the
general contractor, every owner of the Property since the Project started, and Mojave into a
dispute that should really be between Cashman and CAM,

Cashman also made a claim on Whiting’s payment bond on June 24, 2011, which was
more than 90 days after the date of tﬁe last invoice Cashman sent with respect to the work
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performed (and thus, clearly more than 90 days after said work was completed). Much like the
notice to the Owner, the Court has expressed concern about whether this notice to Whiting was
timely. So, after taking several months to conduct discovery, Cashman’s response to this
concern is to state, without any supporting evidence and in contradiction to its own documents
and witnesses, that there were still Cashman personnel at the Project until May 23, 2011, What
were these employees doing? Why was this work not invoiced? More importantly, why was
Cashman still working on the Project after CAM’s check was returned?! Cashman has been very
clear in this dispute that it would not complete the work on the Project, namely supply and
installation of the PLC Codes, until it was paid, yet now it comes to this Court with an
unsupported allegation that it had personnel still on the Project after il realized that CAM was
not able to pay for the materials and labor. In the absence of actual evidence supporting this new
assertion, the Court shouid give it no merit.

So, Cashman has come back to this Court seeking summary judgment despite the fact
that: (a) it has no evidence that it domplied with the notice requirements contained in NRS
§108.245 with r.espect to the Owner, which is precisely what this Court wanied to see when it
allowed more time for discovery in November of 2012; (b) it has no evidence supporting the new
claim that it “started to perform work” in April of 2010, particularly when all of the evidence in
the case shows that Cashman’s “work™ was performed beginning in December of 2010; and {c) it
has no evidence that its employees were still on the Project as of May 23, 2011, and thus no
evidence that it complied with the 90-day requirement articulated directly in the bond (which is
thoroughly discussed in the underlying Motion and Opposition). Thus, absent that evidence, the
lien recorded against the Property must be expunged pursuant to NRS §108.245, and Cashman
should not be granted summary judgment as to either the lien or the payment bond.

IILLLEGAL ARGUMENT

A. CASHMAN’S LIEN MUST BE EXPUNGED FOR MULTIPLE DEFICIENCIES
UNDER NRS §108.245

Cashman now claims to have served the Owners of the Project, not just once but three

separate times, with pre-lien notices with respect to the work performed. However, the pre-lien
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notices attached to Cashman’s supplerﬁent contain several problems, all of them fatal to the
notice requirements.of NRS §108.245. First, a quick review of thé plain language and
requirements of NRS §108.245 is insightful with respect to the deficiencies in the notices
purportedly sent by Cashman and attached to the Suppleinent. The statute pfovides:

NRS 108.245 Notice of righ't to lien: Form; service; cffect.l |

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 5, every lien
claimant, other than one who performs only labor, who claims the
benefit of NRS 108.221 to 108.246, inclusive, shall, af any time
after the first delivery of material or performance of work or
services under a contract, deliver in person or by certified mail to
the owner of the property a notice of right to lien in substantially
the following form:

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO LIEN

(Owner’s name and address)

The undersigned notifies you that he or she has supplied
materials or equipment or performed work or services as follows:

(General description of materials, equipment, work or services)

for improvement of property identified as (property description or
street’ address) under confract with (gencral contractor or
subcontractor), This is not a notice that the undersigned has not
been or does not expect to be paid, but a notice required by law
that the undersigned may, at a future date, record a notice of lien as
provided by law against the property if the undersigned is not paid.

(Claimant)

A subcontractor or equipment ot material supplier who gives such
a notice must also deliver in person or send by certified mail a
copy of the notice to the prime contractor for information only.
The failure by a subcontractor to deliver the notice to the prime
confractor is' a ground for disciplinary proceedings against the
subcontractor under chapter 624 of NRS but does not invalidate the
notice to the owner.

2. Such a notice does not constitute a lien or give actual or
constructive notice of a lien for any purpose.

3. No lien for materials or equipment furnished or for work or
services performed, except labor, may be perfected or enforced
pursuant to NRS 108.221 to 108.246, inclusive, unless the notice
has been given.

4, The notice need not be verified, sworn to or acknowledged.

-7 -
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5. A prime contractor or other person who contracts directly
with an owner or sells materials directly to an owner is not
required to' give notice pursuant to this section.

6. A lien claimant who is required by this section to give a
notice of right to lien to an owner and who gives such a notice has
a right to lien for materials or equipment furnished or for work or
services performed in the 31 days before the date the notice of
right to lien is given and for the materials or equipment furnished
or for work or services performed anytime thereafter until the
completion of the work of improvement.

NRS 8108.245(emphasis added).

The first requirement is that the pre-lien notice must be sent within 31 days after the first
delivery of material or performance of work. We know, from Cashman’s documents and
testimony, that the first delivery of material did not occur until late December of 2010, So, the
pre-lien notices that were allegedly sent in April and early December of 2010 clearly do not
comply with the‘“dclive.ry of material” portion of the statutory requirement. Further, the last pre-
lien notice was purporfédly se-ntr -on April 29, 2011, which is more than 31 days after Cashman
acknowledges it delivered material to the Project (January 19, 2011, according to the Supplement
on Page 11), and more than 31 days after the last invoice, March 25, 2011, So, from a pure
timing standpoint, the purported pre-lien notices that Cashman now claims were sent, with no
proof of receipt despite allegedly being certified mail, were either sent too soon or too late with
respect to delivery of the material.

Cashman attempts to avoid this issue by claiming that it “started work™ in April of 2010,
despite not delivering materials to the Project until late December (again, per Cashman’s
Supplement -on Pagé 11). “In this instance, the definition of “work” from NRS Chapter 108 is
helpful. First, “work™ is defined as:

NRS 108.22184 “Work” defined. “Work” means the planning,
design, geotechnical and environmental investigations, surveying,
labor and services provided by a lien claimant for the construction,
alteration. or repair of any improvement, property or work of
improvement whether the work is completed or partially
completed. :

NRS §108.22184.
11!
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In this case, Cashman has provided absolutely no evidence that it provided any “work”
prior to late December of 2010, On April 23, 2010, Mojave issued the purchase orders for
purchase of the materials to be eventually supplied by Cashman. Therc was no “planning”
required by Cashman, nor was there any “labor” or “services” required of Cashman at that point.
Literally, Mojave had put Cashman on notice that it would be purchasing equipment to be
ultimately supplied by Cashman, equipment that, by Cashman’s own admission, was not

supplied or installed until “late December” of 2010. See Supplement, P.11. So, even giving

Cashman the benefit of the doubt that these pre-lien notices were properly served, which they
clearly were not, the notites would be defective because they were not timely.

Another material defect in the putported pre-lien notices that Cashman allegedly sent out
is that it provides no proof of service showing that the mailings were ever actually received. The
entire point of providing Cashman with additional time for discovery was to allow Cashman to
conduct discovery as to whether the OQners ever got notice that Cashman was providing work to
the Project. NRS §108.245 is clear as to how that notice must be accomplished. The pre-lien
notice must be “deliver in person or by certified mail to the owner of the property.” See NRS
§108.245.

There is no dispute that the pre-lien notices were not delivered in person to the ownet of
the Property, even though the owner’s representative, David Phillips, was at the Project almost

every day, per his testimony. See Deposition of David Phillips, attached hereto as Exhibit “B”

and incorporated by reference, P. 9, 1. 5-7; P.35, 13-17. Instead, Cashman purported sent the
pre-lien notices first to’ Forest City Enterprises, Inc. in April of 2010, then to GH Las Vegas,

LLC in December of 2010, and finally to PQ Las Vegas, LLC in April of 2011. Cashman claims |
that these notices were sent by “certified mail” in the Supplement, but Cashman has not provided
this Court with the very thing that distinguishes certified mail from regular U.S; Mail, a receipt
of acceptance by any of the Owners; The reason that the statute specifically calls for these types
of notices to be sent via certified mail is for a situation like this. If something is actually sent via
certified mail, then there is a receipt of acceptance and a trier of fact does not need to guess as to
whether such a vital, statutorily-required notice, was actually received by the owner of a
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property. Instead, there should be a receipt showing that it was accepted.

Cashman has no such receipt for any of the pre-lien notices that were purportedly sent to
the Owners. Further, when Cashman subpoenaed the Owners, the Owners provided the
documents that they had and provided sworn statements that those were the only documents that
they had. True and correct copies of the Verifications of PQ Las Vegas, LLC and FC/LW Las
Vegas, LLC are attached hereto as Exhibit “C” and Exhibit “D”, So, while Cashman contends
that the defective pre-lien notices- were.sent to the Owners three separate times, Cashman can
provide no evidence that these notices were ever received (primarily in the form of a certiﬁed
mail receipt), nor can Cashman demonsirate that the Owner’s representative was personally
served with any pre-lien notice.' So, despite being given several months by this Court to
establish actual notice to the Owners of Cashman’s work on the Project, Cashman has come back
to this Court with no more evidence than it had before. Thus, the notice requirement of NRS
§108.245 has clearly not been met and the lien must be expunged.

While the two deficiencies noted above should be fatal to Cashman’s lien claim, it should
also be noted that the language of the_ pre-lien notices themselves do not comply with the
requirements articulated in NRS §108.245. The form memorialized in the statute clearly requires
that the potential lien claimant provide at least a general description of the work or materials it is
providing for a given project that are subject to the pre-lien notice. The reason for this
requirement is preity straight-forward — to make sure that all of the parties have some idea what
the lien claimant is going to provide and, more importantly, the amount of work or materials the
lien claimant is going to provide.

As the Court can plainly see from the three pre-liens that were allegedly sent, Cashman
provides absolutely no description of what it is actually providing for the Project, other than the
standard “equiprrient for the improvement of the property” that is also cited in the statute before
the portion where the subconiractor is supposed to provide a general description of the work or

materials it is providing. There is no mention of the monetary amount of the work and materials

' In his deposition, David Phillips testlﬁed that he did not even know that Cashman supphed material for the Project
until he found out about the lien,
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Cashman was to provide (even though that number was set by the purchase orders), or what
portion of the Project these pre-lien notices applied to. Cashman supplied equipment for other
subcontractors on other portions of the Project, notably Stetson Electric for the underground
work, and these pre-liens could have applied to that work. Absent some explanation as to what
work or what monetary amount the pre-lien notices related to on the Project, even if the Court
were to give Cashman the benefit of the doubt as to every other deficiency identified with respect
to the pre-lien notices and the service, the Owners would still not have actual notice of what
Cashman was supplying to the Project from the notices attached to the Supplement. .

Further, the April and December notices identify Mojave as the “Customer contracting

for said Equipment and Labor.” See Exhibit “9” and Exhibit “11” to Plaintiff’s Supplement,

There is no dispute between the parties at this point that Cashman did not have a contract with
Mojave with respect to the equipment provided to the Project. Mojave was not the “customer”
or the “contracting” party with Cashman, yet this was the information purportedly sent with the
first two pre-lien notices. -Again, had the Owners actually received these pre-lien notices, they
would have had no idea what work Cashman was giving them notice of, and tﬁey would have
had the impression that Cashman had contracted with Mojave, which it did not.

So, the pre-lien notices provided by Cashman are defective on their face, were never
properly served on the Owners as required by NRS §108.245, and even had they been properly
sent via certified mail, the notices would have been untimely because two were sent before
Cashman began its “work™ and the last was sent more than 31 days after the last invoice date.
Thus, having failed to comply with NRS §108.245, the Defendants’ Motion to Expunge
Cashman’s mechanic’s lien must be granted and Cashman’s clearly invalid lien must be
expunged as well.

B. CASHMAN’S CLAIM ON WHITING’S PAYMENT BOND SHOULD BE

DENIED AS CASHMAN STILL HAS NO EVIDENCE THAT IT COMPLIED
WITH THE 90-DAY SERVICE REQUIREMENT

Faced with a similar notice issue as it has with its mechanic’s lien, Cashman has
attempted to “cure” its failure to provide notice to Whiting within 90 day, as required by Section
4.2 of the payment bond and briefed extensively in the prior pleadings, by now making the

_ -11 -
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unsupported, unsubstantiated claim that Cashman personnel were on the Project as late as May
23, 2011. Cashman does not have a single piece of evidence supporting this new theory that it
was still working on the Project on May 23, 2011. In fact, the evidence and testimony in this
case indicates otherwise, |

The last invoice for this Project from Cashman is dated March 25, 2011, and that invoice
is for $329.71 or warranty matetials provided prior to the invoice date, Further, Keith Lozeau,
designated by Cashman as their person most knowledgeable as to this particular issue, testified
that all of the equipment had been delivered by the date of the first 2 invoices {February 1), and
that other than someone coming to check the installation (which he testified happened “shortly
after” delivery), other than the delivery of some lug bolts sﬁortly prior to March 25, 2011 (the
$329.71 charge), everything was done. See Exhihit “A”, P. 59, 1L 5-15, P.60, 1. 1-15.

Additionally, a cursory review 6f the invoices from February 1 along with the nominal
invoice from March 25, clearly shows that these invoices add up to the exact amount of the lien
and payment Cashman is seeking in this case, $755,893.89. Cashman has taken the position
consistently throughout this litigation that $755,893.89 is the amount owed to it for the work it
performed, and that amount was completely invoiced as of March 25, 2011 (and 99% of it was
invoiced as of February 1, 2011).

Based upon the evidence and testimony, Cashman is clearly trying to have its cake and
eat it too, Cashman had delivered, and appérenﬂy installed, all of the equipment that is subject to
its lien and its bond claims well prior to March 25, 2011. Putting aside the fact that Cashman
clearly had not finished the work, because the PLC Codes are still not installed, everything that
Cashman did supply for the Project was over as of March 25, 2011. Further, in reality, all of the
work, but for delivery of some minor lug bolts, was done by February 1, 2011, Cashman all but
acknowledged this fact in its final pre-lien notice when it represented that the work performed
occutred on “February 1,2011.” See Exhbiit “13” to Plaintiff’s Supplement,

That is what the evidence and the testimony of Cashman’s person most knowledgeable
demonstrates. In support of the new claim that Cashman was still performing work, and again,
“work” as defined above by NRS §108.22184 as opposed to some warranty work Cashman may
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have had to perform, Cashman literally points to no evidence. No employee log. No job site log.
No sworn statements from the personnel who were allegedly on the Project up until May 23,
2011 detailing why they were still on the Project that long after delivery and installation.
Nothing. Just a blanket statement in the Supplement articulating that personnel were there until
May 23. Absent evidence to support his new assertion, and in light of the overwhelming
evidence contradicting the May 23, 2011 assertion, Plaintiff sti:ll has nothing to show that it
complied with the 90-day requirement set forth in Whiting’s payment bond. Thus, Plaintiff’
claim with respect to this bond must be denied as well.

IV. CONCLUSION

This Court provided Cashman several months to conduct discovery to obtain evidence
showing that the Owners of the Property received actual notice of Cashman’s work with respect
to what Cashman has liened the Project for. Instead,r Cashman has provided this Court with pre-
lien notices that are defective on their face, that Cashman cannot prove the pre-lien notices were
ever received by the Owners (in fact, there is substantial evidence that they were not received by
the Owners), and that the pre-lien notices would have been untimely even if they had been
properly served when Cashman claims to have served them.

Additionally, Cashman has come to this Court with no new evidence showing that it
complied with the 90-day requirement in Whiting’s payment bond. As with the [ien, the exact
opposite is true; the evidence is overwhelming that Cashman was finished with its work prior to
March 25, 2011,
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it
should be granted, and Plaintiff’s Motions for Summary Judgment as to the lien and the bond

Based upon the foregoing, the Defendants’ Motion to Expunge the Mechanic’s Lien

must be denied.

A
Dated this 4~ day of April, 2013.

COTTON, DRIGGS, WALCH,
HOLLEY, WOLOSON & THOMPSON

Vo & G )
BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.
Nevada Bar No. 7612

400 South Fourth Street, Third Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Defendants West Edna, Lid., dba
Mojave Electric, Western Surety Company, The
Whiting Turner Contracting Company and
Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland,
Travelers Casualty and Surety Company of
America, Counterclaimant and Crossclaimant
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, lCERTIFICATE O MAILING
-1 HEREBY CERTIFY that, on the L day of April, 2013 and pursuant to NRCP 5(b), |
déposited for mailing in the U.S. Mail a true and correct copy of the foregoing DEFENDANTS’
SUPPLEMENT TO MOTION TO EXPUNGE LIEN AND OPPOSITION TO MOTION
FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT AS TO LIEN AND BOND CLAIMS, postage prepaid and
addressed to:

Jemnifer R, Lloyd, Esq.

Marisa L. Maskas, Esq.
PEZZILLO LLOYD

6725 Via Austi Parkway, Suite 290
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Attorneys for Plaintiff

Edward Coleman, Esq.

COLEMAN LAW ASSOCIATES

8275 S. Eastern, Suite 200

Las Vegas, Nevada 89123

Attorneys for Defendant Janel Rennie aka Janel Carvalho

Keen L. Ellsworth, Esq.
ELLSWORTH & BENNION, CHTD.
777 N. Rainbow Blvd., Suite 270
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Attorneys for Element lron and Design
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DISTRICT COURT K
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA :

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a Nevada } Case No.
corporation, )
) AG42583
Plaintiff,

Vs.

CAM CONSULTING, INC., a Nevada
corporation; ANGELO CARVALHO, an
individual; JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL
CARVALHO, an individual; WEST EDNA
ASSOCIATES, LTD. dba MOJAVE ELECTRIC, a
Nevada corporation; WESTERN SURETY
COMPANY, a surety; THE WHITING TURNER
CONTRACTING COMPANY, a Maryland
corporation; FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT
COMPANY OF MARYLAND, a surety;
TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY COMPANY
OF AMERICA, a surety; DOES 1-10,
inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS 1-10,
inclusive; .

Defendants.
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DEPOSITION OF PERSON MOST KNOWLEDGEABLE OF
CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY
KEITH LOZEAU

Las Vegas, Nevada
Tuesday, September 4, 2012

REPORTED BY: Tammy M. Breed, CCR NO, 305
JOB NO.: 164929
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DEPOSITION OF PERSON MOST
EQUIPMENT. COMPANY, KEITH LOZEAU,

Street, Las Vegas, Nevada, on Tue

9:;30 a.m., before Tammy M. Breed,

and for the State of Nevada.

APPEARANCES:
For the Plaintiff:

JENNIFER R. ROBINSON,
Pezzillo Robinson
6750 via Austi Parkway
Suite 170

Las Vegas, Nevada 89110
(702) 233-4225
jrobinson@pezzillorobinso

For the Defendants:

BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ.

SHEMILLY A. BRISCOE, ESQ.

Cotton, Driggs, Walch, Ho
Wolcson & Thompson

400 South Fourth Street

Third Floor

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

(702} 791-0308

bboscheel@nevadafirm. com

SBriscoelnevadafirm. com
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sday, September 4, 2012, at
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I N o E X

WITNESS: KEITH LOZEAU
EXAMINATION
BY: Mr. Boschee
E X H I B I T 8§
EXHIBIT
Exhibit 1 Notice of 30(B) (6) Deposition of
Person Most Knowledgeable of
Cashman Eguipment Company
Exhibit 2 Letter from Jennifer R. Rebinsocon,
Esqg., Dated 8/31/12
Exhibit 3 stop Payment on a check to Cashman
Equipment in the amount of
$755,893.89, Dated 4/29/11, BRates
CASHO14
Exhibit 4 Application For Credit, Bates
CASHOO01 to 002
Exhibit 5 Invoices and Bill of Lading, Bates
CASHOO3 to 008
Exhibit & Subcontractor's Daily Log, The

Whiting-Turner Contracting Company,
Bates WTCO0070 to 71
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Las Vegas, Nevada; Tuesday, September 4, 2012
| 9:30 a.m.
—0Co-
Whereupon —-
KEITH LOZEAU

having been first duly sworn to testify to the truth, was

with you. I'm sure you talked about this with your counsel

but -- and you are represented by counsel, is that correct,
Jennifer --

A. Uh-huli.

Q. —-— Rebinson's here?

A S Ao S P ST AL L o - Aot 45 PR e YT e e R R Ty hara s+ Kb B 2 TS ST B sy
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examined and testified as follows:
EXAMINATION
BY MR. BCSCHER:
Q. Can you please state your full name for the record?
A, Keitﬁ Paniel Lozeau.
Q. You'd better spell the last name for the court %
raeporter. E
A. Yes, L-0C-Z-E-A-U, é
Q. You ever been deposed before, EKeith? :
Q. This is the first time? i
A, Yes, sir.
Q. Great. I'll run through a couple of ground rules

e

ez ey i*ﬁm&xulmams«_—ﬁ—:a}h&j
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A.

Q.

Yes.

First, the ocath you just toock from the court

reporter is the same cath you take in a court of law.

It

.
P T mlac it AR

carries with it the same cobligations and penalties that the

oath would take in court. So I just want to make sure you

understand that before we get started. Okay?
A. Yes, sir. Yep.
Q. Okay. You're not going to be able to remember

everything that I ask you about today, I'm sure, and I don't
want you to guess at anything. I don't want you speculating
or guessing at the questions I'm asking. But I am entitled to
your best reccllection. 8o to the extent that you remember

anything related tec the questions I've asked, I'm entitled to

know that, but don't guess at something. If you don't know,

vou don't know, just let me know that. Okay?
A. Okay.
Q. The court reporter is going to make a transcript

about what we're talking about today, my questions and your

answers. Coufie things related to that. I will do my best
not to ask a follow-up question while you're still answering,
if you would do me the .same courtesy of not answering when I'm

asking a cquestion. She can't transcribe us both talking at

the same time. Okay?
Aa. Understood.
Q. Along the same lines, your lawyer may object, may

Bele v bl e et st b SRR S U G e A =t e S £ g e bt e
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tell you not to respond to one of my questions. I don't think
I've got anyth?ég like that in here, but she may make anl
objection for the.:ecord. Let her finish before you say
anything or -- and I'1ll try to do the same, give her the same

courtesy as well. Okay?

A. Fair enough. §

Q. The court reporter can't transcribe head nods, head §
shakes. ;

A. fwitness nodding.}

Q. Just like that.

A. Right. Understood. Understood. §

Q. Audible responses are going to be great for her. If %

you need me to clarify any of my questions, if tﬁere's
something I a;kéd that you don't understand, which is very
likely at some point in the morning, just ask me to clarify
something because it's very likely that -- I know exactly what
I'm talk -- what I'm asking about and you're going to hear a
question that I think is really artfully asked of you, and
you're going to be like, I don't have any idea what you're
talking about, Brian. Please clarify that. And I'd be happy
to do that. Okay?

A. Ckay. Thank you.

Q. This is not -- I know that we're under a little bit

of a time crunch today, you need to be somewhere this

afternoon. That said, I don't want this to be an endurance

PP Aoy B gy el i/ S 7 gt ey
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contest, If you need to run down the hallway to the restroom,
get something to drink, anything like that, we can take a
It's not a big deal.

five—-minute break. Just let me know and

say, hey, can we take a quick break, and we'll go off the

racord and take a quick break. All right?
A, Cool.
Q. Kind of related to what I said earlier, your counsel

may make objections for the record at some point during this
proceeding. Unless she -- however, unless she instructs you
not to answer my question, let her make the objection. I may

or may not respond. And then go ahead and answer the question

at that point., Okay?
A. Okay.
Q. Cool.

Are you on any medication today that would prevent
you from giving your best testimony?

A, No.

Q. Is there any other reason why you can't give your

best testimony today?

e ke

Let me ask you, other than speaking to your attorney

A. No. :

Q. Don't have a cold or a flu or anything? é

A, Othep_than a three-day weekend, everything's fine. %

Q. . I've got that same problem working for me this §
morning. 3
|
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have you done anything to prepare for this deﬁosition this
morning?

A, I went through back -- excuse me. I went back
through some qﬁ my e-mails from the time period, but there was
a lot of ﬁhings that were frankly verbal, um, leading up to a
lot of this very early on. 8So I -- there's not -- there
wasn't a lot of preparation I was able to do, so I had to do
gome review of some e-mails but that's about it.

Q. Sure. .And that's part of the reason that we're
taking a depositioﬁ today, because a lot of this was verbal
and there were meetings and whatnot and I just need to know
kind of what happened.

Other than your counsel have you spoke -- did you

speak to anybody about your deposition today?

A. No.
Q. Nobédy‘at the company? E
A, At Cashman? %
s
Q. Yeah. é
A. There's a couple people at Cashman that know I'm !
here. My supervisor, Joel Larson, and Shane Norman, who
you've already deposed I think, so -- but other than that, no.
0. Shane was the one I was kind of -- did you talk to

Shane at all about the substance of what you wexe coming here
to do teday, or does he just know that you’'re here?

A, He just knows I'm here.

T T T e R T R
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Q. Anything substantive you talked about with anybody

e
By~ —vay

at Cashman other than, hey, I've got to go take this
deposition? I'm going to this deposition, I'm going to be ocut
of the office for a few hours?

A. Yeah -- 1no.

Q. Okay. Did you look at —~- other than the e-mails we

I
L3115 T S oo LA g 1 7o | e amr -

Just talked about, did you look at any deocuments to prepare

a—

for this deposition?

A. No.

MR. BOSCHEE: I'm going to mark as the first

exhibit, it's the amended, submitted depo notice. é
{Exhibit No. 1 marked.) ﬁ
Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) Take a loock at this exhibit. This

is an amended deposition notice that we sent out, which is why r
|

you're here today.

A. Uh~huh. ]

Q. Do you recall receiving a copy of this? i
A. Yes, sir. ;
Q. Go to page 3. %
yiy (Witness complying.}

Q. Execluding items three and four, which we'll talk
about in just a second, are you -—- to the best of your
understanding are you the person most knowledgeable from
Cashman with respect to items one, two, five, six, seven, and

eight? And take a second.

©48-~2595
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A. Likely so. §

Q. Okay. I'm going to mark the next - keep that in %
front of you. z
A. Okay. §

Q. I have another exhibit that I just received this é
morning. I'm literally going to ask you one question. g
(Exhibit No. 2 marked.) %
Q. (BY MR. BOSCﬁEE) Okay. -I don't know that you've %
actually seen this letter before. You may have. E
A. Nope. %

Q. Oﬁay. My question to you is, without going back to :
items three and four in your -- in the deposition notice, i
relates to insurance policies and insurance claims basically. %
My understanding from this letter is that you are not the !
person most knowledgeable from Cashman as to insurance-related §
igsues; is that correct? §
A. That is correct. i

:

Q. Just to save us some time because I've now deposed %

two folks over gt Cashman and I don't want to have to keep %
doing this, do you happen to know off the top of your head who i
I would need to talk about insurance-related issues, who that ;
person might be? %

If you don't know, you don't know. That's fine. i
I'm just trying to save everybody a little bit of time going

forward.

et it or o8 W AL D1
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AL
Q.
A,

perscn.

Q.

A,
Q.
A.

Q.

AL

© ¥ ©

available

v o O F

i v, e o by s L e b

LITIGATION SERVI

There's one of two people.

S

Okay.

And the only reason I say it's one of twe pecople is

we had some turnover. Our previous CFC would have been the

Uh-huh.
Our new CFO was not present when all this happened.
Okay.

So his npame is Lee Vanderpool. The president of the

company is Mike Pack, and Mike at the end of the day might be

the best person tc discuss insurance and that kind of —-

Mike Pack was the CFO at the time?

No,iﬁé'is president.

Okay i=--

And he has been president throughout.

Who was the CFO at the time?

Jim Mceore.

Jim Moore.

And quite frankly, I'm not sure Jim Mcore would be
to be deposed or not because he has terminal cancer.
That would probably be no.

Yes.

Okay. I assume -- is that why he left the company?
That is.

Ckay.

A YT i P e e N AT e e
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Page 12
A. So I'm sorry to just give kind of an ohtuse answer,
but that's -- that's the situation.
Q. No, that -- that stinks. Okay.
Well, it could be ~- it could be something where

counsel may pick up the phone and ask a question or two and
get to the bottom of this, but I don't éant -= I'm certainly
not going tq Qrag‘him in for that.

Okay. But other -- other than the insurance, who we

may need to talk to Mike or Lee about, you're good to go on

everything else in the depo -- in Exhibit 1 there?
1 A, Yes, sir.
Q. What is your position with Cashman? i
A. I am the sales and rental manager of the power %

5 division.

i
Q. Okay. And how long have you had that position? §
;
A, Six years. %
Q. Okay. Did you have a different position with the
company prior to that?
A, I was just a sales rep.
Q. Okay. What are your -~ as -- as manager of the
power division, what are your job responsibilities with that !
position for thé last six years or so? %
A, All of our account managers statewide report to me, §
and basically I'm responsible for growing our sales and rental f
business, ;
§
T — H
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‘ i

Q. Okay. How long have you been employed with Cashman g
6verall? n
A. Sorry, 1 have to think because I left for two years. §

H

Overall about 19 years.
Q. Well, walk me through that. You started with

Cashman when?

M 3212 o U S L 2L B b e i o} 3 3% 8

A. '91. Left in '97.
Q. Okay .
A. Came back in '899. Been with them ever since.
Q. Wha£ did you do with them from '91 to *977?
AL I was a technician for a good part of the time, and

when I left I was a salesperson.
Q. What were your job responsibilities as technician?

Walk me through a typical day in the life of a Cashman

technician. _
A, Okay. We repair anything that we sell, and that's
primary Caterpillar products but there ~-~ there's some other

products associated with that too. T worked on generators,
electrical eguipment, engines, some machinery, You know, the
idea was to get things running before warranty repairs,
startups, those kind of things.

Q. OCkay. And that was what you did before you bacome a
sales rep?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. And when did you kind of transition from tech

- alinire i T e T e T T TR
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:

into sales? g

A. I believe it was 1995. §

Q. Okay. And then when you came back in 99, werelyou E

again a sales rep or -- é

A. I was - %

Q. Okay. ;

%

A. -~ yes. Q

Q. Okay. Anq you've had that until about six years t

ago? %
A. Correbﬁ.

Which wouid be 2006, 2007, sometime in there?
A. Yes.
Q. With respect to your current job, does your current
job require any of your, I guess, technical background or your
background as a technician? Does that come into play with

what you do now?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. How so?

A, What we do is ~- the products and services that we
sell _- everything is a very technical sale, so it is

tremendously helpful to be abhle to fall back on that
background and have an understanding when I have somebody
telling me somefhing in the field that they have going on that
I -- I have a reasonable knowledge of the challenges that they

have and what they need to do to fix them.
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Not to mention, prior to the sale I can have a

discussion with architects and engineers and contractors and

S e AL AL P e

those kinds of things and talk them through what they're
buying, why they're bﬁying it, and what we're going to have
to -- what challenges and opportunities we'll faée during_
installation and start-up.

Q. Okay. With respect to séeeifically the City Hall
project -- and that’'s pretty much what we're going to be

talking about today.

arguing about a little bit with the judge. But there's some

A, Uh-huh.
o. -~ do you have a general familiarity with the
start-up -- well, your word -- start-up, installation, ah, %
requirements for -~ for what's going on over there right now? %
A. Yes. %
Q. Ckay. " And what I'm thinking-of specifically are -- é
there's some codes that counsel and I are still -- still i
;
<

codes that are -- as I understand, are required to get things
up and running over there. Do you have a familiarity with
that?

A. Generally speaking, yes. And the reason I say
generally speaking is —-

Q. That's :fine.

A. -— each municipality has their own rules and

regulations.  And then sometimes the design engineer has input

_— M - — U
e —————— e ———
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into that. And so they're not unfortunately universal to
every project.

Q. Okay. Well, I guess what I'm ~- what I'm wondering,
specifically with respect to this project, my understanding‘is
that -- that there is some concerns or some issues with --
with getting this -- at this stage, like tomorrow, getting
this stuff started up and installed and runniné with these
codes today. Could you -- could you explain to me what -- if
you know, what your concerns are with respect to that?

A, Only to the extent that we (indicating) discussed it
on the phone, and there's -—- there's two —-- |

MS. ROBINSON: I'm going to objeét —
Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE)} I don't want to know anything -~ I

don’t want to know anything you discussed with Jennifer. I

don't want to know anything that -- any attorney/client
communication.
M5. ROBINSON: And I'm going to object to the form

of your question. Maybe it's a little vague. If you can

R
A o 2R ST TSR LT o 2 o 3 v [y 3 P (e s

rephrase. "Issues,™ 1 don't know.
MR. BOSCHEE: I'm sure - okay. <Concern was the
real -- was the word I was lLooking at.
Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE} You guys have some -- you guys

have some codes that ara required to, as I understand it, get
the stuff over at City Hall up and running, correct?

A. Typically, vyes.

S f s £ 200 £ O sy T L
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Evesd ik, 2 b

Q. Okay .
A. And I say typically because I have no direct
knowledge of the status of the equipment, what's been done,

what’s not been_done -—

Q. Right.

A. —-— and what they're requiring.

Q. Well, going back in time, assuming -- I don't want
to say assuming but ~-- you guys at some point stopped working
on this projecﬁ‘for -~ because of nonpayment, correct?

A, Correct.

Q. At that point before anything else had happened, you

quys had some codes that would have been used to get the stuff

started, installed, and running, correct?

A. Codes can have twc different definitions.

Q. Tell me what they are. You're the techniecal guy and
I'm not.

A. So there's -~ there's -+~ there's National Electrical

Code and fire protection codes.

Q. Sure.

A. And those are -- those are code requirements that
are fegulations, laws. And then there's cedes that are

associated with communication protccols that we use for the

~equipment to be akle te talk to each other. So there's -- I'™m

not sure which codes it is that they're asking about. That's

where I'm at. I'm not sure —— I'm nct sure what's holding

U
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this them up at this point. I don't know.
Q. Okay. Well, I'm just thinking out loud here. Both

sets of those codes would probably be -- probably pretty handy

By e W;u_wpm

in terms of getting everything up and running, I would think,

wouldn't they?

A, The codes -- the protocols -- the communication

protocols for the equipment would be absolutely required. The

codes for the fire protection‘—— it's NFPA, National Fire
Protection Association, and the National Electrical Code and
Clark County firé éode or City of Las Vegas fire code,
depending upon which it is, they often vary from job to jeb.

Q. Okay.

A, So it's hard for me to say if that's what their hold
up is, specifically what the hold up is. &And what we do -~
what would typically happen in a project like this is, once we
get to the latter stages of the job, there's meetingsrbetween
us and the contractor aand the inspectors, and the inspectors
sort of lay out what specifically they're looking for to meet
the codes.

And then a lot of times we have to make adjustments
to our bills of materials or specifically how —-- we may have
an image at the beginning of the job of how we're going to
address the codes. What that looks like at the end of the
project could be something very different.

Q. Okay.

v
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A, Does that help?

Q. It does a little bit. I‘ﬁant to talk about the
protocol calls specifically, because I think I know what
you're talking about with fire codes. And that's kind of a
moving target a little bit.

A Uh~huh.

Q. But'the protocol codes, if those aren't -- if those
aren't in, the equipment can't kind of communicate with each
other. What is thelnet effect of that? I mean what -- what
happens if thééé codes aren't used at installation?

A, A qualified person might be able to make the
equipment work tc a certain extent, but they probably wouldn't
be able to make it werk to its full capability.

Q. Ckay. Would there be -- I mean when you say it
wouldn't be able to work to its full capability, what are some
things that might not -- might not work? Would there be

safety concerns?

A, it depends.

Q. Okay.

A. And if the —-- one of the things that we talked
about -- one of the —- one of the more important functions of

this system is to be able to parallel the two generator sets.
tegether. If the bullding lead doesn't exceed the capacity of
one generator, you could theoretically lock one genarator out,

use just one generator, and you could bypass a lot of that
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protocol and communications that make the system woxk.

If tbe‘load does exceed the rating of one generator
set and you need both generator sets, then you're —-- then
those codes become absolutely necessary.

Q. Okay. I'm not —— I'm not an engineer or a
contractor, per se, but I've been over to City Hall. It's a
pretty big ?roject. I mean, fair to say that it's going to --
it at least contemplates both generators being needed over

there, deesn't it? I mean it's.

A It was certainly designed that way.
Q. Right.
A, It's —— that would be something the design engineer

could tell you better than I could.
Q. Sure.

"But when —- when you guys were supplying the
equipment, it was certainly contemplated it was going to be --
that both generators were going to be used over there, wasn't
it?

A, Yes, but that could be for a'different reason, In a

lot of cases they'll have two generator sets for redundancy.

Q. Sure.
A. So they wonft —— the load doesn't exceed the
capacity of both generators -- or excuse me, of one generator.

You have the second generator in case the first generator

fails.
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the design engineer would probably have to have a discussion

. Page 21
Q. Kind of a backup?

A. And -- and —— and -- right. And one generator can
2
still carry the entire building. So -- and that's why I said §
|
0}
i
i

with you about that because T don't know if they had a —- if

they had two generators for capacity or two generators for

redundancy.
Q. Okay.
A, Twé kind of different things.
Q. That makes sense. And it's a government job so

redundancy wouldn't be completely out of the question.
But assuming that -- if it wasn't -- if it wasn't a
radundancy situation, if it was actually two generators were

required, then those codes are absolutely going to be

necessary for them to communicate with each other?

A. That is correct,

—
>
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Q. We may get back to some of that. I have completely

gone afield of my outline of questions, so I'm going to try to

get back on track here.

Refore the City Hall project, how many times have

you worked with Mojave Electric?

A. Oh, boy.

Q. Estimate? I don't want you to have to count them on
your fingers.

A, Yeah. Probably a few dozen.
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Q. Projects?

Q. QOkay. How about_Whitiﬁg—Turner? é

A. Indirectly, probably a dozen‘times. i say indirect i
because we don't usually deal directly with the general é
contractor, h

Q. Rigﬁt. Usually deal with -- g

a. lMojave Electrical. ?

Q. —-— wiﬁh like —= %

A. Yes. |

Q. Do you have any idea how many accounts you've opened
for -~ for Mojave off the top of your head?

A, How many —-—

Q. Shane had ~- Shane had an estimaté, and I was
wondering if you maybe had a little more -- yeah, I mean how
many different -- different specific accounts you've opened
with -- with Mojave? :

A, Oh, you knoew what. I don't know. é

Q. Dozens? E

A. Well, T guess depends on how you look at it. Are g
you talking about physical accounts, or you talking about %
projects? i

%

Al Oh, projects. Yeah, probably -~ I'm going to say
three dozen.
Q. Okay. You persocnally worked on a lot of those

projects?
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:

A. Yes. :

. :

Q. Prior to this -- and obviously this is a bit of a —— §
have you ever had any problems with Mojave prior to this

incident? g

]

A, The only problem we ever had with Mojave - and this

has been more of a recent thing in the last couple of years —-—

T R L

they've had somewhat of a different definition associated with

lien releases. And at times they've asked us to sign lien

releases when we still haven't received full payment. BAnd
that's -- 1t seems to be related to one specific person that
they hired a couple years ago. And prior to that we never had

a problem with Mojiave ever.

Q. Okay.

A, Paid.like clockwork.

Q. Do you know that persén's name off the top of your
head?

A. Her first name is Francis.

Q. Okay.

A, I do not know her last name. :

Q. You don’t even need to tell me anymore. é

A. Okay.

Q. I do know her last name.

You guys 'use conditional lien releases though, don't |

you? |

A, Typically.

I i I
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Page 24
Q. Okay.
A. I mean there's —- there's conditional and there's
unconditional.
Q. Sure.
A. So -- but we have -- again, mofe recently we've had

situations where she would hold a check until we signed

conditional and/or unconditional releases for unrelated H

projects, which is very —- well, let's just say it's not ¢
consistent —-

Q. Okay. ‘

A, —— wifh industry practice. And -— but to collect

money we did what we had to do paperwork wise to satisfy what
she was asking for. And this -- quite frankly, this is more

of a Shane question than mine. He has meore direct knowledge

of a lot of that that was going on. But —- but I do know

there was some irregularities, and we were really struggling

with how to —- how to work through that process.
Q. When you're describing —- and I talked to Shane |
about something related to this. 2nd I den't —-- if this is

getting afield of your knowledge, please tell me. But when

you're talking about, okay, there's payment due on this

project and you've got a lien release for this. BAnd basically |
H

vou —- what you typically do in the industry is you swap check

!
for a lien release, as I understand; is that right? %

h. For the same project?
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Q. For the same project, correct.
A, Yes.
Q. And what I under -- as I understand what you're

saying is, okay, that's fine for this project. But then you
got a project over here, and they're holding your money on
this one as well loocking for —-- locoking for a lien releasé
when you baven't been paid yet. 1Is that what you're telling
me?

a. It appeared from conversations that I had with Shane

that that was what they were doing.

Q. Okay. And how often did that happen?

A. It seemed to happen on every job after she got
hired. |

Q. Ok§y. I guess the obvious ¢uestion to me is ——- I
mean why -- if -~ if the payment wasn't made yet, if you guys

weren't paid in full, why were you giving unconditional lien
releases?

MS. ROBINSON: I'm just going to object. It's going
outside his notice forlhis person most knowledgeable. So are
you asking him as the person most knowledgeable of Cashman, or
did you already depay =-- depcse Shane as the person meost
knowledge on this issue,‘are you asking him for his own
personal knowledge?

MR. BOSCEEE: I'm asking for his own personal

knowledge because he brought it up.
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MS. RDBIﬁSON: Right. That —--

.MRT BOSCHEE: I mean that's —- I mean I understand.
But-Shane ~- Shane painted a very different -—-. I mean not a
very different, but Shané sald something a little different,

i just want to make sure that I understand exactly what --
what this witnes; is talking about because I just want —- more
of a clarification than anything.

Q. {BY MR. BOSCHEE) To the best of your understanding
why -- you know why -~ why were doing -- why were you gufs
doing that?

A. To the best of my understanding we had had a
long—term,relq?iqnshié with Mojave Electric. We had no
history of never not being paid. 2and so we felt like if
that's what we needed to do to accommodate a valuable
customer, then -— then we were willing to do that.

Q. Okay.' Again, to the best of your understanding,
prior to this situation, we'll call it, did you guys evef have

a payment problem with Mojave? Have you ever been not paid by

Mojave?
A, Never not paid, no.
Q. Okay .
A Slow sometimes, but never not paid.
Q. Right. Scmetimes -- ﬁhe situation we're talking

about, you know; a little bit of slow pay, little bits, but

never a non-payusent issue, correct?

T e A LT e RN Y A ) S Y Y S M T LTS 2 e e e T g A T T A S AT U s o A

JA 00001935

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648—2595




oy o W N

W

10
11

12

13
14
15
16
17
ig
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

KEITH LOZEAU - 9/4/2012
Page 27

A Correct.
Q. Okay. And again, you're usually one or two steps
removed Whiting, but had you ever had this situation with

Whiting before, just not getting paid?

A, Not to my knowledge.
Q. Okay. With respect to -~ and again the -- the lien
releases and the -- and the payment kind of Francis holding

the checks, as I understand it, that resulted in a little bit
of a slow -- a slowdown effect, but you guys always did get
paid for the work that you performed prior to this project,
right, as far as you know?

A. As far as I know.

Q. Ckay. Now, on this project you guys, as I
understand it, contracted directly with a company called CAM
Consulting, righf? -

A. Correct.

Q. And they were -- I mean I always look for the

politically correct way to say this, but I mean it's the term
used in the industry I think, minority econtractor, are you

familiar with that?

A, Yes.

Q. - That was their role here, correct —-—
A. Yes.

Q. -— CAM Consulting?

A Yes.

JA 00001936
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Q. Are you familiar generally with the requirements for
minority contracts? I mean why did they end up being used in
this pro -- in projects like this?

A. That‘s a broad guestion, but to --

In your experience?

A, To make it.sort of simple, a lot of government
projects require a certain amount of equipment and services to
be purchased Ey -— from, excuse me, minority entities. And —
and I don't recall what the percentage was, but ; can remember
being told early on by ——- by -- Peter Fergen is the vice
president of Mojave that does a lot of their purchasing and
those kinds of things. He told me very early on that we were
-— that there was a percentage of the project that had to be
purchased by ~~ from minority entities and their intention was

to purchase this equipment through a minority entity.

Q. Okay.
A S0 I -- so we -~ does that answer your question?
Q. I think so.

You've dealt with minority contractors on ¢other
projects, correct?
A. Yes. Not a lot, but yes.
Q. Was this -~ was this scenario or was this experience
considerably different than your experiences on other projects

with minority contractors, obviously other than not getting

paid?
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A. The obyioﬁs exception?
Q. Other than that how did you like the play,
Mrs. Lincoln, but -- yeah, up to that point?
A. You gét me with the Mrs. Lincoln.
Q. Sorry.
A, It's okay.
Um, no, I -- I would say in the few instances that
we had to do —-—— I think the only thing that was different is

in most cases we dealt with a larger company, as opposed to a
very small entity such that CAM was.

Q. Okay. Wow, I talked to Shane a lot about the -- the
-— kind of credit process and things like that. We'll talk
about that very briefly in a few minutes. But as I
understand, you worked with -- you were kind of on the ground
and worked with CAM kind of directly in terms of the equipment

transfer, is that fair, or not really?

A. No, not really. I -- no.

Q. Tell me what was your experience. What did you do
with CaM?

A, The only time I actually met Angelo was when we met

over at Mojave's office to discuss transacting this deal
through them. . -

Q. Okay.

A And -- and actually I'm not even sure -- I don't

even recall talking to him on the phone after that. It was a
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1

pretty straightforward discussion. We discussed the finances,
the percentage, and came to an agreement, shook hands, and

that was pretty much it.

would call logistics of the project, everything was transacted

Q. That was that?
A. - Yeah. :

|
Q. Okay. é
A, In terms of equipment getting to the site, what I g

directly with the Mojave folks.

Q. Okay. That makes sense.
Did you participate -- when I say "you" I mean you
or anybody else at Cashman -- participate in the selection of

CAM as the minofity contractor here?

A, Yes.

Q. Okay. What -- how so0? Walk me through the kind of_
picking them process, if you will. That was a terrible
question but.

A. No, that's okay. 1I'll do the best I can here.

We had -- eoriginally all of our equipment was going
to be purchased through a company called NEDCO, which we had
done this with before. And NEDCC's a large company and
there's —— you know, there's generally no problems there. But
they wanted —— this was a very tight competitive bid job.
There was not a lot of money in there to be spiffing (sic)

companies for pushing paper through their books. &nd what

il _—
S e —
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NEDCO wanted for a percentage was noit going to be acceptable.

So we were talking to ancther group that was just in
the process of getting their disadvantaged business license,
and they were ——jthey were experiencing delays getting that
done. And.Pete contacted me a couple of times and said, you
know, what are we doing? Aré -= is that group going to work?
And you know it didn't seem like it was going to.

And then he called me and said, listen, we had this
guy come in, We're using him on a couple other things. Would
you like to meé;rhim? Maybe you could work something out with
him. So -- and I'm not sure how the meeting was actually
arranged. I doﬁ}t know if he was already there. And —- but I
went over there very sﬁortly after the phone call and met
Angelo at their office. 2And Pete introduced us in their
conference room, and we sat down and had a discussion.

Q. Okay. And after that discussion you were

comfortable using, I guess CAM, but I mean Angelo? After you

met him you were comfortable using them going forward?

A, I'm not sure if comfortable is the right word. His
documentation was in order. His story seemed legitimate. And
by story he talked about being in the Army Rangers, which I

guess maybe wasn't even the case. But he'd been wounded and

T PP P T R o Ty T = e

different things, and so he had gotten licensed by this
federal cffice to be a disadvantaged business. And you know

seemed like =- certainly I think all of us as Americans want

I ——
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to support people who have come back from wars and these kinds

of things. So it seemed like somebody that we want to try and

L TP G R AL Fan i

dc business with. If we have to put money in somebody's
pocket, I would rather put meney in somebody like that's

pocket, rather than you know somebody that maybe deoesn't need

it quite so much. %
et :
Q. Sure. g
A. Does that make sense? g
Q. Yeah. I think I understand what you're saying. i
A. Okay.
Q. and I don't disagree with your rationale on that.
Let me ~~ you had the meeting, and it's Mojave and
you and Angele. Did you have any conversations -- I know you

didn't with Angelo, but did you have any conversations with
anybody at Mojave -- okay, Angelo leaves —- Xind of, okay, you
left the room now I can talk about you behind your back

conversation. Did you have any conversations like that with

Tt L Lt st L LR AT PO IR TRy st =L . ST RIS LI, bl Sinbaran 3o

anybody at Mojaﬁe about Angelo and CAM and any concerns you

might have using them, you personally?

D et Boetk oL a1 £ * ©

AL No, neot really.
Q. Okay.
A. Not -~ not —-- not relative to concerns. It was é

basically, okay, he's willing to do it for what we're loocking
te spend. And so let's go ferward, let's get paperwork

written up.- At that peint the job was getting very

——
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compressed. We needed to get some paperwork going and do some

different things or we were going to start missing some

milestones.

. So it was -- it was -- we jumped right into, let's

§

H

H

:

: H
Q. Okay. . %
get things going. ;
!

!

{

Q. Time was getting tight at that point? |
A. Yes, sir. :
Q. Okay. Now, when I talked to Shane he -~ he -- he g

discussed having some concerns about the c¢redit or in his case I_

lack of credit that CAM had. Did you ever have a conversation

with Mr. Norman abgut that?

A. Not specifically, no. I mean understanding was that

I
H
i
]
:
é
there was going. to be —- and this was something that Pete and ?
- i
I had talked about it —- that there was going to be an §
exchange of checks pretty -- I mean we understood the fact 3
that -- that Angelo didn't have three quarters of a million g
dollars to lay out and then wait for payment. We understocd h
that he was going to take payment from Mojave and then turn i
&

right around and cut Cashman a check for our portion. So F
H

there was —— I don't think there was ever any confusion in --

in that regard. And that was our understanding of what was

going teo happen.

You know, Shane in his typical process had -- had

Angele fill oukt a credit app. He also ~- I'm pretty sure —-

—————
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understood thersame, and we moved forward.

Qf I tbink you answered -- you indirectly answgred
this, but I just.want to clarify. TYou had never worked with
CAM or Angelo Carvalho before? Cashman hadn't before this
project, had --

A We had net, that's correct.

Q. Okaykm And again, if you could quantify it, um,
disadvantaged bgsinesses, minority contractors, how often do

vou think vou'd worked with them on other projects? I think

the word you used was handful but —-- less than ten?

A. Definifely less than ten, prcbably iess than five.
Q. Just a couple of times?

A. Yes.

Q. Have you ever encountered anything like this? and T

say the "anything'iike this," a failure to pay by a minority

contractor?
A, No.
Q. Okay. Did you -- aside from what you knew cor didn't

know about CAM, you talked a little bit about Angelo
persconally. And he told you he was an Army Ranger and things
like that. Did you know any -- did you ever know anything
else about Angelo Carvalho personally, aside from he's working
with this company, he's doing this? Did you do any other
background check on him or anything like that?

A. With the exception of. verifying his status with
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the —— and I'm sorfy, I'm forgetting the name of the
government entity that he was -- he was sponsored by.

Q. Sure. |

A. I —- with the exception of verifying that that
letter was legit, had no other knowledge of him.

Q. So basically just to summarize, just so I've got the
lay of the land: Time's getting tight. NEDCO wasn't going to
work out. Y¥You had someone else that was having a hard time
getting a disadvantaged status; is that right?

A. ihat's correct.

Q. Okay. And get a call from Mojave. Say, hey, we
worked with this guy on this other project. Why don't you
come in and meet him, see if you have a comfort level. You go
iﬂ, have the one meeting at Mojave's office. Everybody shakes
hands. Submit the paperwork. And then you just kind of go

forward £from there -—-—

A. Yes, sir.
Q. ~- correct?
Let's take a look at —-- now things start getting --

going south.
(Exhibit No. 3 marked.)

Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) I suspect you'll recognize this
check. Take a second to look at it.

A. . I might be familiar with it.

Q. I assume you've seen this check before?
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A. - Yes, sir.

Q. Okay. This is -- you recognize this as the check
from CAM for the full 755,893.89%9, correct?

Al Correct.

Q. “And that was; as I understand from documents that
have been filed and other things, that was the amount that --
that you guys were owed on this project for the equipment
provided, correct?

A. I don't have our invoice in front of me, but T --
it's —~ I belié;e it's correct.

Q. We'll look at those later, but it's close. Okay.

As I understand it, Shane Norman received this
check; is that right?

A. Yes.

Q. Okay. Do you have any understanding -- I talked to
Shane about his, and you may not know. Do you have any
understanding as to why you guys accepted a postdated check
from Mr. Carvalho? .

A. I -—- honestly, no.

Q. Okay. Did he ever communicate anything airectly to
anybody at Cashman, you or otherwise, other than Shane, any
reason why he would need to give you quys a postdated check? :

A. No . §

Q. Okay; Did you ever have any conversations with ;
Shane Norman about the fact that you guys had accepted a §

%
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postdated check from -- from CAM?
A. No.
Q. Okay. I'm guessing it's not something you typically

do, Cashman typically does, accepting postdated checks in
situations like this?

A. Not fo my knowledge.

Q. Okay. You testified earlier that it was your -~
that everybody's understanding kind of was: Mojave's paying
CAM, CAM's paying you guys, and that's going to be a fairly,
you know, simultaneous process, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. . Okéy. Did it concern you that this check was Qated
a handful of days after ——.well, let me ask you this: Do you
have an understanding as to whether Mojave paid CaM the
755,893%? Do you‘have an understanding as to whether that

actually happened?

L, I believe that happened, yes.
Q. Ckay. And then --
A, I haven't seen that check, so T -— but I believe

it's happened.
Q. Okay. I. can get‘it for you as an exhibit, but I
don't think it necessarily matters.
And then CAM gives you guys a check, but it's dated
a few days later. Did that give —- would that be something

that would cause you —-- typically in a situation like this
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cause you concern?
MS. ROBINSON: 1I'm golng to object to incomplete
hypothetical, and he already stated he had no knowledge.
MR. BOSCHEE: Well -- okay. I'm saying -—
THE WITNESS: I —
MR. BOSCHFE: -- as to this personally but --

THE WITNESS: I was on vacation when this

happened --
Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE} O©h, okay.
A. -— 50 I didn't know —- I didn't know any of this was

even going on until T got back -~

o. Okay.
A. -- a week later.
Q. You get back and there's a step payment on this

check, correct?

a. Welcome back. Yes.
Q. Exactly. Again, thank you for that vacation.
Do you guys have —-- I mean -- I say you quys, I keep

saying that, I mean Cashman. Do you have a procedure,
standard procedure, when a creditor fails to fund like -- as

"in a situwation like this?

A. You know, that's probably a question best asked of
Shane.
Q. Okayi’

A, I'm not really in the -— I'm not typically involved

—
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directly in the collections business.

Q. Okay. ﬁell, let me ask you a different way, because
I did ask Shane this. Are you aware of any protections that
the company has to try to protect itself f;om something like

this happening?

A.  Certainly the lien process.
Q. Right.
A. You know, in a lot of cases, situation like this, we

would ask for a joint check. BAnd I believe we did. B2And
again, this was Shane's, so I'm -- this is a discussion with
Shane, so it's secondhand.

Q, Sure.

A But my uﬁderstanding is that he did ask to do a
joint check and was told that that was a problem. And I'm not
sure he was ever told why 1t was problem, but they didn*t want
to do it.

Q. Ckay. Were you ever told by anybody why a joint

check was a—pfoblem?

A. The ‘one time I had a discussion with Pete Fergen
about it early on he -- I think he had a concern that a jeoint
check would create a -- what am I looking for -- a potential

inconsistency in the process of using a disadvantaged
business. He was afraid the paperwork wouldn't look

appropriate.

Q. Ckay. These -~-
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A. That was my impression of what he answered.

Q. Sure.

—
EE=T—— T T e

These other jobs that you had worked on with

disadvantaged owners, with minority contractors, on those jobs

did you receive joint checks, or did it go the process like

this where the minority contractor got paid and then paid you?

A. Minerity contractor got paid and paid us. We were
usually dealing with people of -- of greater financial
strength.

Q. But the process -- .

A. And quite frankly, this was easily the biggest job

we had ever done in this process as well,

o 101023 1 L DS B 521 21 A2 LAY 00 I b L oo L i S0t Y =

Q. Right.
h. We were usually working in the 30— to $50,000 range.

It was a completely different scale.

—
T A e Y A e b L KA G

Q. Three quarters of a million dollars was a little
bit --

A. Correct.

Q. Was the outlier in that?

A. -~ Right.-

Q. But the process, the actual process, was the same in

the other jobs as it was here where the minority contractor

gets paid, then you get paid? Kind of, you know, one check,

e WAL A LIS o 0F B £ b T e o T A AR I T

then another check?

A, Correct.
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Q. Okay. As I understand it, no one else from Cashman
ever accompanied Mr. Carvalho to a financial institution or
anytﬂing.like that, it was just Shane that was dealing with
hiﬁ directly, cor?éct? As far as you know?

A. As faf as I know.

Q. Now, going back to the joint check question, if you
will, you worked on a few dozen projects with Mojave, have you
ever gotten a joint check from Mojave on any of those

projects? That'you‘can recall?

A. No, not that I can recall.
Q. Okay. B2And they -- and I understand they wouldn't —--
again, Pete Fergen may have said -- but for whatever reason

they didn't want to do a joint check on this project, and you
guys proceeded anyway, right? I mean it wasn't -- that didn't
cause you guys pause in not -- in not finishing - you know,
going forward and giving the lien release, did it?

- A, Did it not give us pause? It was certainly not what

we would have preferred.

Q. Ckay.
A, So to say that it -- it probably did give us a
iittle bit of pause. But you know in -- in my discussions

with Shane after the fact, as he said, you know, we don't
usually have a problem with $750,000 checks bouncing, it's

usually the $3,000 checks that bounce. So it just —- it just

really at that point hadn't entered our mind that somebody
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would do something like this.
Q. Okay. We'll get to this in a minute as well but --

vou did supply an unconditional lien release in exchange for

220 Aol g e XL 33 IRV LT 10112 -

-- not a joint check, but the check from CAM, correct?

a. I don't know. I wasn't there.

Q. That wasn't you? !

A, That Qasn‘t me.

Q. Do you have an understanding as to whether that
happened? I mean I don't -- we talked to Shane about this at
length but. .

A. I don't know.

Q. Okay. In tha absence of a joint check, are you

aware of any other precautions that you guys underteok at that

point?

A. Again, as far as I know the project was liened or
preliened.

Q. Okay .

A. Which, you know, usually is security enough on a

government project that you're going to get paid.
Q. Sure.

And a lot of thesze are -- these are probably going
to be pretty quick questions because I talked to Shane about
them a little bit, but you may have -- there were a couple.
things that he wasn't able to identify. He said you might

know.

N —

IRy

s ' B
BT o e P T e e L R Y B PO PR Ty D e BEEERER e T T ol ki s s P e R e e e ek T LR = o WP i PR PR I e PP PR PENC W A it e |

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595

JA 00001951




W b

oo B O = T & s B =

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

" KEITH LOZEAU - 9/4/2012
S Page 43

A. Okay.

Q. Are you familiar with the steps that Cashman has
taken subsequent to the two bounced checks to obtain funds
from Mr. Carvalho?

A You know, from a very high level. I know that I

AL LS 0 1T Bt Tomenr a3 T 2o e SUAE NS

personally went and knocked on his door cne day. Shane and I
both knocked eon his door cne day. We tried some very direct
things to try and physicalily collect meoney. Not to threaten
the guy, but te you know compel him te pay. And those were
obviously unsuccessful.

But.oﬁher than that whern it reached the point of
where it was beginning to become apparent that there was
something not gight, the first thing I did when I got back
from wacation is I heard about this, and I sent an e-mail to
Fete and I said should we be considering you guys stop payment
on his check, because we're -— and —— and he had changed his
e-mail address, he changed his pheone number. All the
information that I had con him from his business card that he
gave me in our initial meeting was all invalid,

Q. ’ Just so we're clear, when you say Pete, you mean
Pete Fergen?
A. Pete Fergen. Yep.

And so I e-mailed Pete and said, you know, we're

trying te reach him. We're not able to reach him. He's net

answering his phone. He's ncot answering his e-maills. WNew it

B C— Lo K2 E e A i g 2o TR SR ' N AR e Wt oA L SRS VT LR DR usigmwaaﬁﬁwmmswxj
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turned out that he had changed his phone numbers and e-mails
and T didn't know that. That's why he wasn't responding. Um,
well, I think.

But I did at that point ask Pete, ao you guys want
to consider stqppiﬁg payment on your check? &And that was —-
that was the fifst thing that came to my mind is if this guy
is going to scamper, you know, maybe we can do something real
quick to protect Mojave.

Q. Okay.

A, And so —- and I don't know -- we never verbally had
a conversation about it, and so I don't know what they talked
about internally --

Q. Okay .

A. ~— with that. But that was —- I mean it was -- at
that point I was still in the mode of it's not too late, let's
see if we can do something to protect us both. Mojave had
been a tremendous partner to us for years. I didn't want to
see them get hurt either.

S0 -- and at that point that's what it -—— it was
starting to locok like because of this -- you know, this guy
was going to skip away with our money and go lay on a beach in
Tahiti. So that was -- that was step one.

And then we had some follow-up discussions. Pete
got us some updated contact information. And that was when

Shane and I started to get sort of aggressive with -- with
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trying to chase him down and collect the money. And it really
did -— you knoﬁ, he told us some stories about being deployed
in Afghanistan and coming back in the middle of the night and
all kinds of other craziness. And we didn't -— his stories
were just plausible enough to be believable that the reason
why he was having these delays -- the réason he stopped
payment on the check was becéuse we were sending him e-mails
concerned about the funding of the check and all kinds of
other things.

It was really —-- at that point it seemed very
plausible that everything was just sort of a honest mistake
and as soon as we got him face to face and at a financial
institution he would be able to get us a check legitimately,
get us paid, and all those other things. And that's what
Shane attempted to do by going down to his bank with him with

the second check.

Q. Right.
o And then -- and then he balled at the last minute,
is my understanding. And that was when -— that was when the

game was really afoot.

Q. Okay. Other than the e-mail with Pete Fergen, did
yvou have any follow-up conversations with folks at Mojave
about.,, okay, this quy doesn't have any money in his bank

account., He's skipped off with the funds. What can we do?

A. I don't recall.
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Page 46
Q. Okay.
A, I should, but I don't.
Q. Did you have any meetings with anybedy at Mojave

about this issue?

A. I did not.

Q. Ckay. Do you have any understanding -- other than
Shane, do you have any understanding as to whether anybody

else at Cashman did, had meetings with MOJave°

A. The only meeting we had with Mojave that I recall
specifically was ~— now Shane was having discussions and those
kinds of things, and T'm sure you've got a record of those.

The only other meeting that we had was when we were
a goed bit of the way down the read and we had teld them that
we weren't going to perform startup on the equipment and those
kinds of things and things were starting to get sort of messy,
I sent an e-mail to Brian and to Troy. And I said, you know,
we've done a lot of projects together over the years -- and I
can't remember the exact words in my e-mail. I'm sure we
could find it. I

But the gist of it was, we've done a lot of projects

over the years, we've had a lot of challenges, and we've

your time to sit down and discuss this and see if there's some

i
place we can find some common ground and get this thing moving I
:

forward.
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~And I mean Troy called me within ten minutes of me
hitting the seqd button on the e-mail. He said, "Absolutely.
Come on down. Let’s talk about it."

And I went down there with my boss, Joel Larson, and
Mike Pack; our president. And we met with Brian Bugney
{phonetic) and with Troy Nelson, and we discussed the
situation where it was and_what we could do to get things
moving forward again somehow. And there really wasn't a whole
lot of resolution.in that meeting. I mean certainly Mojave
had their stance and we had ours, and I don't think we really
made a lot of progress there.

Q. Well,_let's walk through that a little bit.. Let's
~~ I want to follow up on that meeting because -- I may have
heard something different about that meeting. |

But when vyou say Mojave had their stance and we had
our stance, specifically what do you mean by that?

A. You kﬁow, they wanted us to perform startup, and
Mike basically told them that we would be gilad to perform
startup if they would cut us a check for $755,000 we were owed
and we would perform startup.

Q. Qkay. So at that point Cashman had not performed
the startup?

A, That 1s .correct.

Q. Ckay. Maybe getting back into the technician days,

what was required at that point in time to perform startup, if

LI P o R W
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you recali?

A. You know, at that stage of the game it was still
pretty early on. Mojave would =- to kind of step through at
real high level, Mojave would perform installation, which
involves puttingrthe equipment in place, hooking it up,
verifying wiring, doing some different things against the
schematics that we provided them. 1It's a pretty
straightfo;ward deal from their standpoint.

And then wé have -- we have two stages to startup,
basically. We have a technician that goes out and verifies
that the insta;}ation is correct and everything was done
correctly. He verifies wiring and —-- basically verifies
Mojave's work and makes sure that it's done to the factory
standard.

and the second part of startup is actually
physically starting to energize equipment, make eguipment
work, activate the electronics, physically start running
equipment, setting up controls, adjusting controis, doing

different things. 2and it all -- there's a checklist that we

have to do on all the pieces of equipment. 2aAnd that would be

the generators, the switchgear, the transfer switches and the

Mitsubishi UP$ that are —-- that we have checklists from the
factories that tell us the things that have to be done.
And we go through those checklists. aAnd it's

basically just verifying that everything is operating

a
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correctly and thére's no -~ there's no defects in materials of
workmanship at that point. And then when we're done |
performing those checklists, the customer signs a docuﬁent
that they've received the equipment, it's in good running
order, and it now has a viable factory warranty.

Q. And those protocol codes that we talked about

o o, B Aak LR P TP i ) 2 S8 A G 2L LAY P o e

earlier( about a half hour ago, that's part of that startup

process as well, isn't it?

I
Ty T

A. That would have been part of that process, yes.
Q. Energizing and all that --

A, | Bh—huh.

Q. -~ okay.

And that's —- and none of that, the inspection of --
of the installation or the energizing startup, any of that,

that hadn't been done when you had the meeting with Mojave,

i Ll i oL B o 4.4 ALl A A S A 1 58 AL CULLS ARt P ey AL

correct?
A. No.
Q. As to the equipment?
A. No.
Q. Asg I understand it, and correct me if I'm wrong :

Yy L R ra—

about this, but the equipment was delivered, but before you

M

guys. could go back and inspect anything or do any of the
startup, you know, -the energizing or anything, this -- this

check issue happened, and that was pretty much where you guys

stopped doing anything, correct?
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A. That is correct.
Q. Okay. Are you familiar -- Shane talked about this a
little bit, and I don't know if you're familiar with it or

not. But there was -- you guys submitted this to the -- to

the bad check department, I understand?

A Of the District Attorney's office? f

Q. Yes. %

A. Yes. Correct. %

Q. Okay.

_A. I'm not sure of the timing of that, but I know Shane
was —— that was one of his first things that he, Shane did.

Q. Are you familiar with what's happening in that casa?

I understand a Grand Jury was apparently called?

A. I testified in front of a Grand Jury. That's the

%
extent of what T know. §
. i
Q. Do you know what the proceeding was that you %
testified at, what stage of the -- of the process that was in? |
A, 1 -
Q If you don't know, you don't know. 3
A I don't know. !
Q. Ckay. That's fine. k

Do you have a general understanding of what's going

s0.

~—- what's happening with that case? Obviously, you testified ;
A. With the exception of my testimony, I have none. :

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595

JA 00001959




= W N e

(eI N o A T

10
11
12
13
14
i5
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

'KEITH LOZEAU - 9/4/2012
Page 51

Q. OCkay. Has Mojave participated in that -- in that
case at all, to the best of your knowledge?

A I don't know.

Q. QOkay, that's fine.

I want to just get into the project briefly. I'm

§

3
going to show.you ~— you're probably not going to knqw a ;ot 3
about this document,‘but I'm going to show it to you anyway. :
A. Surefu 3
(Exhibit Ne. 4 mafked.} %
' MS. ROBINSON: Can we take a break?

MR. BOSCHEE: Sure. When we come back, we'll talk %

aboﬁt Exhibit 4. -

{A brief recess was btaken.)

and has several folks work for him that handle the - that

H
!
:
!
MR. BOSCHEE: Back on the record. ;

Q. - {(BY MR. BOSCHEE) You uhdersfand you're still under

oath?

a. Yes, sir. §
Q. Okay. Off the record we had a ten-second :
i
conversation about Pete Fergen's position with Mojave. Could i
you tell me what that is? i
H
3
a. His -~ he's a vice president. He manages a lot of §
their -- he manages most of their larger projects. He does ;
their major product purchasing, handles a lot of logistics, g
;
;
!

handle the direct logistics for him.
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Q. Ckay. BAnd he was someone that you dealt with? He's l

someone at Mojave you personally dealt with a fair amount?

e

A
4 s kbbb e A L Lt e et La U 5 s

A. . For a lot of vears, yes.
Q. Right. Qkay.
Before we broke I marked CAT application for credit
for CAM Consulting as Exhibit 4. You recognize this document?

A. T do.

Ati—
[mcrwrrne iy

Q. Did you see this document prior to using CBEM on this

jeb? Did you review this document --

I

T A | UREI 2 VIS o AL b ST -/ L DAt 10

AL Nao.
-- I know Shane did?
Al No.
Q. Okay. But you had an understanding that an

Application For Credit was filled out by CAM, coxrrect?

a. T had an understanding, yes.

Q. Because otherwise if they didn't you wouldn't have
been able to use them on —— use them going forward, could you?

A Right. FEven the fact that it wasn't necessarily the

understanding that it was going to be a credit transaction, so
to speak, we weren't extending them 30-day terms —- even when
we deal with somebody on a cash basis, we have them fill cut
these applications so we have their pertinent information and
they sign, you know, that they're going to comply with our
terms and conditions and those kinds of things. i

Q. Yeah, you anticipated my next question, which is,
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kit

even though this was a cash transaction, you're still geoing to
have a minority contractor in a situatiomn like this £ill out

the credit application so that you've got the information --

A. Yes —-

Q. -— gorrect?

A. -— sir.

Q. Okay, And in this case, they filled out‘—— as I

understand the process, they fill out the Application For
Credit and then there's the -- the invoicing starts taking
pPlace from you to them, correct? I mean, there's nothing --

there's nothing in between that is there?

A, I —
Q. As far as —-—
A. You know, honestly I'm not sure. Ordinarily there

is a process of,fyou know, checking trade references and those
kinds of things. And I'm honestly not sure if Shane did that
in this case or not, understanding that it was going to be
sort of a check exchange. So I don't know the answer to that.

Q. Okay. And we did talk to Shane about that. I don't
think it necessarily matters for what we're talking about. |
But I gquess what I'm asking is: There wasn't -- there isn't
some other-documentgthat transpires between the credit
application and the beginning of invoicing that I just haven't
seen, is there, between you and CAM?

A. That -- a purchase order,.

S T AT o S R LA e ekl s e ik btk 2 53 APz b b

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595

JA 00001962

LA b R T T e AN T2 A i B s e S B2l s K AL SR A A T




KEITH LOZEAU - 9/4/2012

Page 54
Q. Right.
A. Right. That‘s it.
Q. Let's go to the first invoice or an invoice.

(Exhlblt No. 5 markedi}

Q. (BY MB! BOSCHEE) These are -- Exhibit 5, take a
look at them -~ are some invoices that I'm guessing are éoing
to look familiar to you I hope.

A, Yes.

Q. Okayf Followed up with -- we've got the Bill of

Lading in the back?

A. Bill of Lading.

Q. I assume you are familiar with these documenfs?

A, Yes.

Q. Wow, just to be clear about something, did —-- to the

best of your understanding, Cashman ever enter any contract
directly with7Mbjave on this project?

A. I don't know how to answer that question. And the
reason I say that is because the purchase order was a Mojave
Electric purchase order. It was on their letterhead. And I
believe the line said, Care of CAM Consulting or something --

Q. Okay.

. -- along those lines. So I guess I'm not sure how
to answer that.

Q. Well, let me ask you -- let me ask you a better

quastion: There's no —-- there's no signed written contract

O B
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between Cashman and Mojave that I just haven't seen for this

project, is there?

A. With the exception of that purchase order that --
Q. The purchase order, right.

A. No.

Q. As a part of -— of the overall —- of the overall

agreement betweeﬁ CAM, Cashman, and Mojave, could you just
tell me generally what was the scope of work that Cashman was
going to perform‘on this project, kind of start to finisﬁ?

A A, Okay. We would take the purchase order and provide
what we call submittals, which is basically a technical
description of the equipment we proposed to provide. And we
provide those submittals to Mojave Electric, and they provide
those to Whiting-Turner, who in turn provides them to the
architects and engineers that design the building.

And basically everybody just reviews everybody's
scope of work and what they're proposing to use to make sure
it meets with their specifications and requirements. And I
don't know the specific details relative to this because I'm
not the person that directly reviews those anymore. But I
believe there was a few questions relative to some of our
equipment that the engineers came back with, but there was
nothing -- they were all of a very minor nature. And —- and I
believe we addressed those gquestions.

And we received a release from Mojave Electric to go

e T e r—"
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ahead -- the release basically signals us, go ahead and order
the equipment. So we went ahead and ordered equipment. The
equipment gets built, produced, modified in some cases, and

then delivered to the site. And that's the Bills of

Lading ==
Q. " Sure.

A, —- that are on here. &And we delivered the
generators andwéhe transfer switches, the paralleling gear and
the UPS to the site, cocrdinating with —— T believe Chris
Meyers is the project manager ¢n this job for Meojave. And
we -- our project ﬁanager‘handled all the logistics with
Chris, getting everything to the site when they needed it,
where they needed it.

Mojave -unloads the equipment, installs the
equipment, as we discussed earlier.

0. Right.

A, When the equipment's all installed, they call us out
to perform startup. And I kind of cutlined that process as
well. And at the end of all of that when the successful
startup is completed, we complete the paperwork that we submit
to Caterpillar and Mitsubishi that states that the startup was
completed by a factory-certified technician, everything
conforms to their requirements as far as the installation
goes, and we're good to start the warranty at that time on all

both those pieces of ~— or three of those pieces of equipment.

T
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paty

Q. Okay .

R

A. That's pretty much it. I --as T said‘earlier, some
of the, T guess what I woul& call fine-tuning of the project,
how they're going to comply with the fire department as far as
alarms and their fire command room and some different things,

a lot of that stuff is somewhat of a fluid situation. And
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when we get to the end
we're going to address

doing at the beginning

-— we have an idea at the beginning how
that, but sometimes what we plan on

is not exactly what happens at the end.

And so we -- we, you know, typically participate in

some meetings. We discuss how we intend to address whatever
it is they're asking for. And then we go through the process
of doing that. It's usually not a tremendoﬁsly big deal.
Q. That was very thorough. It was a good answer to ny

very vague guestion.

"We discussed earlier the scope and you just
discussed the scope involved the installation of the st — the i

startup primarily of a lot of this equipment down the line a

i

i

little bit. BAnd that never happened, correct, because of the §
check? %
a. Right. :

:

Q. Right. i

A. We put an all stop to everything. E

i

Q. Sure. i

Now, looking at this exhibit -- loocking at the Bill
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of Lading first -- Bills of Lading, you =zee at the top there
it says -- the date on there is 1/17/11. Does that comport
generally with your recollection of when most of thig

equipment was delivered? January, early February of 20117

AL Without having my calendar in front of me it seems
right.

Q. Okay. &hg reasonr I ask -- and then wefll move on to
the next -- because the first two invoices which constitute,
you know, the majority -- it's actually the first three pages

of this exhibit, you've got the first invoice there Ffor

598,936,267
A. Uh-huh.
Q. And then the 156,627.92. And they're both dated

February of 2011, February lst of 201l1. Again, does that
comport generally with your understanding of when this
equipment was delivered to the site?

A. The February lst date or the January 17th?

Q. Well, either one. I mean I guess -— let me ask you

a hetter question.

A. Because we have two different things here.
Q. Surea.
A. The January 17th I'm going to say is probably the

date that the equipment left the factory, and then the
February 1lst date is probably pretty close to when the stuff

actually arrived on the site.
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1 | Q. Okay.

2 A, Dces tﬁat make sense? i
3 Q. Yeah, and that's what I was going to ask you? §
4 A. Okay.
5 i Q. TheiBill_of Lading is probably when the stuff ﬁ
6 leaves. And then sometime before February lst is when the
7 equipment arrives on the site, because then you send the
8 invoice out because the equipment’'s been delivered --—

S A, That is correct.
10 Q. -= correct?

11 Qkay.‘ éo that's most of it, it looks like. lAnd :

12 then I've got another one that's the fourth page in. It looks §

13 | like some miscellaneous lugs essentially wére -~ wWere %

14 delivered for $329.71, it looks like March 25, 201i1. Do vyou é

15 have a specific recollection of that? ?

16 A. I have no idea. ;

17 Q. Okay. But per your understanding, almost all of the E

18 equipment, other than maybe these lugs, all of that stuff was i

19 delivered to the site a little bit before February 1lst, 2011; %

20 is that right? | g

21 A. Yes. ' !

22 0. Okay. S8itting here -- and if you add -- I'll i

H

23 represent to you if you add the three inveoices up -- we talked :

24 about this earlier. I did thé math, and I'm not very good at i

25 this, but I'm guess -— it comes out to 755,893.83%. Do you
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have an understanding of whether Cashman delivered any

materials or did any additional work on —— on the City Hall
project after the —— you know, after March of 20117
A, The only thing that I know of is we have a —— we

have a factory project manager for paralleling gear
specifically who visited the site sometime after this, just toc
review the installation and those kinds of things. And I

don't remember the specific date.

Q. When you say after this?

A, nght

Q. Is that after the installation or after delivery?

A. After delivery.

Q. Ckay. Would it have been shortly after the
delivery?

A, Pretty shortly.

Q. I'1l introduce another exhibit. This might help,

(Exhibit No, é marked.)
Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) Exhibit 6, I will represént ig ==

is what appear would be my client’'s daily log.

A. Okay.
Q. Okay. This is the last -- if you take a look —-- and
we've got some -— we've got some dates on here. And it's got,

{as read): Description of work performed. It's kind of hard
to read. 2And this goes into —- this is that right -- this is

batween, if you look at the dates, January 20th, January 21st,

S5 i
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after the Bill of Lading, but before the invoice.

January 21st, this is the last record that my client i
has of Cashman actually being onsite. Do you have any ;
understanding or documentation that Cashman was onsite after
this, after Jgnga;y 21st?.

A. I don;t because that gentleman doesn't work for ’

Cashman, he works for the factory.

Q. Okay.

A, "So 1 ——.and I cculdn't tell you what the date was.
I couldn't teil you what the date was.

Q. Okay.

MS. ROBINSON: Can yﬁu clarify who you mean by "my
élient"?

MR. BOSCHEE: O©Oh, I'm sorry.

MS. ROBINSON: Who you're identifying, because you
have so many.

MR. BOSCHEE: I understand.

You've got -- what you've got here is a -- is a
Whiting-Turner document. I believe this was actually filled
out by Mojave.

MS. ROBINSON: Oh.

MR. BOSCHEE: By the subcontractor. And the reason
I say that is because it's a Subcontractor's Daily Log, and it
says, {as read): Trade, Mcijave.

Q. . (BY MR. BOSCHEE) 8o somecone from the factory came
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ey

out in the -- you know, shortly after delivery of the stuff to
inspect it, but you don't have any knowledge or documentation

that anybody from Cashman was actually onsite or delivered any

yaors
CFTA R 8t e 4t S FAE T L

materials after January 2lst of 2011, do you?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. Qkay. ﬁo you have any -~ again, there's the factory F
person that came out -- I understand the factory person is not s
a Cashman employee, correct?

A. That is correct.

Q. Okay. Do you have any —— any record or knowledge of
any work that Cashman performed after January 2lst of 20117

A. I don't. |

Q. Kind of what I'm getting at is, we talked about the
fact that there was a bunch of stuff that was going to happen,
but then the check incident happened so you guys never got to
the inspection and then the -- the startup. BSo after delivery
of this stuff, January 20th and 21ist, you guys were done, you
quys didn't do any other work on this project, correct?

A. Right. At that point we're in a wait mode for
Mojave to contact us and let us know they want us out to the
site.

Q. Sure.

And then the —-- the check unfortunateness happens

and then that was that?

A. Right.
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Q. So the scope of work that we talked about earlier
that include the startup and everything, there's no -- we're E
not -- we don't have any dispute between us, you guys didn't i

complete the scope of work that you had originally agreed to

do, correct? |
A, Correct. t
Q. Becaugé you didn't get paid?
A. Right,

Q. Right. Okay.
| And the work that was left to be completed, just so
I've got this clear in my mind, was you guys were going to go
out inspect the installation that Mojave and/or whoever had
done with the equipment and then perform the startup, correck?
A. Correct.
Q. And that was going to involve those protocol codes

that we talked about earlier, correct?

2 2 ¥kt b A AL 1 GICE I e A A SHA L LS L IS 0  To! d \Shot b Bk DA e 1. # s ad o L) 1o 2 P

A. That would involve -- that would be part of it, ves.

Q. Okay. Did you guys receive -- do you recall i
receiving a demand from Mojave to complete the work -- to é
complete your scope of work? Does that ring a bell?

A. I'm not sure about a demand. I got an e-mail :
asking. :

Q. Let's start there.

A. Yeah. I got an e-mail asking and -- and I, you
know -- from Pete Fergen.
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Q. Okay.

A AL S

A And I éaid, you know, we're not in a position to be
able to do that. We got to work this money thing ocut first
and then we'll be out.

Q. Sure;

Was that e-mail before or after you had the meeting
with Briaﬁ and Troy?

A. Before.

Q. Okay. 8o Pete sends you an e-mail saying, hey, you
know got this prob;em, but we rea}ly need you to come out and
get the inspection and startup done. You say, no, you know
this money issue is a2 big deal. BAnd then sometime after that
vou gend an e~mail to Troy. Troy calls you up. You guys go

and have a meeting, but that doesn't resolve it either,

correct?
A. Correct.
Q. Okay. and just so I understand, the reason you guys

70 b L0 e A A by £ LAt LA LSS5 L A AL SN U4 AL 0L K TS0V T 1R I T RN DB 0 8 o .50 o 00 o Lot L1

-- when I say "you guys," you being part of the
decision-making process, I'm assuming, did not do the

inspection and startup is because you didn't get paid,

correct?
A Correct. :
‘ ;
Q. Were there any other issues that you -- I mean -- i

and again, you know, other issues besides the $755,000 you --

but were there any other issues or reasons that you wouldn't

reverrroeer
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quality or functioning of the materials that were provided?

Page 65

have gone out and done the inspection or the startup? %
A. No. %

‘ . . 3

Q. Did you receive any complaints from Mojave about the %

H

A. No.
Q. QOkay. Do you recall anybody at Mojave ever

requesting repair of any of the equipment that was provided?

Does that ring a bell?

A, No.

o. You personally didn't -- don't have knowledge of
that? -

A. bDon't recall that.

Q. Then obviously the follow-up of that would be: You

don't recall ever actually going out and repairing any of the
equipment ocut at the job site, do you?

A. No.

Q. Okay. Because again, January 2lst that's -- you
guys haven't gone back out there to do any inspection,
installation, or repair any other work out there, have you?

A, Not to my knowledge.

Q. Okay. Do you have an understanding —- did anybody
at Mojave communicate to you they were going teo try to hire
sone folks, other contractors, to complete your work?

A, Yes.

Q. Who communicated that to you?

Py
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A, Pete Fergen.
Q. What did Pete tell you?
A. He said first he was going to contact some

neighboring CAT dealers to see if they could get one of them
to do it. And‘then —— and that was sort of the en& of our
conversatioﬂ in that regard because it -- becausg the
unde:standing_ié that only an authorized Caterpillar dealer
can start this eguipment up.

Q. Okay.

A, So I -- when -- when we started hearing rumors that
maybe there was_an_independent company out there starting it

up, I was not aware that they we're looking at hiring an

independent.

Q. Okay. When you are talking to Pete and had the
meeting with Brian and Troy -~ I want to be -- I want to be
clear about this so I -~ so I know. There was no dispute that

you guys weren't -- that you weren't paid, that CAM's check
bounced. Why were they asking you -- or what were they
communicating to you that they want -- as a reason to go out
thare and finish the job?

A. You knqw, our discussions at that point were

basically it needs to be done.

Q. Okay.
A. They have obligations to Whiting-Turner. Whiting-
Turner has obligations to the owner. And they -- you know, it
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needed to ke done. !
Q. Okay. During those meetings, those communications,
did they articulate to you that, well, we did pay. We paid

CaM, so the work needs to get done and you guys need to figure

cut what to do with CAM? Was part of the rationale, if you

;
1
3
J
H
k
i
;
E
i
Hl
H
F

will?

A. I'm not sure if that was specificélly spoken —-

Q. Okay.

A. —— but I -- that was certainly the implication.

Q. Okay. And sitting here right now -- again we talked
about this earlier -- but you don't -- you don't have any -

you don’'t dispute that Mojave paid CAM, do you?

A. I ~- without having direct knowledge of it, I don't

necessarily dispute it.
Q. Okay. BAnd we talked earlier, you didn't actually do
the exchange, but there was an unconditicnal lien release

provided for this work, correct?

A. I -~ it locks like you have it there so I'm ~-
Q. I do. I'm going to show it to you.

A. I've never —- I've not seen it.

Q. You've never seen it?

A. I have not.

Q. Ckay.

AL I don"t —~ that's a Shane Norman -- that's his

department and their function that takes care of that.
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Q.

A.

Q.

A.

Q.

mean -—-

Q.

release?

A,

Q.

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES -

document that you haven't seen.
Were you -- did you play any part in —- in the lien
process in terms of getting the process started or anything

else, or was that all Shane?

part of that process that our department has is we provide fhe
customer with a.form to fill out with the prelien information
50 we have all the interested parties'
kinds of thing.

much Shane's department's --

under a notary.
as the lien date?

understanding of when you guys liened the project -- or I

a second.

Understand. And I'm not going to have you look at a

Pretty much all Shane, The only thing -~ the only

information and those

Other than that, I -- after that, it's pretty

Okay.
-- rodeo.
Okay. The lien's dated April 26th, 2011 and signed

Do you have any reason to dispute that date

I mean does that comport with your

MS. ROBINSON: I'm going to ——

{(BY-MR., BOSCHEE) ~- gave the lease -—- gave the

Because we're going to lock at the Right to Lien in

I guess T have no comment.

Okay. -

i
I don't know. . E
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maybe you don't know this, I've got a Notice of Right to Lien.

Page €9

g

Q. You justldon't know? §
A. Right. i
Q. Ckay. Well, let's take a look. Maybe you don't -~ i
;

H

|

Have you ever seen that document before?

A. I have not.

e —

Q. Did you provide any equipment -- any equipment? You

did provide equipment.

Did you provide the information with respect to
getting that process starte&, the Right to Lien?
A, Again --
M5. ROBINSON: I object, he ——- asked and answered.
MR. BOSCHEE: Well, he said he ——
Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) He (sic} said that your company
provided some information with respect to the release and —-
and the lien itself. The prelien information --
A. Right.
o —- like what did you -- what did you provide in

terms of the prelien?

A. The prelien is essentially -- I haven't seen the

form in a while, te tell vyou the truth. But the last time I

saw 1t, it's basically a list of the interested contractors on

é

i

i

the job, the owner, names, addresses, contacts. There's i

really not much else to it. i
Q. And you didn't -- you've never actually seen the —-

Era it e e bl

S e —

o= ey T e e L o A A PR A e

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702) 648-2595

JA 00001978




=L N

o - o A

10
11
12
i3
14
15
16
17
i8
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

KEITH LOZEAU - 9/4/2012

pp i ey

Tt T S e e R M

by ol e A0 1 b P . i B L3 Lo i N A LA B AP RA123

LERU 3 | £ 4 VSO LU sk SIEH L = . ok mag e 4 o i 1 3

Page 70
the Notice of Rigﬁt to Lien for ~-- with respect to this
project, have you?

A. I have not.

Q. Well, then I'm not geing to ask you about it.

Have you ever seen the lien, the actual Notice of
Lien for this proﬁgct?

A. I have not.

Q. Did you participate in any way, shape, or form with
putting that dpcument together?

A. Again; with the axception of the prelien process,
no.

Q. Okay. This document —-- this Notice of Lien is dated
June 21st, 2011, signed by Shane Norman. Do you have any
reason to -- and it looks like it was recorded on -- the next
day, June 22nd, 201 by Ms. Robinson. Do you have any reason
to doubt that that's the date the lien was recorded? Any
reason to dispute that?

A, No.

Q. Okay. Follow-up question, I'm going back again off
my own line: Do you have an understanding as to why you guys
didn't give a conditional lien release with respect to the
755,000, as opposed to an unconditional lien release?

A. I doﬁ?t.

MS. ROBINSCON: Obijecticn, asked and answered.
G, (BY MR. BOSCHEE) Or was that a —— was that a -- was
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that a decision you were part of?

A, Again, I was on vacation.
Ckay.
A. So that was a Shane decision.

Okay. You were completely out of the loop on that?
Al That is coxrrect.
Q. On the other projects you had worked on or that you

were a part of with the disadvantaged business owners or

minority contractors where the check was cut and then the next
check was cut to you guys, did you provide unconditional lien
releases on those projects, if you know?

A. If we liened the project, at some point we would
have had to provide an unconditional release to close out the
Jab.

Q. Ckay.

A. 30 legic says yves, we have. I'm not -- I don't see
them very often.

. Q. Right.

Let me —- let me ask you ancther way. On those
other projects -- we talked about the process, right. There's
—-— the minority contractor geta a check, and then they cut a
check to you guys, correct?

A. {(Witness nodding.)

Q. Do you have an understanding as to whether a
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conditional release was given upon the first check being cut
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| usually get paid in stages on a job like this, and they'll

Page 772
and tﬁen an unconditional release being given once the
minority contractor's check cleared your financial
institution, or was it just, it got paid, here's the
unconditional release, if you know?

A, I don't know. That's a Shane guestion. Sorry.
Q. Okay, yveah. And I think we did ask Shane that
question, but anyway.
MS. BRISCOE: He said you would know.
MR. BOSCHEE: He did say you would know.
MS. ROBINSON: 1T don't recall that actually.
MR. BOSCHEE: He did. W®Well, I've got his transcript
here.
i Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) But he said you might know that.
A. - That's -- that's typically his.
I —— i can tell you, if you take the minority
contractor out of it --
Q. Yeah.
A. -— if we're dealing directly with a contractor,
ordinarily the conditional release is provided upon —- we

hold what's called a retention. And we'll get -- we'll sign a
conditional release on the payment —— the majority payment,
and we won't provide the unconditional until the retention is
paid.

Q. Until the thing's paid in full?
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- because there's no retention to hold back?

A, Right.
Q. But in this case, the 755 was —-- was the entirety of

-~ was essentially the entirety of the payment —-

A, It's ~- yeah --

Q. -~ per the invoice?

A I'm trusting your math,

Q. ﬁight. Don't make that mistake the second time

but -- but it is, that's the correct number.

Is that -- and that would -- given that there's no
necessary retention at that point geing forward, would that
be -- that would be a typical reason -- you don't know
specifically as to this project, but that would typically be a

reason to give the unconditional instead of the conditional,

A. Correact.

Q. Qkay.

A. That would make sense.

Q. Do you have any knowledge of a claim made to

Whiting-Turner with respect to this amount owed?

familiar with the 90-day -~ what's typically termed the 90-day

A. I don't. §
Q. You don't. That was again -- that was a Shane issue
completely?

A, Yeah. Yep.

Q. So sitting here right now you're not -- you're not i
!
i
i

e e T 4/ T S FF ¥ IO 200 Y O P Y o R gpent P21 TTF 7Y sy p e T TR S n T e g e e O

LITIGATION SERVICES & TECHNOLOGIES - (702} 648-2595

JA 00001982




[0 B | )] 83! o W [l 2l

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

KEITH LOZEAU - 9/4/2012

notice to the gengral contractor, with respect to this?

A. That was something that Shane was working with Mike
on, and I ~- frankly I'm not -- I wasn't involwved.
Q. Okay. That would be something -- if -- if there was

something that Shane didn't know in his deposition about that,

that would be something I would need to talk to Mike about?

A. Mike Pack.

Q. The preéident?

A. The president of our company.
Q. Okay.

A. I guess sc, yes.

Q. Okay. Sitting here right now are -- and this is the
only -- I'll represent this is -~ this is a document disclosed
because I -- I-don't have any other ones.

Are ybu aware of any -- of any other notices that

were sent to Whiting—Turner, other than perhaps this 90-day
notice? I mean did you personally communicate anything to
Whiting-Turner, i.e., we didn’t get paid. You know, we're
geing to make a claim on your bond. BAnything like that?

A, I did not.

Q. Ckay. That again would have been Shane and Mike,

theoretically, or Mike?

MBS e S =3 AL

A. Yes, I ——- for want of a —— I'm not sure.
Q. Okay. The 80-day notice that was provided to
Whiting-Turner is again -- it's at that same -- this one is
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June 24th, 2011. Do you have -~ sitting here right now, do
you have any knowledge or information as to -- as torany‘
notices that were prowvided to Whiting-Turner prior to that?
| A. No; I doﬁ‘t. 1
Q. OCkay. Do you sitting here right now have any
knowledge of any notices that were provided to any surety

companies, Whiting or Mojave's, at any point during this

process?
A. No direct knowledge.
Q. Okay. B&And who -- if anybody had that direct

knowledge would it be Shane or Mike?
A, Yes.
Q. I want to go back to the initial meeting and -- the

meeting with Angelo and you and Mojave. Specifically to the

best you can recall, what did -- and was that -- was that with
Pete or was it with Troy or Brian?

A. It was with Peter.

Q. Okay. Specifically, what did Pete tell you about
their relationship or their working relationship on the other

projects with CAM Consulting?

A. Almost nothing.

Q. Okay.

A. He basically just introduced us and said that we've
heen —— we've had -- he -- I think he said something to the

effect of, we're working with him on some other things. Seems
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like a really straight up guy. Can probably get us where we

need to go on this project.
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Q. CQkay.
A, I'm paraphrasing, but I —- pretty close.
Q. I understand. &And it's been awhile, so remember

ot L5 2 . 3 b

specific words in a conversation is difficult. I get that.

But during that conversation that kind of led you to

the meeting with them, did he articulate that they had any E
kiﬁd of a special working relationship or that they had a é
] . ;
personal relationship with Angelo Carvalho, other than just i
working on some projects with him? |
A. No.
Q. Now, Cashman -~ you guys -- Cashman.has alsoc brecught

a claim in this case for fraudulent transfer against Mojave. -

Are you familiar with that?

A, I'm not.

Q. Yocu're not?

A, No.

Q. Ckay. So asking you about the factual basis for

that is prcbably -- probably something you're not going to
know about. .

Let me ask you this: To the extent that any
investigation was performed after the fact, after the check

didn't clear, as to cther business dealings between Mojave and

CAM Consulting, would you have been involwved in that?
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A. The only knowledge I had of any sort of prior
relationship between Mojave and CAM was when we got -- when we
subpoenaed CAM's financial records and bank statements and
there were payments made to Mojave that appeared to be for
transactions prior to this one. -But that's the extent of what
I know.

Q. Okay. pid you -- after you got those bank
statements, did you ﬁerform any follow-up investigation beyond
that as to the other jobs or what the source of those payments
would be? _

A, No. Andlwhen we sat in that meeting with Brian and
Troy, you know Mike ﬁentioned those transactions specifically.
I think sort of.—~ he didn't want to -~ I'm not sure why he
didn't want to ask directly. But he didn't want to ask
directly about them. But he did mention those transactions.
And Brian and Troy pretty much just didn't acknowledge one way
or the other their knowledge of those transactions.

Q. I got to follow up on that because I don't -- when
you say they didn't acknowledge one way or another, I mean --
let me —-- let me see if I understand this. What
specifically did Mike ask them about those other payments?

A. I believe Mike said something to the effect of that
—-— you know, the transactions we see on here, we see a couple
of payments to Mojave for -- and they were large dollar

amounts.
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;
Q. Uh~hubh.

A, And Brian and Troy basically just didn't say :
anything. §
Q. They didn't deny them? They didn't tell —- say they

were for another job? They didn't say anything?
A. They didn'tkacknowledge.
Q. Did they Jjust sit there silently and not say

anything about that question? It's a pretty loaded gquestion.

I mean I —-- they didn't say a word?
A. They did not say a word.
Q. Did either of them say, well, we're just not going

te talk about that or we're just not going to address that,

that's apples and oranges, cor I mean they literally didn't say

anything?
A, They did not acknowledge it.
Q. I'm just imagining Troy Nelson sitting in a rcom not

saying anything upon a question like that. I'm having a hard
time reconeiling that but.
A. He's not the kind of guy to hold back on something.

And that was why it was sort of noteworthy. That's why I

remember it specifically is -- you know, Troy's not - well,
you know him. He's -- he's not a -—- he's not somebody who's
not a forthcoming person. And that was —-- that's why it

sticks in my mind, because it was sc out of character.

Q. Well, did you or Mike follow up with any questions
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!

about those checks after the non~response? %

A. No. We moved on to talking about other things §

relafive specifically to this project. §

Q. Like what?

A. How do we go forward? |

Q. And at that point you reached an impasse because é
there was no way fo go forward?

A. That is correct. é

Q. You guys, as I understand it -- as I understand the %

topic, Mojave wants you to go forward because it needs to get ‘é

done. You guys aren't going to go forward do the ins -- or do
the checklist and then do the startup, provide the codes,
because you weren't paid, correct?

A, Correct.

Q. Okajtﬂ You're a tech guy, so I'm going to ask you a
little bit of a techniéal question. And we're still arguing
about this with the judge a little kit but.

If Cashman has to go in and provide thosa protocol
codes at this stage in the game, does that -- what concerns

would you have about doing that today?

A. Concerns? None f£rom a technical standpoint.

Q. Okay.

A. I mean there's no physical reason why we wouldn't be
able to do that. It's Just -— it's proprietary information.

It's privileged and --
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0. You haven't been paid?
A. Correct,
Q. Okay. But from an actual just geing in there and

putting the cedes in and getting the stuff communicating, like
physically there’s no real issue there, you just don't want to
do it because you haven't gotten paid, right?

A. That is correct.

MR. BRISCOE: Let me take two minutes, review my
notes, and we might be able to get you out of here pretty
quick. |

THE WITNESS:‘ Okay.

(A brief recess was takeﬁ.)
MR, BOSCHEE: Back on the record. We'll be quick.

THE WITNESS: ©No problem. I appreciate it.

Q. (BY MR. BOSCHEE) You unde;stand you're still under
oath?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. ‘Factory guy came out and inspected the site at some
point. You don't know -- we don't have dates, that's fine.

Did he ever provide you a report that you recall?

A. Not us.

Q. ZOkay,‘ Who did he provide it to?

A Back tc the factory.

Q. Qkay. Did you ever have a conversation with the

factory guy about what he saw out there or anything like that?
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‘ i
A. Had a ceonversaticn with him, it was ~- you know, it 5
was basically, the equipment is installed. It looks like it's g
being installed correctly. But that was -- it was still very %
early -- ‘ ‘ . F
0. Right. 1
A.  -- stages, so there wasn't anything really done yet.
It was more -- heonestly, I think he wanted a weekend in Vegas. ?
I 53¢ -— I hate to say it but. . . é
Q. I cén't hate him for that. :
But it was early on in the process. He -just went
ocut, looked at it, said things are going smoothly, chow?
A. Right.
Q. When you talked to Pete initially about CaM and he

said they were werking on other jobs with CaM, did he tell you
what other jobs they were working on with him?

A. He did not.

had had with CAM on any other projects?

Q. Okay. But you knew that they were working -- you
knew that Pete was working on at least a couple other jobs
with CAM before that meeting, right?
AL Yes. ’
Q. The meeting -- the one meeting with all three of ;
them? F
A. Right.  Yes. g
0. Okay. And did he articulate any problems that they §
4
:
|
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A, No, he did not.
Q. .Did he talk about any -- any money that was due and

owing on those other jobs during that meeting?

A, We did not even -- didn't have that in depth of a
discussion.
Q. Didn't get to that. Okay.

We talked about the fact that you haven't seen the
prelien notice and you haven't even seen the lien, per se, but
one thing that Shane did identify you as knowing is, who's
going to figurgzout the amount of the mechanic's lien. Would

that be you or would that be someone else at Cashman that

would determine the amount that Cashman's going te lien for?

A. It would be probably somewhat of a joint discussion.

Q. Okay.

A. Certainly myself and the account manager on the job
have the most direct knowledge of what work -- what costs go

into the total makeup of the job, if that's —- I think that's
what you're asking. i

Q. Well, I am, and that's why -- I guess what I'm

getting at it is, okay, we've got a $755,893.89 lien on this

Project. Did you participate in coming te that number?

A, Yes.

Q. Who else participated in coming to that number?

A, My qccount manager.

Q. And so who did you provide that number to? I mean
- — e e e — ——
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obviously you didn't see the lien, you didn't see the prelien,
but the information was provided to somebody. Who did you

provide that to?

A, Within Cashman?

Q. Yeah. ‘Right.

A. In other words, for them to be able to generate that
paper? -

0. Right.

A. Shane.

0. Oh.

A. And I'm geing te guess that he just did it off the
invoice --

Q. Okay.

A. -~ or invoices.

Q. Sure. -

But you were involved in coming up with the number?

A, Yes, sir.

Q. Okaf.' Let's say a 755,893.89 bowl of gold coins
fell in your lap today and you were able to go out and
complete the project, get the inspection and the startup done.
How much time would that take?

A Difficult to.say without having a knowledge of the
condition of the site. Now, I'm assuming that it's pretty
late in the construction stages. So assuming that evervthing

is -- the table is set, so to speak --

]
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Q. Uh-huh.

A. -- and everything is ready and everything that
Mojave did was done correctly andlall those other things, you
know, a typical time frame for a project like this would be

two weeks.

Q. Okay.
A, Maybe three.
Q. Two to three weeks. )
Would that be the same as had -- I mean, let's say
CAM's doesn't -- let's say he's got sufficient funds back in

the day and you guys had gone out and done the inspection when
-- when Mojave_called, and the startup. Would that time frame
be the same atréhat peint as it is now, or would it take a
little longer ox¥ shorter?

A. ‘Bard to say. Likely longer, only because =-— if
you've ever been on a construction site, it's kind of a mad
house. BAnd there's people running all over the place and
doing different things and everything gets sort of fragmented.
And there's probably =-- there probably weculd have been days in
there where we would not be able to get our work done.

So we would say, you know something, where you are
with your situation, we can't get any work done today so we're
not going to have a technician out there. So if the -- the
time —— the total time frame should ke the same, Well, T

shouldn't say that. The net time frame would be the same.
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The total would preobably be something longer, maybe four
weeks.
Q. Sure.

We're klnd of talking about the same thing. If it

P o B2 U A bt MMk ALK bbb TR

would take you 14 days, and right now you could do it 14

consecutive days, back a -- you know, a year ago it would have ;

maybe taken you 14 days with breaks? %
A, Correct. <
Q. Okay: How much expense would -- would -- ballpark

would Cashman incur on'that process? %
A. You know, it depends a lot ‘on how much is done §

correctly at the site.

Q. Right.

A. It can vary pretty widely. I -- man, I don't recall
how much we had in there for startup.

Q. Ckay.

A. I mean we can take a literal sense of it and -- two
guys for 14 days and do the math at $110 an hour --

Q. Sure.

A. -—- and come up with a2 number. But that's just the
—-— that's justwthe man hours. It doesn't count if we had to
purchase any materials or anything. So I don't -- I don't

think I can answer that accurately.

S8 A i A2 T 3 -7 %Pt .50 T AN A 20 5 1 1 Aol

Q. 50 you don't know what the hard cost would be

because it would depend on whether everything was installed
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2

correctly? ;
Al And — right. %

Q. And then rest of it would be man hours. 2aAnd then
it's just a question of two people, 14 days, X amount per
hour, figuring that math out?

A. Right. And then -- and then as we discussed
earlier, the last'part of that is working out the final
details. How are -— how ié the communication with the

building going to work, how is the communication with fire

command going to work, those kinds of things that get hammered

out in the latter stages of the process. So there could be a
variance there in cost as well.
Q. Ckay. Well, how —- when you say a variance in cost,

I mean how much variance are we talking about there? I mean

ballpark? Itidbesn't seem like a lot, but I ~- you know.
A. Well, you know, it depends --
Q. Yeah.
A, -— if -— if they want some high-level communications

at a digital level, I mean that's a 5-, $6,000 process.
o. Ckay. Not a high cost relative to what we're

talking about in this case?

A. Relative to three quarters of a million dollars not
high.

Q. Well, 5-, $6,000, not insignificant either?

A. Right.
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Q. So I mean you would have to come out-of-pocket
for -- okay.

Just specifically talking about the installation of
the prgtoéol_codgs, how much time is that going to take? If
it has to happen? -If'it.

A, You know I really can't answer. BAnd the reason I

can't answer is when I was a technician, we didn't have all

these digital communications. So I can tell you that we have
to go all the way back to the beginning. It's not something

you can pick up.in the middie and do just that. We have to éo %
back to the very beginning and start from grcocund zero and work E

through the checklist process that Caterpillar gives us to get

to that point where we start getting things communicating with

each other.

Q. Ckay. B&And to go back from the beginning and go
through the checklist, how —- I mean, approximately how long
is that going to take?

A. That's 14 days. I

Q. That's 14 days?

a. Yep.
Q. Well, sc what you're saying is you can't -- as I
understand this, you can’t install the protocol codes without

doing the whole startup?

A. Correct.
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A. Whatever has been done out there, and I don't know E
what has or has not been done, is —— is —-- how do I say §
this -- is inconsequential. It doesn't make any difference i

what they did or didn't do. From Caterpillar and Mitsubishi's
on the UPS side's standpoint, none of that work was done by a
factory—authoriied rep. So all of that has to bé done by a
factory—authorized.rep. So -- and because our folks don't
know what Qas donelor what was not done you can't -- you can't
try and pick up somebody else's work in the middle. They're
going to have to start from the beginning and go all the way
through the pfoceés.

Q. Qkay. _

A, Aand if that doesn't happen -- well, two things could
happen. Number one, it could be done incorrectly. A step
could be miésed, and that could be expensive. The second part
is there won't be a viable warranty on any of the products
until that is done.

Q. Okay. Sitting here right now though, you don't know
whether a factory-authorized representative has been ocut there

and done any of that work, do you?

A. I'm relatively sure that that has not happened.
Q. Based on?
A. Based on discussions we had with Mitsubishi as far

as them dispatching somebody. They were not going to dispatch

anybody without our knowledge. And they say that they
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haven't.
Q. Okay .
A. 2nd as far as Caterpillar goes our —-- we've had —-

we have very specific what we call sales and service

agreements with Caterpillar. And if another dealer is going
to come in and work in our territory, éerform any sort of work
whatsoever, they need to notify us that they're going to be in §
our territory working. »2nd we've had no CAT dealer notify us %
that they were going to be working on the job.

So could somebody have snuck in and done it?

Q. Sure.
A. Yes. It's not very likely.
Q. Okay. Have you had communiecations with anybody at

Caterpillar about not wanting anyone else to come in and do
that, primary because you guys haven't -- or are owed a lot of
monaey on this project?

A. I don't recall.

Q. How about Mitsubishi, communications with them along

those same lines?

A. I —-
Q. I.E., don't let -~ don't let someone else come in
and do this because we're owed a lot of money and -- and we

want to get paid? %

A, Yeah, I don't recall -- yeah, no, I don't recall

having that conversation.
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Q. But nobody from Caterpillar or Mitsubishi could do
anything with the protoccol codes? That's something that you
guys would have to do, because like you said earlier, I think
it's proprietary?

A, Correct.

Q. all right. And the other kind of question I had --
it's kind of random -- when you say the factory guy, which
factory?

A. ‘We have several involved. What -- carry a couple of
different terms. Their official name at this point is
Caterpillar Sﬁitchgear. It use to be known as Intelligent
Switchgear Organization. And then it was known as CAT IS0
(phonetic) for awhile during a transition period. But their

official title now is Caterpillar Switchgear.

Q. Okay.
A. And it's a division of Caterpillar. And they
have -- they have thelir own people that go out and do site

inspections and project management and those kinds of things.
It's a very -- very technical business that most dealers don't
have the real ability to support, so they have factory folks
that help out.
Q. Okay. That was ~- that was where I was going. I
wasn't sure where -- which of the factories he came fron.
We talked about a lot of subjects today and a lot of

specific things. 1Is there anything else about your
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involvement with the City Hall project and specifically
relating to your dealings with Mojave Electric that I did not
ask you about today, but that you feel are important to my
understanding of what - what the dynamic here is, issues

going forward?

A, No.
M3, ROBINSOM: Object, form of the question.
TEE WITNESS: No.
MR. BOSCHEE: Okay, I don't have any further

guestions.
I'm assuming Jennifer doesn't have any questions?
MS. ROBINSON: No.

(Signature requested.)

(The proceedings concluded at 11:36 a.m.)
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1 Q. Oh, yeah?

2 {Exhibit 1 marked.}

3 BY MS., LLOYD:

4 O, So have you seen.this document?

5 A. I don't recall seeing this one.

b Q. %o it would have been served cbviocusly on the

7 Cleveland address for QH Las Vegas, and then you didn't

3 necessarily get copies of everything.

9 A, No, I didn't.
10 Q. Okay. But do you think that there are
11 records in Cleveland concerning the preliminary notices
12 that were received?
13 A. Well, if it went to Suite 1005, that is
14 ForestCity Construction Services or ForestCity
15 Commexrcial Construction suite numbers.
16 . So tﬁéy would likely kept reccrds there
17 somewhere concerning all of these preliminary notices
18. or other notices that they might have received?
19 A, Yes.
20 Q. Let's talk a little kit about JMA's role on
21 the project. Can you teil me what JMA was hired to do.
22 A. ForestCity Commercial Development hired JMA
23 as the executive architect, which under the executive
24 architect they were to do all the construction
25 documents. The design architect, which is Helkis

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or {800) 982-329Y admin@depointernational.com

JA 00001751

Docket 61715 Document 2015-18520




: David Phillips - 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., et al.

B R

o -] &y n

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
23
22
23
24
25

Page 12

Manfredi out of Boston, worked under JMA. And his
contract, JMA's contract, included all subtiers of
structural engineers, mechanical, electrical engineers.
It was all under their control.

Q. So did they act as part of their role to be
the owner's rep concerning certain items on the
project?

A, No.-

Q. What was their rele, then, in, I guess,
dealing with those subtiers? Like JBA was one of their
subtieré?

A. Right.

Q. So what was their role if they weren't acting
as owner's rep for certain approvals, or how did that
work?

A I am not sure what you are asking.

Q. Like, for instance, 1f they asked for
submittals on certain items to make sure that what was
going to be provided by a contractor or subcontractor
was to contract, were they the one that would have the
ultimate approval or would it go all the way up to,
say, you as the owner's rep for approval?

A. How did that process work?

Q. Yeah, how did that process work?

A, Weli:vthe process is that in the construction

Depo International, LLC
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Page 13
documents there is specifications that clearly indicate
what submittals are required in the project. The
subcontractor. would prepare those specifications; you
know, product data, drawings, whatever was required
within the spec. It would first go to Whiting Turner.
They are required by our contract to review those
documents to make sure that they meet and fall within
the range of the contract deocuments. If they did, they
transmitted directly to JMA.

JMA would then distribute to whatever party
was required, either JBA or the structural engineer,
They would review them for the specification, to meet
all the specifications. If they did, they would stamp
them reviewed. Sometimes they stamped them reviewed as
noted, just because there might be some miner errors.
It would go back to JMA; JMA would review them. Then
if they were approved and stamped by them, then it
would go back to Whiting Turner. Then Whiting Turner
would in turn)g%ve copies back te the subcontractor.

0. And down the line?

A. Down the line. The only time I ever got
invelved on anything would be if the submittal was
totally out of range of the specifications.

Q. And do you recall any instances like that on

this project?

Depo International, LLC
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Page 14

A, No.

Q. So in the submittal process, then, JMA had
the final approval of the submittals that were for the
contract work?

A Well, it's a combination. I require that the
contractor approve them because he bid the job, and I
am holding him responsible fox, you know -- I am
holding Whiting Turner respongible to build it within
the specifications. So from my point of view, Whiting
Turner's approval is just as important as the
engineer's approval. They are all equal in the realm-
of responsibility.

0. JMA, Whiting Turnex?

A. JBA. Everyone is -- from the owner's point
of view, they are all held --

. Bqually responsible?

A, -~ equally responsible.

Q. What was your involvement with the selection
of subcontractors on the project?

A, 'What the process is that we go through is
that we do an RFP. Whiting Turner did an RFP to at
least three and ﬁostly five subcontractors for each
trade. We would review who thef were bidding to in
case we had people that we wanted to add; or if we had

experiences with contractors we don't want to deal with

=

Depo International, LLC
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anymore, then they would bid the project. We weould as
a team -- and that would include myself and our
corporate —-- we have an estimating group and we have
other people in Cleveland that would review the scope
of work, make sure that the scope was complete. We
would evaluate the cost.

As a public company we do not have to select
the lowest bidder, but we do select the lowest
qualified bidder on the project. We would normally
narrow that down te three. We had —- I mean, we had
five to six on each trade because of the timing, and
everybody wanted to work on the City Hall project. So
we narrow it down to three.

We would bring them.in and have an interview.
We require -- ForestCity requires interviews, which
means you bring your project managers, you bring your
foremen. You bring anyone in upper level that would be
on that site in. And we would have resumes. And we
truly -- you know, it's a team effort. So we do a
complete review.

At that time, we would gb back and reconvene.
We would say, okay, we like, you know, this person or
that person. There was always qualifications of the
initial bid, because somecne would miss this or we

would have questions. Then we would bring them back in

15
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for their final cost proposal.

At that point Whiting Turner would alsoc have
a major input and provide their selection to ForestCity
for approval. And at that time we would review the

final packages and make, you know, and say that is the

contractor.
Q. That is a very owner-involved process.
A. ForestCity is a general contractor. We got

away from it years ago because development goes up and
down. But we are a very hands-on group and we do’
understand construction. And we have done it
ourselves. 8o, you know, we pride ourselves on, you
know, producing gquality projects on time and on budget,
or that are under budget, which this project was underx
budget.

Q. Oh, really? 1 wasn't aware of that.

S50 you were involved in obviously with the

selection of Mojave -~

A, Yes.

Q. -~ as a subcontractor?

A. Along with other ForestCity entities —-- or
personnel.

Q. Okay. And deo you go any further down the --
A. No.

Q. -- subtiexr?

Page 16
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And when itlcomes to, T guess, management of
payments, are-you -— is the owner involved in managing
payments to subcontracteors?

A, No.

Q. so would you only then be approving payments
to Whiting Turner, or how did the whole payment process
work?:

A. The payment process was also pretty detailed.
It was detailed in development agreement of how 1t.
would be donel lOnce-a month all the subcontractors
would provide Whiting Turner with their billing
information. I would review all the detail of Mojave's
billing per se. Because it's billed on a percentage of
completion, I would say yes or no, or this area is not
what he is billing for or whatever; we would make
corrections.

At that point, when that was corrected, we
would sit down with the City staff and walk the
project. They would also review the completion
percentages, as well as the architect at the same time.
When that was ~- when everybody agreed to that package,
thén we would -—- it would be signed by the architect.

I would send kﬁat package to Cleveland, where the
executive vice president was required to initial off to

make sure, which he understood that I went through it

17
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pretty thoroughly.

And then the invoice would at that point be
put together -- that billing would be put together with
our invoice, for our fees and architectural fees or any
other fees we would have a combined invoice of
everyone's. That would be submitted to the City. The
City had a five-person signoff of that invoice.

| At that time it would be sent to the trustee
for the project, which is I believe Bank of America.
They would at that time wire transfer funds to Whiting
Turner for their billing. They would wire transfer
ForestCity, which in turn we would wire transfer to our
third-party consultants.

Q. And that happensd every month?

A. Every month.

Q. Wow. 8o how long would that process take for
the approval of a billing?

A, We were required to do that within ten days
in the development agreement. The City had -- as soon
as we completed our process, the City had ten days to
do it. We were following under the State statute of I
believe 45 days, which we always met.

G. Wow. So I guess just to backtrack a tiny
bit, how exactly did the whole development -- because

it was privately owned property, but there was

18
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Page 19
obviously a pﬁblic component, I guess, in some way.
Can you describe to me how that sort of worked?

A. It was a private public partnership. The
funding came from Build American Bonds, and we were
able to construct and develop it for the City. B2And we
negotiated for land costs to do the trade of the two
parcels. for the rest of it.

Q. Okay. So did you have a requirement for
Whiting Turner concerning the Disadvantaged Business
Entities percentage that was to be met or to try to be
met on the project?

A. That was —-- during our negotiations with the
City, it was at a time when they were laying off
people. It was a tough time to sell a new City Hall.
The City had a lot of éressure on them from the
minority groups to say, If you are geing to do this,
please get participation. 'The City does not have a
diversity program that they can enforce in the city.

So‘they came to us and said, We would like
you to try and get the participation. And we agreed as
a goal to try to get 15 percent. We ineluded that goal
to Whiting Turner's contracts. And from there they
managed how that was obtained.

Q. So it was a city reguirement essentially?

A. Well, it was a request, a strong request.

Depo International, LLC
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Which we ended up getting over 20 percent at the end of
the day.

Q. So did you leave it to Whiting Turner, then,
to enforce it or encourage subcontractors to meet
certain goals? |

A. During that first interview process before,
you know, we ;warded contractors, we told them that it
was an important factor in selection, as well as for
selection purposes. They needed to come to the table
with some diversity.

Q. So were they reguired to identify like which
arcas they would be, you know, meeting diversity with?

A. Early on, no. They basically came back and
said, We feel for this contract we can get 8 percent or
we can get 10 percent, you know. And we monitored
them. And most of the contractors met their goals.

And the ones that didn't actually we had them

contribute,

Q. How dc you mean?

A, Thefe.was one contractor that poorly missed
his goal. And we had him -- well, he volunteered to --

in the minority publications take out ads for his
company, which was a benefit to the minority magazines
and to the minority groups. So we convinced them to do

things of that nature.
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Q. Okay. Was there -- I guess speaking of if
they didn't meet their goal, was there any conseguence?

A, No. We would only ask that they do

something.
Q. Okay .
A. It was monitored on a meonthly basis during

the pay application process.

Q. . Because they were required to submit like the
certificates of DBE with their pay aps?

A, Yeah.

Q. So did you check that with Whiting Turner on
a monthly basis?

A No. They provided ForestCity with a report.
Tt was based off costs of the project, costs of each
subcontractor. They provided us a breakdown and we
never audited.

Q. Then I guess in conjunction-with payments,
did you require a certain wailver or releases from subs
and suppliers for Whiting Turner to get those, or did
yoéu rely on Whiting Turner to make sure that they were
obtaining the proper releases?

A, We did get all releases.

Q. How did you monitor, I guess, what releases
you would need?

A, They had a -- Whiting Turner had a breakdown

- Depo International, LLC
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within the pay application for the previous menth's
payments. We would get unconditionals, you know, for
that breakdown after the payment and they would provide
us conditional waivers with the initial payment. And
Whiting Turner had to do unconditionals and
conditionals to us for the project too.

Q. So did you have anyone in your offices

Fo« JRNESS I s SRR &2 B S VU R A R

tracking, say, preliminary notices with releases, or

g how did you =--

10 A. Yes, that went to our corporate.
11 Q. So someone in Cleveland was handiing that?
12 A. Yes. Michelle did -- Michelle Lagina did

13 that. She bugged me all the time. When am I getting
14 my releases?
15 Q; So did you rely on a combination of Whiting

16 Turner keeping track of which suppliers were supplying

17 to the projects under subcontractors, or did you have
18 your own tracking system?
13 A, We did not get conditionals or unconditionals

20 from suppliers. It was from the first tier. So we

2% would get —- like, Mojave would provide us conditionals
22 and unconditionals for --

23 Q. Its paymenfé?

24 A, Yeah;\

2b Q. Then you weren'lt tracking downstream subs and

Depo International, LLC
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1 suppliers to Mojave?

2 A, No.

3 c. Is there a reason why you weren't tracking

4 downstream?

5 A, Because that is not part of our standard

B process.

7 C. Did you rely on Whiting Turner to be tracking

'8 downstream? .

8 : A. No, not in our contract it's not required.
10 Q. Were you concerned about lien claims from

11 people who might be unpaid under the subcontractor's
12 second, third tier suppliers or subs?

i3 A, Concerned about it? It happens all the time.
14 Q. But, I mean, not concerned enough to require

15 that, I guess; releases be provided?

16 A. I+ hasn't been in our past history a major
17 concern for us on subtiers and suppliers.
i8 Q. Okay. Can you tell me what the status of the

19 project 1s now?

20 - A, Well, on February 14th of this year it's
21 going to be one year opened. We had substantial

22  completion on February 14th of 2012.

23 Q. Is the project totally clcsed out at this
24 point?

25 A. No.

_ Depo International, LLC
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1 Q. And what is,.I guess, left open?
2 A. The contract with Whiting Turner is still
3 open. g
4 Q. Why 1s it open?
5 A We were still negotiating some requests from
6 them specifically. We still have the Mojave contract
7 open because there is payments still within that --
8 their line items or schedule of values for the
9 generator, which I held after -- it was pretty much

10 paid out, but it was the completion portion that's

11 there.

12 Q. so you are holding money for the generator
13 from Whiting Turner?

14 A. From Mojave.

15 Q. From Mojave, Do you recall offhand how much

16 you are holding? Is it the full cost of the generator

17 line item?

18 A. No. I would be surprised if it's $30,000.
i9 It's somewhere in there, I think.

20 Q. So the project has a permanent C of 07

21 AL Co;rect.

22 | Q. Do you recall when you got that?

23 A, On February 1l4th.

24 0. And then —-— I mean, I am sure you generalily

25 know that we are here because Cashman didn't get paid
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1 for the generator and the UPS equipment that it
2 supplied to the project.
.3 A, I have been told that.
4 Q. S0 when we talk about the generator and UPS3
5 equipment, it's kind of a package deal. You know what
6 1 am referring.to?
7 A. . Yes.
8 Q. So what is the status of the generator, UES3

] equipment on the project now?

10 A Well, it's installed. I am being told that
11 it would operate in case of an emergency. I have not
12 witnessed that. ‘Due to a lack of some programming on

13 the system itself, it does not give my client, the

14 City, the opportunity to go into a laptop on site or

15 off site and monitor the status of the generator

16 systems, which is critical. Most buildings are fully
17 automated and have a building management system. And
18 they sit up in an office when they need to check to

19 ‘verify that the fuel is correct, the batteries are

20 operating, how that system is operating after it starts
21 up for RPMs and the technical things that need to be
22 monitored on these systems in case of an emergency, - and
23 that is not available. |

24 Q. And so as a result of that, were you taking

25  any action against Whiting Turner or Mojave or --

Depo International, LLC
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Page 26
A. We have been, you know, pushing to get
resclution of .that. '
Q. Of that issue?
A, Cof that issue,.
. So does that leave any pending issues between

you, your company, ©Or ForestCity and the City of Las
Vegas?

A. The City is aware of the situation. Being
aware of it, they can manually go check things, which
they are doing, but they are not very pleased about it.
Because there is a fault on the generator panel.

What do you mezn? What does that mean?

A It's a big red light that flashes.
Q. Like something is wrong?
A, Yeahs..

{Exhibit 2 marked.)

BY MS. LLOYD:

Q. Can you take a look at this document? This
was produced in conjunction with a subpocena that I
issued te ForestCity. Do you recognize ‘this document ?

A. Yes. It's the one I provided. It's the last
executed pay applicaticon to Whiting Turner.

Q. Okay. And then if you go to page Rates stamp
5, can you tell me what -— under the electrical, that

first line item, it looks like there is a withholding.

Depo International, LLC
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am I reading that.correctliy?

A. Yeah, there was a retainage still held.

Q It locks like —-- is that 792 or —--

B Yeah, it's --

Q In that range?

A Yeah, I believe.

Q. Is that still being withheld?

A Yes.

o} From‘Whiting Turner?

A From Moijave.

Q. Through Whiting Turner, I guess. So why is
that being withheld?

A. We were closing out with Mojave. There were
several change orders that they had asked for that did
not get approved before this was done.

Q. So that line item is not related to the
generator equipment?

A No.

Q. Do you have a breakdown of what it is related
to somewhere else?

A. Whiting Turner would. Whiting Turner held
21l the files for this project. I did not keepl—- they
are to provide'ﬁe on disk the entire file system, which
I have not received because we haven't closed out yet.
So this is ali T had available.

Depo Infernational, LLC
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0. ' What type of file, like, recordkeeping
software do they use?

A. I don"t know.

Q. There wasn't a requirement for a specific
program? -

A {Shakes head.)

Q. 3o that withhelding on there is not related
to the generator?

A, Neo.

Q. In speaking with Nancy from Whiting Turner,
she seemed to indicate that it was related to the
generator. Unless 1 misunderstood -—— T guess ‘1 am
trying to understand. Do you recall —— you are still
holding it, or have you paid it out?

4. ‘No.

Q. You are still helding it?

A. Until a project is completely closed out with

a contractor, I do not release. I release 5 percent.
That is 5 percent, I Selieve. And then column, I think
it says 5 percent. I released under percentage
retainage; it's 5 percent. Until a project is closed
out, ForestCity's policy is we do not release all the
retainage. And it's not specifically to any certain
item.

Q. Well, that particular item shows both a

‘ Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 9872-3299 admin@depointernational.com
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balance tc finish and a retainage amount. Those are
two separate -- are those two separate -~ because most
of the items show basically no balance to finish,
because they are all looking like they are complete and
have been paid ocut, except for some show retention. So
that's why I was-trying to understand exactly what the
status of the payment to Whiting Turner was on that
particular item,. because it looks like there is a.
halance to finish and then a retainage amount.

A, The balance to f£inish was listed of the

contract change orders that we were still negotiating.

0. - Do ycu recall what those were about?
A, No .
Q. So did the owner withhold any funds from

Whiting Turner and Mojave related to the generator
beyond -- I think you identified 3C,0007?

A. That's all we did because it was a specific
line item. Mojave's contract would have -- or pay
application would have this cover sheet. And then they
were required to give us schedule of values for every
item of their scope of work, which entailed the
electrical,raudio, visual, I mean, the whole breakdown.
It was a specific line item for the generator.

Q. So fhé generator line item was somewhere in

the range of 800,000. But if it was, would you have

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@dcpointernational.com
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1 withheld 800,000 or would you withhold an amount you
2 determined separately, or did you have a way of coming
3 up with what youw were going to withhold?
4 A, The generator was already paid out before
5 this was brought to our attention. So I just refused
6 to pay any more omn that line item.
7 Q. Okay)' I guess what's the status of the
8 negotiations with Whiting Turner to close everything
9 out?
10 A, We are hoping to have it all closed out
11 within the next two weeks.
12 Q. Then what is your plan, I guess, in reference

13 to the operation of the generator eguipment as far as,
14 you know, I guess sort of how that is going to work
15 with the City?

16 A. We have asked Whiting Turner to give us a
17 proposal on how they want to handle it. They have to
18 deal with their contractor.

19 Q. Have they come to you with any proposal yet?
20 A. No. They are in the -- they are just

21 following this process. That is all they can give us
22 the information.

23 Q. So is that item just going to remain open
24 until the litigation is complete?

25 A.  Well, the lien has been bonded around. As

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 agmin@depoinfernational.com

JA 00001770




David Phillips - 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs. CAM Consuiting, Inc., et al,

w -~ oy s e N

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 31
far as the City, the iien has been bonded. But
operationalwise I am not sure. We have been trying to
get resolution of this, so that I can go down and talk
to the City to determine exactly what their position is
on this.

Q. Okay. . Did you have .any involvement in
choosing the generator system requirements?

‘A, . No, I am not an electrical engineer.

Q. So was -that a JMA role as part of their
design services?

A, Yes, JMA, JBA.

c. Did you have any involvement in approving the
system that was proposed by Mojave to be used?

A. No;

Q. Would that just have been JMA and Wwhiting

Turner?

A, Tt's a combination of JMA, Whiting Turner and
JBA .

o S0 would you have seen any of the submittals

concerning any type of the equipment that was being

supplied to the project?

A, No, not on that specific item, no. The
specifications are performance specifications. It
requires -- it will provide at least three different

manufacturers of equipment, three to five; which is our

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@depointernational.com
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requirement. We cannot single-source a product for
ForestCity. We are a public company. Any of those
manufacturers would have to meet the performance
specifications that the engineers design te. If
those -- that selection process, they are all equal in
the engineer's eyes as well as the owner's eyes, then
they can -- they are responsible for making sure that
system is compieta.
| r{Exhibit 3 marked.)

BRY MS. LLOYD:
Q. Take a look at this document. Have you seen

it before?

A Yes.

Q Ahd when did you first see the lien?

. I don't recall exactly when I saw the lien.
0. Was it shortly after it was recorded?

A At some point. Like I said, I can't give an

exact time,.

Q. pDid you -—- it was forwarded to you from
Cleveland, your Cleveland offices?

A, Yes.

o. And then what action did you take once you
were aware of the lien?

A, I took a copy over to Whiting Turner aﬁd

said, Address this issue.

Depo International, LLC
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Q. and what did they say?

A, That is when it was bonded around.

Q. and so did you take any other action in
relation to the lien or the lien claim?

A, No.

Q. Did yeou have any discussicns with Whiting
Turner about what happened or why there was a iien?

A. I asked. what was going on.and they said they

were trying to contact Mojave to find out.

Q. - Dig you do any inguiry peyond that
afterwards?
A, No.

MS. LLOYD: I don't think I have any other
questions.
| MR. ‘BOSCHEE: T think I have a couple.
EXAMINATICON
BY MR. BOSCHER:

Q. Locking at Exhibit 3, I understand that you
don't recall exactly what date that you saw that. Was
that the first time that you learned or ascertained of
the issue that has caused us to sit here today?

A. Well, this was not specific to the issues ve
are sitting hereﬂﬁoday. It was a lien from Cashman for
equipment. That didn't explain why we are sitting here

today.

|

: Depo International, LLC
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Q. Well, what is your understanding of why we
are here today? -

A. It's all hearsay.

Q. Ckay,

MS. LLOYD: Depos are okay for hearsay.

THE WITNESS: When we started to commission
this building, we have a third-party commissicner on
the project. When they started to come cut and test
equipment and:do things, there was this flag that was
put on the generator system by cur third-party
consultant concerning, vyou kncw, PCL or whatever. And
at that point it sat there and I kept asking, Is this
resclved? Is this resolved? And they said, No, not
yet, not yet. And finally it came out that -- how it
was told that there was an issue with Cashman and CAM,
BY MR. BOGSCERE:

Q. Yeah.

A. And they explained to merthe situation. At
that point they didn't have all the detailed facts.
They just -- you know, they reassured ForestCity. It
was at an owner's meeting. We would have a meeting
prior to -- before the City came in. So in our meeting
they explained of the situation. And that they assured
us that we had final releases and things of that

nature. That put people somewhat to comfort and it was

Depo International, LLC
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bonded around. And we didn't know how -- we knew we
needed to get the program so that we could complete our
commissioning and move forward with the City.

Q. Prior to seeing this lien and getting this
from your corporate office, did you hawve any actuai
knowledge that Cashman Equipment Company was involved
in what we will call the project? Have you ever heard
of them before?

A. T have been here for 24 years. I have heaxrd
of Cashman. But no, generators show up, equipment
shows up. Who supplies it, who is installing it, I am
just relying '‘on Whiting Turner to make sure it's done.

Q. Okay. And I mean, sitting here right now, do
you have any actual knowledge of when or whether
Cashman Eguipment Company actually supplied the
generators to the project?

A. No, I don't.

Q. And following up on that, do you have any
specific recollection of when the generators were
delivered to the.project?

A, Not specifically, no.

Q. Is it fair to say you just know that they got
there and it got put in and the construction kept
flowing?

A, Correct.

Depo International, LLC
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Q. Now, I had ancther gquestion from my notes in
télking to you. -Do you recall -- I believe thére was a
pending leg that you reviewed from time to time; 1is
that correct?

A, Every day. -

Q. T didn't want tc hold your feet to the fire
on the everyday thing, but I knew it was pretty much
every day. Do you recall seeing anything in the
pending log about change orders with respect to the
generators? -

A. There .was none.

Q. Okay. And again, just to clarify, your
company and you perscnally had played nc part in the --
T guess we will call it the screening process for the
disadvantaged business entities that were used on this
preject, did you?

A. No.

Q. And with respect to -- with respect to JMA's
involvement, you talked te Ms. Lloyd zbout this a
little bit earlier. 1Is it fair teo say that their
primary job was to deal with the design and the design
changes once the preject got going; is that fair?

A. Yes.

MR. BOSCHEE: T deon't think I have anything

further.

36
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M5. LILOYD: I have a follow-up.
FURTHER EXAMINATION
By MS. LLOYD:
Q. What 1s a-pending leg?
A. . ForestCity requires all of our contractors to

keep track of any possible change or foreseeable change
and project a cost that could impact the project. We
don't like surprises. If you know you have a

problem -- if we know we have a problem out there with
some steel, we would indicate that on this pending log
and we would project a cost. So every month we knew
what our exposure was to the project in any changes.

It might end up being zero.

The City might come and say, Dave, I want you
to redo these floor plans, which they did. We would
put that on there and we would project a cost involved
in that. So that at the end of the day, every month we
knew what our true cost exposure was on a monthly basis
for finance purposes.

Q. Would you see, like, a pending cost if
Whiting Turner determined that, say, a sub missed
something and didn't bid it properly so they were going
to essentially put the cost back onto the sub? Would
they have notified you of something like that?

A, No.

37
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Q. Or only if it was going to be an
owner—impacted change cr potential cost?

A. It tracked -- if Whiting Turner missed
something in the contract itself, that item would be
put -- it would be tracked to Whiting Turner. If
ForestCity asked for a change, it would be listed as
ForestCity. And if the City made a change, it would be
Ccity. Beyond that, nothing else went on that log.

Q. Sc it was only if; say, Whiting Turner was
geing to ask for more money --

A. Right.

Q. —- related to a certain item.

S¢ if they made a determination that, say,
Mojave missed scmething and it was in the drawings and
they sheuld have included it and it wasn't going to be
a change to the owner, Yyou wouldn't be notified --

A, No; I wasn't.

Q. -— an issue like that.

Talking about the generator, 1 guess,

delivery. Do yocu recall seeing the generators be

deilivered?
A, I just saw them sitting there one day.
Q. Before they were in the box or however they

are hcused in the eqguipment rcom, OF after they were

already in thé équipment room?

Depo International, LLC
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A. After they were already in the -- it's a wall
enclosure.

Q. Okay. Do you recall meeting Shane Norman of
cashman Equipment Company?

A. His name doesn't sound familiar.

Q. 1t would have been arcund the time of the
lien, sort of ﬁhe dispute concerning the payment
issues, He recalled, I guess visiting the site and
meeting you, but I dgon't know if you had recalled.

A, 1 met so many people.

Q. ¥No, I am sure. Especially every day .

A. The name doesn't souna familiar, but ; am not

saying I didn't meet him. I am just saying I don't
recall meeting him.

0. But you don't recall having a conversation
concerning this wounced check and the issue with the
nonpayment. of the generator?

A. T don't recall that.

MS. %LOYD; Okay. That 1s all I have.
(THereupon, the deposition

concluded at 4:00 p.m.}

T T
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CERTIFTCATE OF DEPONENT
PAGE LINE CHANGE REASON

* * * * *

I, David Phillips, deponent herein, do hereby
certify and declare the within and foregoing
{ranscription to be mY'deposition in said action; that
1 have read, corrected and do hereby affix my signature

to said deposition under penalty of perjury.

DAVID PHILLIPS, Deponent

Depo International, LLC
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CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
STATE OF NEVADA ) ‘

) 58:
COUNTY OF CLARK ) .

I, Christy L. DeJcnker, a duly commissioned
Notary Public, Clark County, State of Nevada, doc hereby
certify: That I reported the deposition of David
Phillips, commencing on Thursday, January‘lo, 2012, at
3:00 p.m. '

That pricr to being deposed, the witness was
duly sworn by me to testify to the truth, That I
thereafter transcribed my said shorthand notes into
typewriting and that the typewrittern transcript is a
complete, true and accurate transcription of my said
shorthand notes. That review of the transcript was
requested.

I further certify that T am not a relative,
employee or independent contractor of counsel of any of
the parties; nor a relative, employee or independent
contractor of the parties involved in said action; nor
a person financially interested in the action; nor do I
have any other relationship with any of the parties or
with counsel of any of the parties involved in the
action that may reascnably cause my impartiality to be
guestioned.

IN WITNESS WHERECF, I have set my hand in my
office in the County of Clark, State of Nevada, this
14th day of January, 2013.

CHRISTY LYN DeJONKER, CCR NO. 691

Depo International, LLC
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CLERK OF THE COURT

~ DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASOMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a
Nevada corporation,

Plaintiff,
VS,

CAM CONSULTING INC.,, a Nevada
corporation; ANGELO CARVALHO, an
individual; JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL
CARVALHO, an individual; WEST EDNA
ASSOCIATES, LTD., dba MOJAVE
ELECTRIC, a Nevada corporation;
WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a
surety; THE WHITING TURNER
CONTRACTING COMPANY, a Maryland
corporation; FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT
COMPANY OF MARYLAND, a surety;
TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND SURETY
COMPANY OF AMERICA, a surety; QH
LAS VEGAS LLC, a foreign limited
liability company; PQ LAS VEGAS, LLC, a
foreign limited liability company; LW TIC
SUCCESSOR LLC, an unknown limited
Lability company; FC/LW VEGAS, a

Case No.: A642583
Dept. No.: 32

Consolidated with Case No.: A653029

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY’S
SUPPLEMENT TO ITS
COUNTERMOTION FOR SUMMARY
JUDGMENT ON ITS PAYMENT BOND
AND MECHANIC’S LIEN CLAIMS

Date: April 16, 2013
Time: 9:00 a.m.
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foreign limited liability company; DOES 1 -
10, inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS 1
- 10, inclusive;

. Defendants,

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY’S SUPPLEMENT TO ITS
COUNTERMOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT ON ITS PAYMENT BOND AND
MECHANIC’S LIEN CLAIMS

Plaintiff, CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY (“Cashman”), by and through its

undei;signed counsel of record, respectfully submits the following Supplement to Its
Countermotion for Summary Judgment on its Payment Bond and Mechanic’s Lien Claims.
This Supplement incoréérates the Countermotibn and all associated filings, is supported by
the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the exhibits attached hereto, the
Court’s file, and any evidenée adduced at the continuec_l hearing,

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

Il
INTRODUCTION

Summary Judgment should be granted in favor of Cashman and against Defendants,
West Edna Associates, Ltd, dba Mojave Electric (“Mojave”) and Western Surety Company
(“Western”) on Cashman’s claim to enforce its mechanic’s lien against the lien release bond
obtained by those Defendants as the evidence submitted with this Supplement when
considered in conjunction with that submitted in suppott of Cashman’s Countermotion, filed
on or about Septembe:r'l9, 2012, establish that Cashman properly perfected its lien claim as a
imatter of law and no genuine issues of material fact exist.

After the hearing held on November 9, 2012, the Court ordered that supplemental
pleadings be filed on the pending motions to include what materialé were delivered, when
supplies were delivered, and time certain notice information, allowing additional discovery to

be conducted concerning the notice issue. During this time, it was discovered that Cashman
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timely served two Notice of Right to Liens as required by NRS 108.245 in addition to the
Notice submitted with itsA Countermotion that Mojave argued was untimely. As Cashman
complied with NRS 108.245, and as Cashman has estabhshed that it fulfilled the remaining
requirements of NRS C‘hapte1 108 to maintain and enforce its lien claim as set forth in its
Countermotion for Summary Judgment, summary judgment should be entered in favor of
Cashman on its mechanic’s lien claim.

The hearing on Cdshman s Countermotion for Summary Judgment as to its Payment
Bond Clalm against The Whiting Turner Contracting Company (“Whiting Turner”) and
Fidelity and Deposit Company of Maryland (“Fidelity”) was also continued. In that
Countermotion, Cashman esfablished that judgment shdu]d be granted in its favor on its claim
against the payment bond obtained by Whiting Turner and its surety Fidelity, as Cashiman is a
claimant on the bond, fulfilled the requirements of the bond and remains unpaid for the work
performed, The Whiting Tume=r payment bond does not contain a notice requirement similar
to that of NRS 108.245, the issue for which the Court ordered supplemental briefing.
However, Defendants did argue as to the timeliness of the notice sent by Cashman informing
Whiting Turner that it héd not been paid, as that notice was required to be sent within 90 days
of the date work was last performed. Cashman is submitting evidence of its satisfaction of
this requirement with this Supplement. Cashman served its notice of claim on Whiting Turner
on June 24, 2011. Cashman personnel were last on the Project on May 23, 2011. As such,
Cashman’s notice of claim was sent within 90 days of its last date of work on the Project.

1L
STATEMENT OF UNDISPUTED FACTS

1. The Project was owned by FC/LW Las Vegas LLC and LWTIC Successor
LLC c¢/o Forest City Enterprises (with a conglomerate of private entities which include PQ

Las Vegas and QH Las Vegas) from December 2009 until Febmaly 17, 2012, when the
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building was transferred to the City of Las Vegas, Nevada., See Exhibit “14.” All of these
entities will collectively be referred to herein as “Owner.”

2. Cashman contracted with Cam (‘onsultmg, Inc. (“Cam”) to supply materials to
the New Las Vegas City Hall Project (the “PmJec ") comprised of generators and switchgear
equipment and associated items. See Exhibit “17 and “13” to Countermotion for Summary
Judgment. | |

3. Cashman iniﬁelly submitted a revised Quote te Mojave on or ahout J aﬁuary 11,
2010 for the materials at issue and according to owner requirements with a total price of
$855,467.00. See Exhibit “1” and “2,” attached hereto.

4. The Quofe from Cashman to Mojave details the materials to be supplied as two
Caterpillar diesel generators, Catelpillar switchgear and Mitsubishi battery backup. As part of
supplying the materials for this price, Cashman also agreed to ship the materials to the
Project, perform start up functions, commission the equipment, perform load bank testing and
provide training to users. Cashman was also to provide a parts and labor warranty from
startup and two years of service and maintenance. See Exhibit “2.”

5.  Mojave issued two purchase orders on April 23, 2010 to purchase these
materials for a fotal price of $757,611.00. The purchase orders were issued to “CAM
Consulting /o Cashman Equipment,” See Exhibit “3,” attached hereto.

0. Cashman’s scope of work on the Project included preparing submittals for
approval of the materials, as required by the Mojave purchase orders. Id. See also Exhibit
«“15,” Deposition of Brian Bugni at p. 57, Ins. 14 — 25; and Exhibit “16,” Deposition of
Christopher Meiers at p.. 16, Ins, 1-8.

7. The submittals were given by Mojave to Whiting Turner, the general

contractor for the Project, who in turn provided them to the IMA, the executive architect hired
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by the Owner, as testified to by David Phillips’, the owner representative. See Exhibit “17,”
Deposition of David Phillips at pgs. 11-13.

8. JMA and Whiting Turner were responsible for approving the submittals for the
materials to be mppﬁed‘ by Cashman to the Project. Id. atp. 13. |

9. Cashman provided submittals for the materials it Iwas to supply to Mojave for
the Project on January 25, 2010, March 9, 2010 and April 12, 2010. See Exhibit “1.”

10. Casﬁman received correspondence forwarded by Mojave requesting revisions
to certain items included in the submittals and provided its fesponse on May 24, 2010, See |
Exhibit “4,” attached hereto (CASH 1762).

11. Caé.hman ré&ived notice of approval for certain materials from Mojave
diréctly on June 16, 2010. Sée. Exhibit 5,” attached hereto (CASH 1763).

12,  Cashman received the Materials Release Order from Mojave directing it to
begin procuring the materials for delivery to the Project on August 11, 2010, See Exhibit
«18”_ attached hereto (CASH 1766-67).

13.  Cashman began pro.curing fhe materials shortly thereafter. See Exhibit “1.”

14.  Cashman treceived notice of approval for certain materials from Mojave
directly on September 21, 2010. See Exhibit “20,” attached hereto (CASH1168).

15, The Mitsubishi uninterrupted power supply was delivered to Mojave on
Noverber 18, 2010, See Exhibit “6”, attached hercto (CASH 1769).

16.  The Caterpillar switchgear was delivered to Mojave on December 27, 2010,
See Exhibit “7”, attached hereto (CASH 1770).

17.  The three automatic transfer switches and the two batteries for the switchgear

were provided to Mojave on January 5,2011, See Exhibit “8”, attached hereto (CASH 1771).

1 David Phillips is employed ‘“with Forest City Construction Services, LLC, which is a business unit of Forest
City Enterprises, Tae, based in Cleveland, Ohio.” See Exhibit “17,” p. 5, tns. 15-1 8. Forest City Construction
Services was employed as the owner’s representative by QH Las Vegas, LLC, the entity that owned and
developed the Property. Id. at p. G, Ins. 23-25. PQ Las Vegas, LILC is another related entity formed for the land
swap. Id.atp. 7, ns. 13-15. Forest City Enterpriscs, Tne. is the parent corporation for all of the related entitics.
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18. Cashman coqrdinated delivery of the two Caterpillar diesel generators with
Mojave directly to the Project. See EXhibit “1.” |

19. | The two Caterpiliar diesel generators were delivered to the Project on January
19,2011, See Exhibit “19,” Delivery Receipts. |

20. Deliveiy of the generators required the use of a crane. See Exhibit “16,” p. 22,
Ins. 1-2.

21,  The generators were installed into the Project by Mojave upon delivery. Id. at
p. 21, Ins. 21-24. '

22. Chris Meiers, Mojave’s project manager, {estified that Cashman’s scope of
work included putting the exhaust system togethef after delivery and performing start-up
functions. Id. at p. 25, lns 17-19. |

23,  The iné."fﬁllation of the materials supplied by Cashman would be completed
over “a couple months.” Id. at p. 26, Ins. 5.-19,

74,  Cashman personnel were last at the Project performing work required for the
materials on May 23, 2011, See Exhibit “1.”

95 (Cashman issued two invoices for the materials supplied totaling $755,893.89.
See Exhibit “13,” to Countermotiop for Sumimary Tudgment.

56.  Cashman served a Notice of Right to Lien on April 20, 2010 addressed to
Mojave and Forest City Enterprises at Terminal Tower #1410, 50 Public S., Cleveland, OH
44113-2202. This Notice was served by certified mail and the record kept in the ordinary
course of business. See Exhibit “9,” attached hereto (CASH1734).

7.  The assessor’s page record ownership information at the time the first Notice
of Right to Lien was sérved listed the owner of the Project as PQ Las Vegas, LLC, % Forest
City Entrprs, Inc., Terminal Tower #1410, 50 Public Square, Cleveland, OH, 44113-2202. See
Exhibit “10,” attached hereto (CASH1735).
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28, Cashman rserved a Notice of Right to Lien on December 7, 2010 addressed to
Mojave, Whiting ‘Turner, and OH Las Vegas, LLC at 50 Public Square, Ste 1005, Cleveland,
OH, 44113, This Notice was served by certified mail and the record kept in the ordinary
course of business. See Exhibit “11,” attached hereto (CASH1736) |

29. Cashman Lecewed a job information sheet from Mojave for this Project, which
listed the owner of the Project as OH Las Vegas, LLC, 50 Public Square, Suite 1005,
Cleveland OH, 44113. See Exhlblt «12,” attached hereto (CASH 1737).

30,  David Philips testified at his deposition as to the Notice of Right to Lien served
on December 7, 2010 that if served on the address listed that is the Forest City Construction
Services or Forest City Commercial Construction suite numbers and that records of
preliminary notices would have been kept there. See‘Exhibit «17.” atp. 11, Ins. 13 — 15.

31. Cashman served subpoenas on QH Las Vegas, LLC, PQ Las Vegas, LLC and
FC/LW Vegas, LLC in November, 2012. In 1'e§ponse, 1o documents were produced and
Cashman was informed that it should subpoena and depose David Phillips for Owner
documents.

32, Cashman served a Notice of Right to Lien on April 20, 2011 addressed to
Mojave and PQ Las Vegés, LLC at 50 Public Sq-TT #1410, Cleveland, OH, 44113-2202. See
Exhibit “13,” attached hereto (CASHO13).

33,  Cashman is currently owed $755,893.89 for materials supplied to Mojave
through Cam. See Exhibit 17 to Countermotion for Summary Judgment,

34.  Cashman has not received any payment toward the materials it supplied to this
Project, Id.

35, Cashman caused a mechanic’s lien to be recorded on the Project on June 22,
2011 in the amount of $755,893.80 and Cashman caused its mechanic’s lien to be served on

the Owner on June 29, 2011. See Exhibit “4” to Countermotion for Summary Judgment.
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36.  Cashman filed its complaint to foreclose on its mechanic’s lien on June 3,
2011. | .

37.  Mojave o_btained 2 bond to release Cashman’s mechanic’s lien from Western
and provided a copy of the bond to Cashman. See Exhibit “5” to Countermotion for Summary
Judgment. "

38. Cashfnan then amended its complaint to seek recovery on its mechanic’s lien
claim against the lien release bond.

11L
ARGUMENTS AND AUTHORITIES

A. Standard for Summary J udgment
In the case of Wood v. Safeway, inc., 121 Nev. 724, 121 P.3d 1026 (2005), the Nevada

Supreme Court adopted the same standard employed by the U.S. Supreme Court, The Court

stated that:
Summary Judgment is appropriate under NRCP 56 when the
pleadings, deposition, answers to interrogatories, admissions, and
affidavits, if any, that ave properly before the court demonstrate
that no genuine issue of imaterial fact exists, and the moving party
is entitled to judgment as a matier of law. The substantive law
controls which factual disputes are material and will preclude
summary judgment; other factual disputes are irrelevant. A
factual dispute is genuine when the evidence is such that a
rational trier of fact could return a verdict for the nonmoving

party.
Id. at 1029. In so holding, the Court expressly rejected the “glightest doubt” standard and
reiterated that the nonmoving party “is not cntitled to build a case on the gossamer threads of
whimsy, speculation, and conjecture.” 1d. at 1030 (citations omitted).
Summary judgmént is appropriate when, as a matter of 1aw, there is no genuine issue

as to any material fact. "NRCP 56(c); Prostack v. Songailo, 97 Nev. 38, 40, 623 P.2d 978

(1981); see also Barr v. Gaines, 103 Nev. 548, 549, 746 P.2d 634, 635-36 (1987) (summary

judgment is appropriate where only question is one of law).
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B. Cashman is Entitled to Summary Judgment Against Mojave and Western on its
echanic’s Lien Claim & ainst the Lien Release Bond.

Mechanic’s Lien Claim against the LJen Se 2t 2220

Cashman has complied with the requirements to hold and enforce its mechanic’s lien
and is entitled to judgmenf in its favor and against the lien release bond in the pthbipal
amount of $755,893.89, plus attorney’s fees, costs aﬁd interest. At the hearing on November
9, 2012, the Court requested that supplemental briefing be provided to address the timing of
the Notice of Right to Lien provided by Cashman, and to include more detailed information as

to the materials suppligceﬁ)y Cashman and the timing of Cashman’s work.

1. Cashman timely served its Notice of Right to Lien on the Owner in compliance
with NRS 108.245.

Cashman served two Notice of Right to Liens, in addition to the Notice submitted with

its Countermotion, in conjunction with its work on this Project, and in compliance with NRS
108.245. NRS 108.245 requires that a claimant who did not contract with the owner of the
Property where the worlk is to be performed, serve a notice of right to lien at any time after the
first delivery of material or performance of work occurs in person or by certified mail. Upon |
the giving of this notice, the lien claimant has a “right to lien for matetials or equipment
furnished or for work or services performed in the 31 days before the notice of right to lien is
given” and for work performed or materials supplied thereafter until the project is complete.
o

For ease of reference, Cashman has incorporated the undisputed facts surrounding its
work on this Project and its compliance with the notice requirements of NRS Chapter 108 in
the table included below:
i
"
i
i
i
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Date Action relevant to Cashman's work on Project ]
Cashman submitted revised quote 1@ Mojave for materials supplied to Project. See
Janwary 11, 2010 Exhibit “2.” :
January 25, 2010 Submittal provided to Mojave. See Exhibit “1.”
March 9, 2010 Submittal provided to Mojave. 1d.
" April 12, 2010 Submittal provided to Mojave. 1d.
Mojave issues (WO purchase orders to purchase materials fo be sapplied by Cashman.
April 23, 2010 " | See Bxhibit “3.”
April 28, 2010 Cashman serves first Notice of Right to Lien. Sec Txhibit “9.”
May 24, 2010 Cashman responds to Mojave concerning issues with submittals. See Fxhibit “4.”
June 16, 2010 Cashman reccives potice from Mojave (hat matetials arc approved. Sce Exhibit “5."
Cashman rec ives Material Release Order from Mojave and shortly thereafter begins
August 11, 2010 - procuting the materials, See Exhibit “18.”
November 18, 2010 Mitsubishi uninterrupted power supply delivered to Mojave. See Exhibit “6.”
December 7, 2010 Cashinan serves second Notice of Right to Lien. See Exhibit “11.”
December 27, 2010 Caterpillar switchgear delivered o Mojave. See Exhibit “7.”
‘ Three automatic transfer switches and (e two batteries for the switchgear were
Januvary 5, 2011 provided to Mojave. See Exhibit “8.”
January 19,2011 Two Caterpillar diesel generalors delivered to Project. See Exhibit “19.”
Beginning January 20, Cashman personnel at Project as needed to perform fonctions mcluded in scope of
2011 worl related to startup and installation. See Bxhibit **1.”
April 29, 2011 - Caghman serves third Notice of Right o Lien. See Bxhibit “13.”
May 23, 2011 Cashiman personnel last on Project. See Exhibit “1.?
| June 22, 2011 Lien recorded on Project. See Fxhibit “4” to Countermotion for Summary Judgment.

Cashman began work on.this Project in April 2010, as it started to perform work
required to complete its scope on the Project simultaneously with the issuance of the purchase
orders to procure the materials by Mojave, if’ not slightly earlier with the preparation of the
submittals related to the materials it was to supply. In conjunction with starting work,
Cashman served its first Notice of Right to Lien on April 29, 2010. This Notice of Right to
Lien was served on the owner of record via certified mail at the address on file with the Clark
County Assessor. See Exhibit “10.” Cashman then continuéd to perform work related to the
materials supplied to the Project to include responding to issues with submittals, receiving the
Material Release Order from Mojave and procuring the materials required.

After receiving a.job information sheet from Mojave that provided different owner
information, Cashman then served another Notice of Right to Lien on December 7, 2010 via

certified mail. See Exhibit “12.” While the owner information appears to be different, the

-10-
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senuce address is almost 1dent1cal and both are entities whose parent corporation is Forest
City Enterprises, Inc. See Exhibit “17, at p 7. Cashman caused materials to be dehvmed to
fulfill the purchase orders begmnmg in late December and continuing until § anuary 19, 2011
when the two generators are delivered to the Project. Shortly after dehvery the matenals
provided by Cashman were incorporated into the Project by Mojave.

Thé Notice of Right to Lien served by Cashman on the Owner on April 29, 2010
fulfills the requiremehts of NRS 108.245. The Mojave purchase orders were issued on Aprﬂ
23, 2010 and require the preparation of submittals as part of the scope of work. As set forth
herein, Cashman began its .WOIK shortly before April 23, 2010, as it began preparing and
providing to Mojave the submittals for the materials it was 10 supply to the Project. This
Notice of Right to Lien was served after Cashiman first began work undm its Contract with
Cam and pursuant to the puréhase orders issued by Mojave making it within the time required
by the statute This Notice of Right to Lien was served oﬁ the owner of record with the Clark
County Ase.e:asm NRS 108.22148 includes in its definition of Owner, “the owner ot OWRErs
of the property...as shown on the records of the county assessor.” Cashman performed a
search and then served the owner as shown on the records of the county assessof. As this
Notice of Right to Lien was served on the Owner of record after Cashman began work it
falfills the requirements of NRS 108.245, and as it was served within days of the purchase
orders procuring the materials, Cashman has the right to Tien for all of the materials prpvided
and work performed to the Project. See NRS 108.245(6).

Cashman served a second Notice of Right to Lien on December 7, 2010 after having
been provided with job. information from Mojave. This Notice of Right to Lien was also
served after Cashman began work, as set forth above, and the delivery of the materials
occurred within the 31 days prior to this Notice or after the service of this Notice as delivery
began on November 18,2010 and ended on January 19, 2011, NRS 108.245 allows Cashman

to lien for materials provided or work performed within the 31 days prior to service of this

S11-
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Notice and for all materials provided or work performed after service of this Notice. As the
delivery of the materials ¢alls within the time allowed by statute, Cashman would have the
ﬂghf to lien for the fuli'-\féiluc of fhe materials supplied and wo1k perfonned under its Contract.
The second Notice of Right to Lien was served on the 1'eputed owner of the Project, as
provided by Mojave. NRS 108.22148 includes in its defﬁlition of Owner, “the reputed ownet
or ownets of the property.” The address on the second notice is virtually identical to that of
the first, was acknowledged as a Eorest City address by David Phillips in his dcpdsitidn and is
to a related ent1ty that was 1eplescnted to be the owner of the Project to Cashman by Mojave.
Therefore, even if the first Notice of Right to Lien were disregarded, the second Notice of
Right to Lien fulfills the requjrements of NRS 108.245, and Cashman has the right to lien for

all materials Supplied and work performed on this Project.

2. Cashman is a Lien Claimant and Properly Perfected _its Mechanic’s Lien
Against the Proiect as_set forth in its Countermotion.

The purpose of the mechanic’s lien statutes “ig to secure payment to those who
perform labor or furnish. material to improve the property of the owner.” Crestline Investment
Group, Inc. v. Lewis, 119 Nev. 365, 368, 75 P.3d 363, 366 (2003). NRS Chapter 108 sets
forth the requirements to hold and enforce a mechanic’s lien in Nevada. The undisputed facts
establish that Cashman properly perfected and is entitled to enforce its mechanic’s lien claim
against the lien release bond obtained by Mojave and Wester, as Cashman (1) is a lien
claimant pursuant to NRS 108.2214; (2) timely served the notice of right to lien required by
NRS 108.245; (3) contracted to supply materials and supplied materials o the Project; (4)
failed to received payment for the materials supplied and incorporated into the Project; (5)
timely recorded and served its notice of lien pursuant to NRS 108.226 and NRS 108.227 in
the amount for which it is entitled to lien under NRS 108.222; and (6) filed this matter to
enforce its lien. Inits Countermotion for Summary Judgment, Cashman establishes that it has

complied with the requirements t0 hold and enforce its mechanic’s lien against this Project

-12-
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and fcn' the convenience of the Court; Cashman will limit this supplement to the additional
information lequested by the Coul‘t

Defendants’ main argument as to the enforceability of Cashman’s lien concerned
whether Cashman had timely served the Notice of Right to Lien on the owner as required by
NRS 108.245. As set forth above, Cashman timely served two Notices of Right to Lien that
fulfill the 1equnements of NRS 108.245 and allow Cashman to lien f or the materials supplied
and work performed within the 31 days prior o set rvice of the notice and for all materials
supplied and work pleOlD‘led thereafter until the Project is complete Based upon the dates of
sewice of the two Notices of Right to Lien, Cashman is entitled to lien for the full value of the
materials supplied and wcnk perfmmed which is the entire amount owed $755,893.89.

The amount of Cashman g lien is proper under NRS 108,222, Pursuant (o NRS
108.222, a lien claimant has a 11en upon the property and any improvements for wnich the
work, materials and equipment were furnished or to be furnished, where there 1s an agreed
upon price, for “the unpaid balance of the price agreed upon for such work, material ot
equipment. .. whether performed, furnished or to be performed or furnished at the instance of
the owner or his agent.” Cashman provided a quote that included a lump sum bid amount for
the materials to be supplied and the work to be performed to fulfill the Owner’s requirements
for the generator, switchgear and whinterrupted power supply equipment. See Exhibit “2.”
Mojave then issued two purchase orders that included the materials to be supplied and the
work to be performed on these items for the total price of $757, 611.00. This amount is the
agreed upon price for the work and materials. Cashman recorded its lien for the amount it is
owed out of the agreed upon price, which is $755,893.89. This is the amount for which
Cashman is entitled to lien pursuant to NRS 108.222.

Mojave agreed that the amount claimed by Cashman was the amount to be paid for the
work to be performed. As has been briefed, Cashman completed its work until its

performance was excused after it failed to receive payment from Cam. Cashman has

13-
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submitted evidence of the mateuals it delivered, which represert substantially all of the
materials it was to pr 0v1de and is entitled to lien for the entire unpaid amount as allowed by
NRS 108.222. However, should the Court determine that a dispute exists as to the amount of
the lien Cashman is entitled to enforce, summary judgment should be granted as to 1'1a5i1'1ty on
the perfection of Cash;ién’s lien and an evidentiary hearing set o determine the amount of

the judgment to be entered,

C. Cashman is Entitled {0 Summary Judgment Against Whiting Turney and Fidelity
on its Payment Bond Claim.

| As set forth in Cashman 8 Countermotion for Summary Judgment on its Payment
Bond Claim, filed on ot about September 19, 2012, Cashman is a claimant on this payment
bond by its terms, fulfilled the requirements of the bond to enforce a claim and remains
unpaid for the_work performed, entitling Cashman to judgment. This payment bond does not
contain a notice requirement stmilar to that of NRS 108.245, therefore Cashman was not
required to provide sotice to Whiting Turner that it was performing work on the Project.
However, Defendants did argue as to the timeliness of the notice sent by Cashman informing
Whiting Turner that it had not been paid, as that notice of claim was required to be sent within
90 days of the date Cashman last performed work on the Project, as set forth in Section 4.2.1.
Cashman served its notice of clalm on Whiting Tutner on June 24,2011, See Countermotion
for Summary Judgment, Exhibit “7.” Contrary 10 previous statements by Defendants,
Cashman’s work on the Project did not end with delivery of the materials. Instead, Cashman
was required to perform functions related to installation and startup, as detailed in Cashman’s
quote, required by Mojave’s purchasc orders, and testified to by Mojave personncl. Cashman
personnel were at the Project to perform this wo1k as required until May 2.3, 2011. As such,
Cashman’s notice of claim scnt o June 24, 2011 was sent within 90 days of its last date of

work on the Project and is timely under Section 4.2.1.
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1V.
CONCLUSION

established its right to payment on its payment bond claim.

ATED: March 18,2013 PEZZIILO L1.OYD

By: /sf Jennifer R. Lloyd
Jennifer R. Lloyd, Esd.
Nevada State Bar No. 9617
Marisa L. Maskas, Esd.
Nevada State Bar No. 10928
6725 Via Austi Patkway, Suite 290
Tas Vegas, Nevada 89119
Attorneys for Plaintiff,
Cashman Equipment Company

-15-

In this Supplement, Cashman has provided evidence concerning the materials it
delivered to the Project and has established that it complied with NRS 108.245, providing the
Owner with a Notice of Right to Lien. When this e{f:idence is considered in conjunction with
Cashman’s Motion ¢or Summary Judgment, the undisputed facts of this matter establish that
Cashman is entitied to judgment on its mechanic’s Hen claim as a matter of law in the

principal amount of $755,893.89, plus attorneys’ fees, costs and interest. Cashman has also
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BraVWER SoLUTICONS

3300 8t Rose Parkway
Henterson, NV 88082

Maln  (702)649-0777 .
Fax {702} 630-5080

August 31, 2003

1, 200 ‘ ‘
GUOTE EXPIRES AFTER THIRTY (30) DAYS.
' * @Zwu &6)

Attentlon: Eslimaiing

Projeot Name: las Vegas City-Hail |
QUOTE KaoB3 oa0d ‘

We are plensad fo provide pricing per the fo!lo\#lng quate and bill of matorlals, Speclilcation 260648, 263213,
263363, 263500, 263600 & drawings E5.00, E6.01, EB.02 & E6.03 were raviewed to complets this guots,

Quirent lead tne on new order for gon sel 20-22 wasks after relaase. Cieht lead {ime on CAT sviltohgsar is 20-22
woaks after release, Currant loadl tna on Mitsublshi UPS ls 8-10 woeks after release, Cuirent tead {ime on ATS Is

4-8 viaake ailer release,

g-('}atg' foillar G32 QQOM glasel deneratol aot & 8 ATS - % 418,844+4X $ . ’;' ,
Cat Switchapar - $ 270.208+0x > \gﬁ)p
wﬂfﬁﬂm@wﬂmgﬁb O 1.1 212 :
Clatlfieation; Onthe ATS fooding thefire pump, the ATS s Integral with purmp controls and noeds to he-

providat by pump suppiler, Y

Thirel Parly LEED inspectionicertification Y others, _

Price Includes freight to site, atart up, conymissioning, toad bank lesting at slfe, and ow‘ner’tra!nlng on equipment
provided by Cashman Equipment, Also ciudes CAT paris and Jabor warranty {rom date of stariup and Z year . -
setvite and maintenance agresment, . -

Please add applicable tax.
NOT INCLUDED: GRANE TO OFFLOAR, INSTALLATION, FUEL, TAYES,

Fuel te estimated at $4,80 per gallon. Prive s subject to change af time of dolivory.
Thank you for the opp ortuntty fo quote {his equiprment,

Sl nc}are_ly YOULS,

CASHMAN POWER

#lm Symons

© e P

Power Systams Sales Represaniallve

Tel 702-830-6012
Cal 702-326-8698

JA 00001868H1747




Page 2 o
_ Projust Name: Las Vegas Clty Hall
QUOTE KE0B3 0801

#iLL OF MATERIALS .
Gaterplifar C32 Diese] Englne ‘
S00KW 60Hz 480V

stationary Applioation

Standby Application

Non UL2200

Weathet proof Enclosure

750 Gallon- UL2085 fuel tank
vibratlon Isolators

EMCP 3,3 Control Pansl
Gonfrol Panel Mount Rear
cuatom Leoal Annunclator
Custamn Remote Anhumoiator
Lotal PC Nonltoring

HD Elestric Starting Motor

104 Batiary Charget

Ovar sized Baktery set 24V
Jacket Water Heator

18G0A 3P 100% LS1-P UL Rated Ciroult Broaker
Bottotn Cable Entry wf shroud
CBA Test and Geriification,
Ganevator Test Report

Yoat Repott @ .8 PF-

Start up, commissloning, and tralntng a\ site per specs on all aquipment furnished b}) Cashman Equ!p'ment

1oad test af alta

Warranty entlre Caterplilar system TWE {2) yaars
Servics and Malntenance Conltract (2) yoars
Operalion and Malntenance anuals

AUTOWMATIC TRANSFER SWITGHIES:
Giterpiilar CTS 800A 4 pole 480V W1

Gatatplllar CTS 1000A 4 pola 480V N1 .
Caterplilar CTS 1200A 4 pols 480V N1~ o o : ‘ Ca

SWITCHGEAR:

Ploase see attached quiote

UNINTERRUPTIBLE POWER SUPPLY:

Please sae attashad guote . o K

SEE GENERAL TERMS AND GLARIFICATIONS ON ATTACHED SEPARATE PAGE.

JA 000038EH1748
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TO*“&AWWH&!@Wqupmmt
—-#ﬁ’mmvﬂmﬁefe-ﬁﬁmllwxeﬂh-mau -

56 W. Haclenda Ave,

] .-» g!aw Las( \Jéjez)as, gN 89118
' 709) 798-2670
. Blecttic, Inc. Eax-{702) 739-1419

£

PURCHASE ORDER

< !badqt?ciefs gn m: ufz"é? %nﬁ a&gvomﬁs
Date mmwﬂmg__ﬂ——-—a
PAGD st rimmsnm—s of —4

BELWER

Ship Via e

'—-_i;'sFltJST HOTIRY 24 HOURS! ﬂm@m - ' G“y SKWH.ggﬁ
R EXACT MATERIAL DELNERYLD«%" 1425 0B, dob gl ] Full Frélgh{AitowedEl Frelgi\tExcludedij B
" i | auantiy | TVEE |- _ DESCRIPTION o o o] (QE | EXvegio
-4 : Jmmﬂrzmmmm%ﬁﬂmamm__m 45 00 oo | BT
— ON GONTRAST BRAWNGSDATER 11105/08 - '
o MGE Motlsl EPSA00L - ‘ .
p 1 shunt Trlp Biation. ] B s s
3 1 " #ilya Mutorlala are raqujred par 26335&1 8 - T 8 -
" |FROM THE DATE Gt TS PURCHASE ORDER mcomqspanuanca -
—\E TS BESENTTO [HEATTENTION: GhrisMeiem SN
— i dmuﬁmmwumﬁmmwﬁ’—“ .
e - -
v |venmoR s a'&nws Eron THE BATEOF GOMBLETON ypmivery . [ .| .
T |or MATERULS TolBUBMIT ALL COSTS RELATER T B pLHOIhSE ORUE ANDQUBSECUBNT!| ' .
CHANGE ORDERS| ANY INVOICES SUBMITTED AFTER THE? 3(3 t.'mvs "MLL BE aoN SIPERED WAVED o
AND NOT B LARLE BY MOJAVR BLEGTRIC, - T "
« |HELVER wcrr:‘mmsm- ' wmﬁﬁﬁrﬂm_* -
TR anmﬂ‘?amwmm — T
— LA VEGHS NEVABA §3H8 —
3t DELIVERY EDEATD LAY BE CHANGEDTO-JORSITE AL THE TIME OF RELEAZE — —
L LTERMELTH .uunmsmmmmmwwwmmam.nmmmﬂmae*,_aﬁ
— Abb PROJECTED THRU THE END OF ‘THE MONTH, e
VENDOR PLEABEINOTE o -
aftet olehiaa, stering whiln ten $0) deys avittien axgudltlng ropait wiil ho givan jo Gils OTCH OB iht ﬂ;st ahd tmeﬁmh of aaeh jronth.

Fitls rapaft ls 1o lncludaiba daliyety date for ach lem ani #ny changes fram the provious tpor, A dnlaliad packl

o st fe 1o s Inciudad Wik

yachi ohl

anl and o copy altathdd to each invoics,

TR DGR R ! Bh SIox ﬂwﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂﬁm%:@ M

<AL MATERIAL TO INCLUDE AL SALES K IN THE LUAP BUM pmca ISR SO SN S UV e

SHARK ALL BOXES, ETC, WATH THE JOB NUMBER. TAY. Gl
gy 2% 26t PROX. INVOIGES RECEIRD AFTER 26th CONSIDERED T
HP “HONTH'S BUSINESS, CASH DIsG

_

TOTAL PRICES FIRM

*ACOEPTED FOR VENDOR T RIOJAVE ELEGTRIC, INC.

BY BY_.

Angolo Ganvalbo / <aith L CAM Gonsulting tdo Coshmen Equigmant

ot Foraan, VP Prolont DevalohBio@000 1868 1752




PURGHASE ORDER

3755 W. Haclenda Ave. -
yiAGjave Las Yegas, NY 89018 e AR
Blectric, Inc. <y (702) 708297 el RO
- ’ - Fax (702) 739-1419

Page — o Of e —
SV e DELAVER

A

TO. - eAm-Gonsfing clo-Bashnran-Equipment
WWW&WH‘M%@ Bl

032—#102-33’3
MUST MOTIFY, 24 HOURS BEFORE DELWVERY
FOR EXAGT MATERIAL DEL[VER‘:‘ LOGAT iON

4 | auanrey | Tvee _ DESCRPTION ' PRICE |PER Tgfg%ﬁ :xrg@on
B ammé,ﬁnym_cpgraa
ﬁpehiﬂaatians and ﬁraa‘a!nqs__dg}ed Novernhor 2472008
mcIudIng addendas 1 thru4 and.& direnieqi hyProJaui
‘Manager. to;momde bk not he iimﬂqd 10 the-below .
_ " Thefed ma%gﬁa!
1 §| N FOOKW, 480727V, 4P.4W1 aREgciogeaeanarpmr 18, SER S
'l T RENFTRSRIRTp SER o™ = 27 7 7 - TR
3 = }ﬁEN#ﬂﬂﬁkW‘éﬁﬁiﬁW‘#F‘ﬂW*mﬂfﬂﬁim&mnWMWﬂ setann—
4 PR aweweﬂ%%ﬁcéwrss%ﬁﬁﬂeanmﬁehwgy——m% Y ST S
5 At L aTexp s0A R AR AW N ,,.’.,&.ve@mmns@g%ﬂimﬁw; (I & N R
bt ATEE} 120087 480!27?\!. Ay, NaRAutorasiic Transfer Swteh * '_aesgpu 1 | $-togerdn.
7 1| Aol toliAcmoErny, 4ﬁ.qw,msamb;maﬂcmmers«mn " jadene g 102100
8 1 Arém RemoteAnnietef . .- ) B 2 B .
9 1 1 Spolos Exh-ématerlaséa&caﬁedhr}nzssms-i w0 Tlase00 B & .;;‘as‘uu
40 { CHA Ewar‘{‘nalnﬁéhahdé ayraerfiopt,’ T N LT XTI
i1 i Foot ‘mﬂmﬁﬁmﬂ ah:ﬂtbudgam 1) mrgad B G S S A A
s - = L ] T *
*FRSWWHWFWHR@HA@E@REE%G@RREMNBENGE—*F e oo
o O BE SENTTO HEATFENFGN-—Chils Melers: . .
#mwmmwmmm;mwmmmmmmmmm&wﬂ
FROM THE TERMINALS TE THE FINISHED FLOOR AT AL LOCATIONS ‘
| ANY INVOICE THAT 8 BILLED ﬁua'rmQHANGEo&bea*ramswoaHALLBEbE IGNATER
A% FART OF SAID BHANGE ORDER NUMBER - THIS NUMBER CAN B FOUND N THE UPPER RIGHT
HAND CORIER OF MOJAVES CHANGE ORDER. IF NO NUMBER I PRESENT THEN THE DATE
~{OFTHE CHANGE QRDER SHALL BE USTED
TFINO VERBAL DIREQTTON GRINFORMATION [S ¢ GIBUYTER OR SELLER T
Ol kG I\ THE LUME SUM PRIGE, SUB TOTAL o 12850 —
MARK ALL BOXES, ETC, WITH THE JOB HUMNER, TAX re
i’ ) d&%&ﬁg‘g&gﬁ‘e{oﬁ?‘ws REGENVED AFTER ZﬁiiiAGONSlDERED CASH DISG B
. TOTAL PRICES FIRM '
~ACGESTED FOR VENDOR : WOJ FOTRIC, ING.
BY : BY, e

Annsle Cacralin / Kolth L CAM Consultina o/ Cashmen Eoulomont ﬁatmﬁ{ Pralaet Do nindAn®000T 86K 1753




Tov—ﬂmcﬁnannhwrﬁammﬁqulpmmf
Wmﬁweawmhﬁiﬁeﬁhmeau

Mg!ave .
L @g&t‘ac,, Inc.

PURCHASE ORDER

2755 W, Haolenda Ave,
 Les Vogas, 1Y 89118 ‘Zﬁ?!,a},?%% T
‘_ (?oz) 798.2070 Dt
" Fax (702) 7391419 P:g‘: mma-wof
_ Ship Via oo DELIVER
Job e
ity oTLag VEgay HE ‘i“xtgrr-re?m*‘
ﬁth‘ i

BY,

Mpggnw.sgﬁ,sag}gb}?sg.gms Clly Staf\L— Em.gg..___"
MUST NOT OLURS BEFORE DELIVERY
anw;«oimﬁs?m S Y PR B £, dob sl Ful Fretgiht Alowed] - FrelghtExciuced”]
% | avanrry | TYRE ' DESCRIPTION price._|PER] BSY ERTENBION -
¥ IGHT N ING UDEDiNTHEFUﬁcHASE ORDER - 1.
v |msTHEBbLERS EESPONQIBIUWTG INSUREMOJAVE'S F‘RQJEGT - ‘
) MANAGER {B.NOTI FlED OF, AU\‘BE\CKQRDERS AND SHIPEING . '
’ SCHEE:ULEE GF Al EGU!PMENTIN \.ﬁMlTINEIMATIMELYFASHMN . o
S U R
T {EEHERY wmca Musmo_ OIOEWE §BTAVE FURCHASE '
3 .( Ll £l
ey smwﬁémﬁﬁwwwp@vmuww' i A
e s eage&mﬁgéa&——-— B B SN e ot
e IHE M-THE«IB,AEQF Mp,gggk N I_-{Wmualqp.nw e —
- Tt s K8
= Awnwo oS susr.imﬁaAmkm\asaﬁ}x\fsbuwacomm Engzaw Wep. 1 —
ANDS NOTB};LAEU! B B MOTAVE ELEGTT ELBGTRIG 0. . : .
* ITERMS! ’rﬁzi lSAﬁ*Mle;;ﬁN ;’Agn PO - lpifmicﬁsﬁﬁew aE INTO MQJAVE No*rlmgm N THE STHOF THE -
ESNTAND PROJECTED THRU THE END OF THEHONTH, * A S S T
—F T ISUBRITTARD- EWEUVEEED’TGWAVE BEECTION AR S HOLEPUNGHED. -
AN OBV mmﬁ#rormmmwwb GFHEtEME—AttﬁUEHiTT‘ﬁHNP mwcm STOBESERTTS
m—a——-—P {c ."" et e T e ——
-—-~—-14~pupsr~ea jewzﬁlemmmplemmmlualm bMuppfladaquuimW naiﬁeptla g
L T-papEL e WHammnlmpmmwﬂManual&io huupp&laﬂsmxgu! pil hy pﬂo\ﬂngtlanr._.—mﬁ.___-w'—
MMMMMMWEF“BHMM ifacturer apnepded for BV I W TN A
- ~ .
VEEDCRPLEAEE.NQTE o
Ater relsgen, staing witin ten (i) days a watian axpadhing rapatt wli bo ghean 1o this offlos on i it . \
This repott Is to Inclpdo he dalkealy.doio Tor oach llen and any changes fram Th pmvluus wpsﬂ A hw!Jﬁad vl
pach shlp*nant snd o copy eliaengd to sach [volc. - '““
Sﬂ“‘lr“ Y T [rﬁm . WHWNWWWW e EEEEE T
:smp A1 WATERIAL ON THIS PO, APB FREIGHT IF POSSIBLE, suUB TOTAL
-ﬁ%‘ifé’}?&‘é?}x%%,"é%é”?frﬁ‘%ﬁé‘%ﬁL’ﬁ’éﬁ“&'&" THE LUHP SUM PRIGE T -4~ SRR
T \%‘ g;%%@gggﬁ%&gomts REGHIVED AFTHER 261h GONSIDERED o AS_H nISG
TOTAL PRICES FIRM
—RECERTED FOR VENDOR MOJAV

BY,

S

Argelo Comvatho / Koflh LCAM Conculing cfe Cashmen Equipment

PalecForfien, VP Proleet Doy 0000 TopiL7s4
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%&E"Rantm ' | (R
75N Power / PEWER BOLUTIONS

Wiy 24, 2610

Cashman Power Solutions
3300 8t, Rose PRWy. -
Henderson, NV 88062

Mojave Electric
4755 W. Haoclenda
Las Vegas, NV 89118 ‘

Subject: Las Vegas Clly Hal Subraiital review

Pata, . 1 ’
\We have completed our review of the Las Vegas Clty Hall submittal with the Tollowlng responses

for re-submittal:

Div 263213 Packaged Ganerator. Systems

1. okw Jacket healers racjulre ciroult revisions to the drawings.
a, Jackethealers are deslgned to work on elther 240V or 208V,
5. Generators shall be furplshed with upturmn radiator exhatist 5cO0DS.
' a. Upturn scoops will be providad, Revised drawlngs are helng produced, .
3. Shop drawings of the generator yard not In the Cashmanh s0ope.

Dlv 263363 Stallc unittariuptible povier stpply
1. Furhish with network monltoring via Ethemnet cables connection
a. lem Din the UPS BOM and Seotlon 5 Inthe UPS submitial references the

NETCOM UPS monitoring equipment.

Diy.263600- Transfor switehes
1. Provide Informalion for remote status panel. .
a, Cashman wiii provide a romote status panel for the Fre Command Indloating ATS
switch position.
2, Equipment room layouts not In tho Cgshman SGOPe.
3 [ndicate automatic transfer switch featuyes a8 indlcatad In specifioations,
o Transfer switches meat tho scope of the spaclfication.

Thank you,

Kim Symons

Account Manager

Cashman Power Solutions

Toas Vepas Retin ik

3300 5t Rose Phwy 600 Glendals Ava, S610 Ideho Streel
Hendarson, NV 80057 : Sparks, NV, 80431 Bk, WV, §9801 St
PH: 702-649-8777 P 7153585111 PH; 775-138-9871

BAY: 702-639-50%0 FAX: 775-358-0433 FAX: T15-138-T863

' JA 000085762
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jave
ectric

Mossve JoB# 767810

Jon NAMEL Clly of Las Vegas New City Hall
ADDRESS: 408 Main Straet .

 DATE:! ___

TRANSMITTAL -

08/16/10

10; GAM Consulting ¢fo Cashinan Equlpment

Las Vegas Nevada 89101 .
Attt Angelo Carvalho/ Keolth Lozeau
WE ARE SENDING SUBMITTED FOR ’ AGTION TAKEN
SHOP DRAWINGS APPROVAL : X IAPPROVED
LETTER X |YOUR RECORDS APPROVED AS NOTED
DRAWINGS CORRECTION AND RESURMITTAL REVISE AND RESUBMIT
X [SUBMITTALS JMMEDIATE RELEASE TO JOBSITE, REJECTED
SAMPLES IMMEDIATE RELEASE TO SHOP
SUB CONTRACT : — —
SPEC. SECT, ITEMS SUBMITTED MANUFAGTURER COPIES | COPIESTO BE |
‘ SENT RETURNED
265600 |ATS Produot Data Calapiltar | 4]
5Ra218  (Gonerator nstallation Cataplliar- g 0
583600 |Generator Drawing 1 Catapiiiar 4 o
RESUBMITTAL DUE BY:
. REMARKS: roum‘ents glveri diractly to Cashman Power Systems .
RECEIVED BY: __
DATE: _
Las Vogas, Nevada 861 181756 FAX 702-708-3740

2755 \W, Haolenda Avenue

JA 000018057
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F‘adk[ng Slip Packing 8Hp Noi a512

$ WrTSUBISHI ELECTRIC Iy
2% DOWER PROPUCTS, ING. TN ™ T emen e ot
K e o . ’ <
kAo  From Peanoo Rl
Warrantlale, PA 16086 - : o _ CD")]%, g”%g“
i coseeos | | By v
; | CHRISWIEIERS

CASHIMAN EQUIPMENT GO. b MOJAVE ELECTRIC
p.0, BOX 271630 2 3400 W, HACIENDA
LAS VEGAS, NV 60127-1630 | | A3 VEGAS, NY 89118
ONITED STATES U8A

TR e RN
e A

ik 5 (R i
MOBAE-60024-44B00
S/N: 10-7M73354-01 ;
WBGTS-CUP-800-480E, @E? WALL MINT (3)800A SKRU 2)KK PB EA 1 1 0
B/Ns PUS654-1 ’
NETCOMRSEC ggg@wa SEG FOR20330,0;D 9600 AND-  FA 1 St 0
900 _ o
Consists of the followihg ltems '
NETGOM-PH SNMP 1P ETHERNET IWTERFACE CARD EA i 1 Q
, HPW0001 égéﬁé.ii; 8 EOOT DBS TO RU4E GRAY" EA 1 4 0
Bl CABLES. COMMUNICATION CABLE £ { 1 0.
_HIWe0003 CD; FOR NETOOMZ KITg ‘ A y 4 0
MCP-104-10006-8 MUCH: MODBUS.FOR 8600A8: - EA ! + 0
Gonsists aftho folloling fteme
MO0 MG oMUGMA002, METH-001, EA 4 1 0
Ui, TRi218 . _ ‘
COMITSUKIT 85C:  DBO-RUS ADAPTERS FOR NETOOM-S A, 1 1 0
KIT10008 PSAUBGKIT 12V 1,3 POWER'KIT FOR: EA g { 0
OBU0AE .

KIT10010 KT MISC HARDWARE FOR MUGM BA 2 2 0
CAPO0250), LNXQWBA2MEMCNIK 450 8400ut; EA. 2 2 0
FAN20D12 UBE EAN ' “ EA 1 1 0
AE-ENPC0014 BS; PROGEDURE REM* AE«EP[%QL‘JQ@!I EA, 1 1 0

+ . 3 " ' .
BEST WAY g

A
MUST NOTIEY 24HRS BEFORE DELIVERY
GHRIS 702-798-2870

Thank you for your order.

© e JA 0000 FBFHILTEY
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3300 SAINT ROSE PARKWAY
HENDERSON, NV 89062
PHONE: {707) 649-B777

FAX: (702) 630-5090

CASHMAN POWER SOLUTIONS

Dato January 8, 2011

: PO No. | 767810-GEN-10010

To |Mohave Elacttio

At |Tom Cera\)b!o . . : Project

3480 W, Haclenda : Matorlal | ATS's and baterles
L.as Vagas, NV '
Loy Tai

IFENCLOSURES ARE NOT AS NOTED, PLEASE ADVISE IWIMEDIATELY.

' [subinitiel / Resubrlitel.  [JProduct Specification Sheats/ Brochures |_|Specifiocions / Plans
[ Joperation & Maintenance Menuals |""Jshop Drawings-Wiring Diagrams . [Jother
No of Coples Manufacliurer Desarlption
2 CAT ‘ ballarias for swlichgear
1 CAT ~1800A tansfer switch #ZEN1608823 .
1 _ CAT 1000A tansfer switeh #ZEN1696824 e
1 o GAT ~ 11500A tensfar switen #2EN 1508826 A

st

[ |As Requested [~JReview/ Comment / Clarification [ Jinformatfon / Other

Addiflonal Notes ahd Comments

T @W”‘"/‘{

) Ragelved By F‘zz.; ﬁ - _{@ 7520;@5’%.!‘,.—;.? P P

. 7
Date Recalvad:

" Date: Pt Sadd

Submiited By:

JA 0000184151771
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Recording Recquested by end Refurn o 'A Custamner Neme MOJAVE ELECTRIC -

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT project/ Job  J1771 LAS VEGAS OITY HALL

3300 ST ROSE PKWY  Cradit Dept PO# S0a40017 101381 015
HENDERSON, My 80052 ) Agreamant# R1G743 4251010
Phone 800 §37-2326  Fax 702 633-4095 Agresment Date 81912010 CLARK Dsunly

cart No' /i LA af iy iaYy Shab

e PRELIVINARY NOTIGE OF RIGHT TO LIEN AND
REQUEST FOR RECEIFTOF NOTICE OF GOMPLETIOR s e T

Customer contiaclig or seld Equipmentor ke Rier4s  Genorel
MOJAVE ELECTRIG
3766 W HAGIENDA AVE

LAS VEGAS NV 85118
- Phouer (702} 7082070

omod, 7007 LD DUOD HOGE SKPE srely of Bonding Co:
=== COREST GITY ENTERPRISES ING
. TERMINAL TOWER #1410, 60 PUBLIC 9
CLEVELAND - OH  AA132202
Phenet

1] ¢

The tdersioned noliies you thal they hava suppied eq%ﬂpmemfor {h Improverants of the propery identlted as:

Ri8743

JohNuni 14774  Agresment st R1G743
Adivesss 495 MAINST /B CLARK
City / Statet | AS VEGAS © Ny eowniyr CLARK

Jab Enfat |LAS VEGAS CITY HALL

. This Is not a noflee that the undersigiied has not o8 doos not pxpest to he pald, but & notice requdred by law
that tito wlersigned may, at a future date, elaima flon as provided by law against the properky if fhe

understyned s not paich

REQUEST 19 HEREBY MADE: The Owner I8 hovehy regussated, pursuait to NRS 108.228{4), to provide this
olalmant velth a copy of any Notlee of Gomplation recorded on this construstion projost: - ;

Gugtomet Is reyulred fo Jmitnediately advise Gashiman Equipmont shouid this place of equipment or any ofhel
plece of aggulpment gestynatod for st o thle projeot be moved to another project, '

o Pl i ' 42512010

Propared byt . —
ICAREN 126 MoCLAIN, CREDIT ASSIGTANT Phono: (800) 937-2326 oxt 4603 Pax {702} 633-4800

For more Information regarding this DIANN BOWIE
notlce of fo obtaln a release, please Phone: (§00) 947-2326
contact your acsotmt representative: | pax;  (702) 633 4605

CASHI1T34
JA 00001817
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M.W. Schofield, Assessor

REAL PROPERTY PARGEL REGORD

é Click }jeref ra Et]ni; Prigndly Version

GENEBRAL INFORMATION - .
EARCEL NG, 135-34-201-022
MNER AND MJLIH.G_.ABBBHEQ B Q LAG VEGAS L 1L.G . ,
. SFOREST CITY ENTPRS INC
TERMINAL, TOVIRR #1410
50 PUBLIC SQUARE
, CLEVELAND Ot 44113:2202
LQ__BII_QL.A_D_IW 495 g MAIN 5T ‘
“wmuwemwu LAS VEGAS
gggg&iﬂﬂ.&ﬁ%{m_tl& W&&mﬁlﬂ .

SEG 34 TWP 20 RHG 61

ROCORDED DOCUMENT NO, ) * 20043 240:03372 L
REGONDED DATE 12/10[2009 ' .
VREETING ' NO STATUS __ ]

sotat Only documants from Seplember 15, 1998 thratgh pregent ate avallable for viewing,

 ASSHSEMINT TNPORMATEON ARD SUPPLEMENTAL VALUE

R 203
L
APPIRATENL YHAR 2009
FYECAL YEAR 99-10
5&&.&&!&&1&1&1‘_&&;&5@&%15 0
SUPBLEMENTAL IMBROVBMENT wa :
ACCOUNT NUMBER, -

RBAL FROPERTY ASSHRSSED VALUE .

FISCAL YBAR 2009-10 2010-31
LAND o - 0 ]
YIPROVEMENTE 0 |0

CASHIT3S
JA 00001819




EXHIBIT 11

JA 00001820




Racording Requested by and Retur to: customerd 161381

2300 ST ROSE PKWY  Credit Dapt PO
HENDERSON, NV 89052 | Agrestentit
Phone 600 0572326 Fax 702 633-4045 Agrestnent Dats
' ‘ Cert No

MOJAVE ELECTRIC

LAS VEGAS CITY HALL

$03410-017 013

R16743 100712040

3ofa0t0 CLARK Gounty
P09 LA ook yoLs 0dER0

PRELIMINARY NOTICE OF RIGHT TO LIEN AND

y ' REQUEST FOR REGEIPT OF NOTIOE OF GONMPLETION

Gustorer eonfracing for seld Equipment or Labor; RI6748
MOJAVE ELECGTRIC
3765.W HAGIENDA AVE .
LASVEGAS NV 88118
o Phones (702) 002970

!
oumor | 7DIMT LM DOOL YOLS DE4D
OH LAS VEOAS LG ‘ S
50 PUBLIC SQUARE STE 005
CLEVELAND OH 44110

Phone?

el ]

‘Ihe undersigned nolfies you that hey have supplled equipment for the laprovertents o e property \dentfled as:

@anerm:

POOY LWL OEOL 40LE DEYL
WHITING TURNER CONTR GO-8720
6720 ViA AUSTI PKWY STE 300 '

1LAS VEGAS NV 89118

© Phope; (702} 9500700

fer, Sursly or Bonding Go

Agraementiht R16743

Address: 495 ° MAINST
City / Stater  LAS VEGAS NV
Job nfo

LAS VEGAS CITY HALL

%

!

/B CLARK
county: CLARK

Ri6743

’

fhat the undessigned may, at a futite date,
inctersigned s not patd,

Thiss ot a notlos that the underslgned has not or doss not expact fo he paid, but a notice raguired hy law
clain a Toxn as provided hy law algainstthe pronoerly if the

. REQUEST 15 HEREBY IADE: The Owner is horeby retuested, pursnant to NRS 108.228(4), to provide this .

olalrmant with a copy of any
Gustomet-is required 10 immediately advise Cashman Eyulp

plete of equipment designated for tise on fhis project be moved fo

ST i

Notlco of Complotion recorded on this ponsiruction profect.
ment ahould this plece of equipment or any other

another project.

12{7/2010

Propared by;

Fd g
KAREN LEE McGLNN,'gREDiT ASSISTANT Phone: (800) 6322328 ext 4603 Fa [707) 838-4605

’ | KAREN LEE McCLAIN

Eor more Information regarding this
1etlos or to obtain a release, please
sontact your acoount reprasentative: -

}

Phone; {(800) 987-2326
Fax.  {702)633-4695

CASHITIG
JA 00001821
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Nov 27 10 0Bi42a Moja\.ré Buyout Dept 702.708-B010 12

JOB [NFORWIATEON SHEET

anﬁcrmﬁokmﬂon

- 7 ity of Las Vemis Naw Olty Hal ™
486 Malh Btreet .
Las Vegss Novada 89101

PR S e e et
+ N —

© - BELBHCTRICAL CONTRAGTOR:

MOJAVE ELECTRIG

3785 W. Haclenda Avenue
Las Vegas, Movada 89448
PHONE:  (702) 798-2070
FAR: {702) 1985740

PRIE CONTRACTOR

Whithig » Turnes

6720 Vin Austl Parkway, Suite 300
Las Voyas Nevada 86119
PHONE:  080-D700

FAX: GEO-R6E0

OWNER

OH Lag Vegas LLG , T
B0 Publio Square, Silte 1008

Gloveland Ol 4418

PHONE:

FAXK;

— e T

CASHI1737
JA 00001823
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¥
1
piaef0  fuv) (PRIVATE] [CORYIEST] Cugkomert CAl CONSULRING

Reconding Reguesked by and Return hot I PO, B3 .
OREHHAN  ROUIPHENT COMPANY ' 1 FProjeoty QI2Y OF TA8 VLGRS NBY CITY HALL

. g Rec Tt m:;a06643'-asszua233%003»1968%6:&3073
[

3300 8, Rosd Rkwy : dop I 8123707
HENNRRSON, NV 49052 . Cart HO.b :

NOWLCH OF RIGHT TO LIEN (PRIVATE WORK)

{Nevada Revigad Shatuns)

. 003 GENERRY CUONFRAGIGR #O! OVNDR O BHSUTHDR ORNE
WOUAVE BLNCHRIO INC _ R TG VEGAS NAG .
3788 ¥ WACYENDA RVA ) 5O pURSTC HG-wY ALALO
Lhe VBGMS“ HY 0PLLE~R0G ' OLEVEIAND, OH 44318-220%

The undensigned notlfies you £hat ho has supplied mater:iéls sy pouformed work o aorviaes ‘o
diprovement of your real propurky an followst By Lpmant: Rental, The prodeet iz ooomonly knoy
agi CATY OF KBS VEOAS HEY Orme HATE, The project ls lopated abr 483 MAIM AnRERT, ThE

YRORS, WY 89101, . )
The person conbracbing £ox &0l tabor ‘qr watonials 9t ORM CONSULTING, 3974 CIVIQ OENTRR DR, W
tne VRGNS, WV 80030-TBR4.

gaid labor, matevialw or porvioes weve first funnishad ox worked porformad on 02/01/8013.

yhis 4o not g notide Hmb tha updezsignad has ‘1ot ox doem nob expest Lo he pmld, but w notdas
waquired by Iaw ihap {he undoxpignad nay, ab a Subure deba, olaim a lden &8 pubvidad by law agadnat

the properby if the wnderaigoad a not pald,

+

TROURSY 1 HERERY MADH thak the Gunex ox Pobllo Ealiby, pusauaﬁh go Hevatta'm Maechatictle Tdan
guatuben sanva on (e yndexelanatl, BY povtdfied makl, & Copy o gophon off any and aik Hoblowe of
gofiplebion bhb Oundy o publin Bnbity, ibs agmbd ox itp apedgne, ganses €O ws wpayspded with the
founhy Raookder's offlan whore the prapexty 48 Jooatad with vespaot Lo tho inprovamonbs to be made:

¥ deglane that T an anthorized ko £lle this olaim on Dbehalf of the plaimant, Y have ragd bhe
Zoragoing document and know bha contents theroofs Yhe same g bruo of ty okh knopledge, I deolars
wnder penalty of pexjucy that bho foregoing is tiue and aorneat, Brecubed ab, HRNDERAOH, HNevada on

0472072048 fiox ch;ﬁ;;ﬁ:% Q%ﬁéméﬁlﬁg@hvlca

prepared byl .
LUFE GRLLEGOS, RELREORRTATIVE POR, CREDLE DAMRGEMENT 863{?013!\‘1‘1&)}{ Fhonay {7102} 2502602  Fawl (70?)

269-9908

' PROOY OF SERVIOR BY WALT A¥IFIDAVEIR .
T daolare-that ¥ sexved n oUP¥ of the ahove dooument, und an{ relaved docomente, b conkified or
weylastexed mail, postage prepald, of othar  aerblfied fativary, addreased ko the above nsmed

aytias, bb the addrasges ilsbed abbve, on 04/20/204%. I declaxe undey penaiiy of parjury thak Fhe
Tovsgoiny is tiue end Gorreot, Exeouted at’ BENDERSOR, Novada on 04/20/20L1,

r 5 £AIGH] [
Propezod by ._%}\{@-Ef TING Y"ﬂ,.“\l(ﬂ f’iﬂn\nnﬁ
LUER GBLLEGOS, R SRNTARIVE EOl, CREDIT TANRGHHENY ASBOCIATION
) 70 LWHDER, BURETY OR BONDIRG CO. )
K

CASHO13
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Seatch R Tuesstny, Sapienlior 18, AokR

Clatk Cotgky > Deparimams » Atgessor ¥ Proprrly Recards
Anganaot
Miohele W. Shafa, Ansassonr

ARCHL OWNERSHIP HISTORY

[’:n,z,msar,an.ml!‘m‘&‘w i:as;wwﬁmi[ swfwu‘-m {1 Lsszu‘ﬂri
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e
RGTIHATER
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L
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“UN‘“WWK‘G Chmmmen | R | e
i pocuxutril, —

oIy Of 173 VES,
Oy O aved a1 jessoaisots | oHENA0i2 | Mo TATUS

,,_.__—,.ﬂw_,____ﬂw_,_u__m - — I

HECONOID _ﬁnomn A FATATED

wmi;sl.nm PATOR OVRIEI(S) FEFLD, | 1d v;smm 1 pramisy sizi] 4

15?—34-3_0_1*01?. 8 0 lAG\'EGg LLG 17 m 1003 [ ’( gg: 271 AG |
. 3 [ agm [ o ATATUS {263 2,71

‘13531 GUAARELLE KK
ELEL CvRigRKL LD, Er& | Tog/zalaaer ] Ho SEATVE T FXTR

o
cupudlly

. PAREELID,

132 -34-10:-aza

Mooz Oniy docimentd Heeny Soptaniser 16, 1950 through prasent are nyatiabla forviaveing.

“HOTA THIS TECORD IS Fan AsSESSH ERTUSE QHLY NG meuw 15 AGSUNED
A TO THU ACCURACY 0F THI DATA pUETNEATEL HEREQH

w} ' e Co gy T Ve eeae o EEt I o,
i el -rc.—-ful-u!-..l.‘r ;hgrmﬁ_mzmm_-ﬁ—‘—u&whuwamp&—m:}gu—usu P_-_x;;.,u
kbt Sheump  contadt v My boby  § st Cloek couny, Y 500 &, Giland Centl PRy V35 Vegsy, IV EAT85 (302} 45000 .
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PALM 139-34- 201027 )
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OWNER AND HAILING ADDPRIGS 1TV OF L F LA8 VEGAS
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1LAS VEGAS WV 09101-2943

P ey b S
s ez
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b MMM’W
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obtoran, f OURVH LENOTH O 1671 fhET YO THE BOIT OF

AEGINNING, |
SONTAINDNG I ALL 2574 AGHEE Off LAND,
BANIS DFBHARING

SOUTH 275730 WEST, DEING THE CENTERLINIE OF DAGING QRNTHR
FOULEVARD BEIWELN STEWART AVANUE AND GOOLINGE AVENUE AS
SHOWN BY THAT CRITTAIN MAP I RILY 67, PRAGLE T8 (7 QURVEYS N THE
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Page 1 %
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
£ % ok K K

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, &
Nevada corporation, |
i

plaintiff,

vs. CASE NO, A642583 |

CAM CONSULTING, INC., =& Nevada
corporation; ANGELO CARVALHO, an
individual; JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL
CARVALHO, an individual; WEST EDNA
ASSOCIATES, LID., dba MOJAVE
ELECTRIC, a Nevada corporation;
WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a surety:
THE WHITING TURNER CONTRACTING
COMPANY, a Maryland corporation;
FIDELITY AND DPEPOSIT COMPANY OF
MARYLAND, a surety: DOES 1 through
10, inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS
1 through 10, inclusive,

)
)
)
)
)
)
}
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Defendants.

e

)
)
)
)
)
)
) H
)
)
AND ALL RELATED MATTERS, )
)

e

DEPOSITION CF BRIAN BUGNI
Taken on Thursday: January 10, 2013
At 11:00 a.m.
At 6725 Via Austi parkway, Suite 290
Las Vegas, Nevada

REPORTED BY: CHRISTY LYN DeJONKER, CCR NO. 691

EETEIR R

Depo International, L1LC

(702) 3869322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@depointernational.com
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Brian Bugni - 1/10/2013

Cashman Equipment Company, et al, vs.

CAM Consulting, Inc., et al,

Page 2 Page 4
APPEARANCES: 1 {Priot to the commeneement of the deposition, ali of
For (ive Plaintifl: 2 {he parties prosent agreed to walve stalemehls by the
%Eiﬁg%i?&LLOYD’ ESQ. 3 coutt reporter, pusstiant to Rule 30{b)(4) of NRCP.)
6725 Via Austi Parkway 4 Theretpon -
Sufte 200 5 BRIAN BUGNI,
Las Vegas, Nevada 89119 6 wascailed as a wilness, and having been first duly |
N . : 7 sworn, was sxamined and testified a8 follows:
Por the Defendaats: 8 X AMINATION
BRIAN W. BOSCHEE, ESQ. 2 BY MS. LLOYD:
Collon, D;i%gs, \ng;loh, 10 Q. We aro her¢ today, Cashman Equipment versus
}:I(%I;}O 3 ‘:‘;.1% gflc:& Si’{l:;?mpsen 11 CAM Consulting, Case No, AG42583, Tam Jennifer Lloyd,
Third Floor 12 plaiutiff's attorncy. And we are here for the
Lag Vegas, Nevada §9101 13 deposttion of the person most knowledgeable of West
. 14 Rdnn Associates, Tid. So we will start with can you
15 slate your name for the record.
INDEX 16 A. Brim Bllglli. .
WITNESS: BRIAN BUGNI 17 Q. Con you spell your last name.
v Ms. Lioyd Examina‘;inu Furtézer Pxamination 18 A, B-U-G-N-L ¢
y Ms, Lioyd: 19 Q. Okay, Andyou are hereas this person most
By Mr. Bosohicc: 87 20 knowledgeable for West Edna Associates?
21 A, Yes,
22 Q. Wewill go over that in just a second.
23 Have you ever had your deposition takei
24 befors?
25 A. Yes
Page 3 Page 5
EXHIBITS 1 Q. How many times?
Exhibit No. Deseription Page 2 A. I think once probably 14 years ago.
1 Application for payment 10 3 Q, Okay. Then we will go over the rutes really
2 PaymentBond 21 4 quick as a refresher. It's questions and answvers. 1
3 Mojave Electric Purchase Order 26 5 neod verbal tesponses to all of the questions that 1
4 Consulfant Agreement 52 6 ask, not inst a nod of the ftead. The court reporter is
5 Contract Agreement 33 7 going fo be taking down everything we say. So it's
& Contract Agreement 41 8 important that we dont falk at the same time, so if
4 Consultant Agreement 46 9 you let me finish and P'il Iet you finish so she can
8 Copics of Checks 49 10 make an aceurate recotd.
9 TUnconditional Waiver and Release 56| 11 You can take a break at any thne except for
10 Copies of Checks 52 12 when a question is pending. 1 would ask that yon
11 Contract Status Inquiry 76 13 answer the question prior to taking a break. Ifyou
14 dott't undetstand a question or it's hot clear what I am
15 asking, just tell me and Fll try fo rephrase it so
16 1's understandable so we can get your best Lestimony
17 here today, Your testimony is under-oath just like it
18 would be in a court of law. :
19 Is there auy reason why you canuot give your i
20 full and complete, fruthfisl festimony hers today?
21 A, No.
22 Q. What did you do fo prepare for your
23 deposition today?
24 A, Twmean, not that mueh.
25 Q. Doyou wantto -1 don't wagt to get Into

R e e AR AT TETE I

. Depo International, LL.C
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@depointernatimml.com
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i Page 6
privileged communications with your attorney, but just 1 Q. All of the office staff?
gencrally what you did to prepare. 2 A, Vs,

A, Just reviewed some of the information that 3 Q. Let's go over the PMK notiee reatly briefly,
you hiae requested on the unties for fhe person most 4 You want to take a look at this. Tam assuming that is
knowledgeable. 5 what you were referring to earller,

Q. Sa documents that have already been produced 6 A Yes,
by your counsel in this case? ' 7 Q. Soifyou justwant to confirm that you are

A, Well, T just looked in onr nccorting systenn 8 fhe PME for West Edna Associates on alf of the items
1 didn™ voview any court documents. 9 that are listed on this notice?

Q. Okay. Did you speak with anyone bestdesyour | 10 A. Yes, Iam .
attorney concerning your deposition oday? i1 Q. That is the amended notice of deposition

A, No . 12 dated November 8th, 2012, The projeet we are here

Q. What Is the highest tevel of education you 13 today on is the new Las Vogas City Hall. Sol'm
have obiained? _ 14 probably just going to say project. Aad when I say

A, Master's degree. 15 "nroject,” that is what I am referring to, just so we

Q. Tt what subject? 16 are on the same page.

A, Accounting. 17 Can you describe fo me Mojave's scope of work

Q. And where did you gradunte from? 18 on the project. '

A.  Tor that, Western New Engiand College. 19 A. 1t was the elecivieal installztion on this

Q. When was that? 20 projech S

A, 1987, 1 think 2L Q. Allofit?

Q. Prior fo that, did you get your undergraduate 22 A Yo
degree? . 23 Q. Andwag it done in phases?

A Yes 24 A, Coulit you clarify --

Q, Where did you obtain that? 25 Q. Was your contract from Whiting Turner one

[
Page 7

A, The Universtty of North Cavolina, 1 Targe, mp-sur contracl, or Was it done in different

Q. When did you graduate from there? 2 Tike, you know, I don't know, rough end - or I don't

A. Thatwas '85. 3 memmwmmnmmmmwmmmmm

Q. Andda you hold any professional ficenses? 1 separate contracts?

A, No, 5 A. No. We netually had dwvo contracts from

Q. Then! ave to ask this, I doeési’t mean § Whiting Tarncr on that projeet:
anything, Have you been cohvicted of any crime within 7 Q. What were thoge two separalo coniracts?
thie tast tow years? 8 A, One was e mpin building sud tien the second

A, No. 8 was for the undergrownd work.

Q. Con you tefl me abouk your current 10 Q. So the undergronnd would have been eompleted
einployment? ii first, or no?

lemWmemwmmumamqumm 12 A, The contract Is still open af this time.
on 16 years in Jund 13 Q. Ware they lssued ot the sane fime?

Q. Ol worw, What Is your position there? 14 A, Approxtmately the smn¢ fime,

A, Vice president of finaned. 15 Q. “Then whal was your role in reference to this

Q. And how Jong have you held that position? 14 project? .

A, Tilink shnge about 2002, 17 A Just all finnnelalatiors on tie contrach

Q. And prior fo that, what was your positfon at 18 . So do you deal with all payments, receipt of
Molave? 15 payments, ssuing payiments?

A, The titte was controller, 20 A, Yes.

Q. Canyou describe what your job dutles are as 21 Q. Do youhave da wto-day involventent in the
a vico president of finance. 22 project?

A, Mantaining ali the financial information, 23 A. No
necounts recelyable, aecounts payable, maintaining the | 24 Q. Are youresponsible for preparing the payment
office sinff, 25 applications?

e R peae e RIS AT

3 {Pages 6 LU
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o . Brian Bugni - 1/1
Cashmnan Equipment Company, et al. vs.
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Fage 10
1 A, In our accounting system, yes. 1
2 Q. So do you determine percentage corapletion, or 2
3 do you fill In the schedule of vatues, or how is that 3
4 compleied? _ 4
5 A, 'That Is completed with the projeet manager o1l 5
& the job. 15
7 Q. Do you kaow offhand whiat your total contract 7
g value was with the twe contracts? 8
9 A, No,Idon't. 5
16 Q. And then do you know what the value was 10
11 related to the equipment supplied by Castiman? 13
12 A, Thropgh CAM? 12
13 . Uhvhuh, ' . 13
14 A, ‘That was & ballpark of a litte over 750,000 14
15 (Exhibit T marked)_x. i5
16 BY MS. LLOYD: 16
17 Q. We wiH mark Exhibil 1. You want 1o take a 17
18 Taok at these. They wers disclosed in this order. Ave 1.8
15 you familiar with these documents? 19
20 A. Yes ‘ 20
21 Q. Andcan you describe to me what they arc? 21
22 A They are the ATA Dbifling forntats for the 22
23 mniti bitlings to Whiting Turner. - . 23
24 Q. This appeats (o contain ihree subsequent 24
25 months. Ts that how it looks to you? | . . 25
page 11
1 A, Yes. 1
2 Q. Soitsaperiod ending January 2011, 2
3 February 201 1 and March 2011, Arcthese complete 3
4 payment applications? i
5 A. Typieally we provide n conditional velense 5
6 and a copy of our union letter 6
7 Q. Would this be the fuli schedule of vakues for 7
8 the project? 8
9 A. No. There is moreline items on it hecanse ]
10 it should be # total at the bottont, 30
11 Q. Oksy. Socanyou take a Jook at the schedule 11
12 of values included with each of these and teil me whese § 12
13 the equipment that was supplied by Cashmen is, if you 13
14 see it? 14
15 A, 1amnetsure exactly where ie's broken out 15
16 on heie. i6
11 Q. Isitlined, line 5, emetgeney generator and 17
i8 UPS system? 18
19 A. Twould assume it s, but I can't verify 19
20 thnt. 20
21 Q. How would you he able to verify what those a1
a2 {eins rofer to? 29
23 A. Twonld have to talk fo our project manager 23
24 just to see how they derive the scliedute of values. 24
25 Q. Okay, Do youknow when Mojave received 28

0/2013

CAM Consulting, Ine., et al.

payment for the equipment that was supplicd by Cashman
1o the project, the generaiet gquipment? ‘ :
A, IfIremember correctly, It was in ihe Aprll

time period.

Q. Soon here, 53y, for Januaty, on the
emargency geasrator line ifen, when it says this
period, 200,000, does that méan you are bllting 200,000
for the emergency pencralor in January?

A, Yes,

Q. When would you receive payiment for your

Tameary payoul?

A, Typically we shouid have recelved that

probably the fivst part of March.

Q. Okay, Then il yon go 0 Februiary, it looks
like it was billed ont, is that another 520,000 -

A, Yes ‘

Q, --onthe generator? And then
the UPS?

A, Corrcet.

Q. Sowhen would you have received payment for

fhe Pebruary paytnent application?

A. Fypicaily that shonid be the first paré of

April also.

Q. Okay. Andthenan he March fines 4 and 5,

vou billed ot another 89,700 it looks

A, Yes

Q. So when would you receive payment for the

March paynent application?

A, That should be probably the first part of

May.

Q. Okay. And Leouid not locate coples of those
payments. Do you kuow iFyou have disclosed copies of

those payments 1o your counsel?
A, 1 am assmming we have.

AR, BOSCHEE: Just so Tam clear on this, the
paynents from Whiting to you guys for this?

MS, LLOYD: For the equipiment,

MR. BOSCHEE: Okay, Tl say thatl haven't
seen thesm, but we will go tack and Jook, Andilwe
haven't disclosed the, we will get hei (o you. Butl

don't believe T have scen them.
Y MS. LLOYD:

Q. Soon ajob like {his when youh
equipment, assuming that the generator

items are referring to the equipment supplied by
Cashmen, how do you zoordinaie payment of your vendors?
‘A, Typicaily wewiltgeta notiee from Whiling

Turner thaf they have a cheelc veady.
plve a cheellist of Hems that they nee
that payment to Mojnve.

Page 12 1}

50,000 more ol

tike?

'Page 13

ave the
and the UPS line

Then they will
d to release
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Cashman Equipment Company, ot al, vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., f al

Page 14 ‘ : page 16
1 Q. Aud then bow does that work with - when dn 1 Ao 1 belleve we did, to get the relenses, yos,
2 you pay your vendors for the cquipment? 2 Q. And as {ar as you kuow, has Mojave been paid
3 A. Typically we have to pay vendors first, You 3 in Fisfl for the equipment that was supplied?
4 get the appropriate relenses frony each supplier and 4 A Yes.
5 their subtigred suppliers. And then I take all the 5 Q. Andso you billed out the equipment af
) veleases over to Whiling Turner and pick up payment, 6 100 pereent?
7 Q. Sowere you sequired to provide conditionals 7 A Yes
g  prierfo geiting these payments? Conditional releases. 8 Q. Isihat because it's 100 pereent complete?
9 A. Mojave provided a conditional relense to o A, Yes. This project is 100 pereent complete,
10 Whiiing ‘Furner with the billing, 10 Q. And the equipment is at 100 percent, mcaning
11 Q. Did Whiting Tuener require you to provide a 11 you have supplied 106 percent of what you were
1z conditional release froin, say, CAM o even downsiream iz confracied to supply? 1
13 or Cashman -- _ 13 A. Could you elavify?
14 A. No. 14 0, So you supplied the generator and the UPS
15 Q. - prior to issuing the payment for the 15 system, Those had certain requirerents, [ am guessing,
16 equipment? l 16 that cowe along with the whole package, siiksa
17 A. No. They would have the cheek veady, and I 17 package of equipment. _
18 would have to go pet unconditional veleases. 18 A, Wel, wo didn't supply the gencrator and UPS,
i8 Q. Upon payment of the vendors? Maybe you can 19 Q. Well, il was part of your coniracl with
20 deseribe the whole process fo me. 8o you billed for 20 Whiting Tumer t0 sopply those items?
21 the gencrator equipment here, and sty you have reeelved 21 A, Yes,
22 snost of fhe payment for it, So yoware determining you 22 Q. And you procured them from the vendor?
23 are going fo pay your vendors. So what happens once 23 A, Correct.
24 you == or how do you et the cheek trom Whiting Turmer? | 24 Q. . So you were ultimately sesponsible for
25 A, Oy, Typically we woulil get an e-mail from 25 installing them and suppiying them and gstting them
Page 15 o Page 17
1 tiseir acconnting person thnt swowld say, We have a checl i working?
A for X dolinvs ready Tor this fime frame. We need 2 A, No, that was throngh CAM. CAM dlreeted their
3 citrrent a union lefter; we need unconditional refenses 3 suppliers to do fhis.
4 from the following suppliers. Sowe would flien collect 4 (), Dutitwas part of your contract, CAM didn't
5 all that paperwork, uneonditional veleases from all 5 contract with Whiling Turner lo supply that equipnent?
[ suppliers oy subcontractors, get union lefters, you 6 A. Correet, !
ki ttow. At diffevent times they may just dependlng on 7 Q. You contracted with Whitlug Turner to supply 1
2 snsuvance, renewals will Tnst for new insuranee 8 that equipment?
] ceriifientes, But typleatly it's nsually Just union g A. Yes.
10 {etters and supplier releases, 19 Q. Soifyour contractis {00 percent, that i
11 Q. Soare you getling uncenditionals throvgh the 11 means your work supplying that equipment fs complete,
iz pay ap period that you are being paid for? 1z right?
13 A, Yes 13 MR, BOSCHEE: QObjection. That may call fora
14 Q, So would you pay your vendors priot to 14 legal conclusion, but go ahead. :
15 roceiving the payntent from Whiting Tumer? 15 THE WITNESS: Lwould say no.
16 A, Yes, 16 BY MS.LLOYD:
17 Q. And is that what happened with CAM? 17 0. What is not completc?
18 A, What do you mean? 18 A, Cashman dldu't complete all their conirneted
19 Q. With the payments to CAM for this equipment, 19 work
20 did you pay them prior (o your petting paid for the 20 Q. Coshman or CAM didn't complete?
21 equipment? 21 A, Cashnan,
22 A. Right. Wepnld CAM fo got the veleases from 22 Q. Well, who did you contract with?
23 MC Fan, all of his suppliers. . 23 A, CAM,
24 Q. Sodid you pay him prior to getting payment 24 Q. %o then who wag sesponsible to do that work
25 froin Whitiug Tomer for that equipment? 25 for you?
L"EC—:‘Z:;_A- = - Ay = X P TR G T o ML TR L B re e Pt T T T e
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: Page 18 Page 20
1 A, CAM, 1 mechanie's len and the PLC codes —~ :
2 - Q. DidCAM contplete the work? 2 Q. Socven e .
3 A, Itwasn't CAM's work. I mean, it was items 3 A, - that have been provided at this tine,
4 provided by Cashman, 4 along with ofber items that weren't provided,
5 Q. Well, who was your contract with? 5 . Soare there stilt items that Majave is
6 A, Ous is with CAM. 6 vesponsible to complete related to the generator
7 Q. Andwhat was that contract for? 7 equipraent? )
g8 A, Managing the tnstaflnfion of the genevator 8 A, Iden't understand the question.
9 and UPS. 9 Q. IsMojave still responsible 1o Whiting Turner
19 Q. So you paid them ot 800,000-some dollass to 10 to complete certain items related to the generator i
11 manage the instatiotion of the UPS? 11 equipment on the project?
12 A. [am not sure of the question yoi are asiing, | 1% A. By bond obligation, yes.
13 Q. You paid bim 900,000 just to manage the 13 Q. Well, is Whiling Tutner tookitig 1o you o get
14 instatlation, or wes (hal to MANAESs {he installation 14 the codes or expecting you are going to get the codes?
15 and supply the equipment? 15 1 don't know what Is fefs to do.
16 A, Tomannge and supply the equipment. 16 A. 1don't know what Whiting Turney is thinking,
17 Q. Sothenastoyou CAM was responsible to 17 buf that is why we had to piace 2 bend for fhe PLC
18 supply the equipment to the projest mud get it in 18 codes.
19 working order, right? 19 Q. Did Mojave ebiain a payment boud for this
20 A, Simplistically, ves. o 20 project? _
21 Q. What do you mean seimplistically™? 21 A, Yes, wedid,
22 A, Wel), we had CAM as # minority confracter 22 Q. Was thet required by Whiting Twrner?
23 divecting and coordinafing all this work, 1 menmn, ¥ 23 A, Yes
24 can't sit here and say that CAM was providing the 24 Q. Okay. _
25 generator themselves, . 2% {Bxhibit 2 marked.)
ﬁ e
. Page 19 ‘ . . Page 21
1 €. Bulthat is what e agreed to provide with 1 BY MS. LLOYD:
2 Mojave, wasw'ril? 2 Q. Canyouiakea look at this document id s¢¢
3 A, Yes. 3 i€ you recognize it
4 Q. Sotheithe was contractially responsible for q A. Ttappears to be fle paynient bond (hat was
5 doing that, right? 5 required by \Whiting Tuyner for this project.
6 A, Yes, 6 Q. Did Whiting Turber snke 7 claine on this bond?
7 Q. Sohas Mojave - just to clarify, Mojave has 7 A, Not fo my lnowledge.
8 Been paid fn full on this projeet? g Q. Woere thero any clnims on this bond?
9 A Ves. 9 A, Mot to my lnowledge.
1ic Q. And the generator cquipment, that isall 10 Q. Who would know if there wore?
il closed ont? 11 A. Prphably our bonding company.
12 A Ne 12 Q. Sonoonest Majave would know if there were
13 Q. How is it not elosed out? 13 olaims made an your paynient bond posted for this
14. A. There Is ttems that were nof providel under 14 project? ‘
15 the confract, . o o ~ 15 A, Mot at this time.
16 Q. Sohow did Mojave bill 100 percent and get 16 Q. Do you know what the parpose of the payment
17 paid in full if there are flems that aren't camplete? 17 bond is?
18 A, Beeause i was hilled by Cashman through CAM ig A, Simplistically {ox an owael ov genernl
ie for 100 pereent of the work {hint they hnd on thefr 19 confractor to be protected Trout a subcontractor o, you
20 confract. 20 know, a subtiered supplier that if something happens o
21 Q. Right. WhatIam saying is if you ore saying 21 that company during the course of construastion that
22 the work isu't complete, why did Whiting Tumer pry you 22 there is an avenne that the owner Tas protection
23 for the work if it's not complete? Pay Mojave, 23 against, you know, otiter individuals not being paid on
24 A. Beentise riglt now for tle worl that Is 24 the project.
5 complete Majave lins gone out anit provided bonds for fhe t 25 Q. Do you know if Cashman has made a claim on
L+ I NN e e
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1 this band? 1 A, Tam notsure of all of them,
2 A. Idon't kmow. |z 0. Do you know any of them?
3 Q. Can you toll me who Chrs Myers ls? 3 A. One guess would be - 2 conmnton name Is Roeky
4 A, Hetwas our project manager on tis project, 4 Mountain. ] '
5 Q. So was ke in charge of Mojave's work on the 5 Q. And then did CAM provide a bid to supply the
] entire project? . 6 generalor or equipment?
7 A, Yes ) . 1 A, Tam ned save of that,
8 Q. Both confracts? 8 Q. Do you know how Mojave determined whe it wns
9 A, Yes. e ) going to purchase the equipment from?
10 Q. And did he have daily fivolvement, then? 10 A, Ilow do you mean?
11 A, Yes. . 11 Q. Woll, assmning you got 2 bid from Cashman and
12 Q. Canyou generally Just deseribo what bis 12 other vendors, then how did you determing - Thow did
13 responsibitities would be with your subconiraciors or 13 Mojave determine who they wete potug fo parchase the
14 vendors on the project? ) 14 squipment from?
15 A, Just coordination of delivering of materials, 15 A, Typleatly 's who lias the [owest price nnd
16 malking sure that deadfines ave met, Just making sure | 16 mast eomplete package.
17 that tie correct products have been delivered fo the 17 Q. And when you obtaln those bids, do you
18 jobslte. | 18 provide fhem to the general coniractor or {he owster af
19 0, And who does he report to? 19 any time? ,
20 A, Ourvice president of consfruction, 20 A. Tam notsure if wedo.
21 Q. Andwho is that? ‘ 21 Q. Who at Mojave would know that?
22 A, Gary Rich, | oa2e A, Our viee president of buyout.
23 Q. When we talk about generator systems and UPS, 23 Q. Who is that?
24 do you know what Lam referring to in reference fo this 24 A, Yete Fergen.
25 project? 25 Q, And so do you know in this specific Instance
Page 23 Page 25
1 A, Just generieally, Tmean, not an n-depth 1 how Casiman was chosen to supply the equipment?
2 lnowledge of -~ Limean, X wouldn't be ble to take a 2 A. Tmean, I would assume that they were the
3 sehematle and taflc abont the generalor or TIPS system, 3 lowest bidder on the project.
4 Q. But generally this is what was supplied by 4 Q. But you don't have direct knowledge?
5 CAM and upplicd by Castunan, or do you need me (o 5 A, No. J
6 identify the equipment? ) Q. Do you know why Mojave didn't just buy
7 A. No. Imean, if we nre taiking fn general 7 directly from Cashman?
8 ferms, 8 A, The owner had & requivement for minorlty
9 Q. Okay, Dayou know how Mojave soliciled bids 9 parficipation,
i0 for the cquipment? 10 Q. Sowhen did Mojave determine that this
11 A, Our iypical stance Is we'll just contact - 11 equipment should be supplied through a minority or
12 different suppliers and just get hids from cnely one 12 disadvantaged busitess -
13 on~-for that tine ifom o, you knaw, a different i3 A. 1au nof sure of ihat datc,
14 group of items. 14 Q. Do you know if'it was before or after you had
15 Q, Do you do that prior (0 getiing awarded the 15 solicited the bids for the equipment?
16 contract, or do yon do that after boing awarded the 16 A, Yamnotsure,
17 coutract? . 17 Q. Who would kaow that?
18 A, Typieally it's done prior to awvarding the 18 A. Pefe Fergen t
10 confract Tt's usually done prior to bld fime. 13 Q. Is that typically determined prior to getting
20 Q. And then that is how you comprise your bid 1o 20 bids for cquipment, or is it differcnt for cach
21 give o (he general confractor? 21 project? _
22 A Yes. 22 A. For what item ave we talking about?
23 Q. Okay., Do you know the other supplicrs or 23 Q. Havingto supply a certain amount of -- o
0¢  suboontractors that wy kave provided bids for this 24 utflize a certain amount of disadvantaged business
25 peneralor of equipment on 1fis projeet? 25 entities, How does Mojave typically determine, you
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Page 27

1 know, I guess who or what or how that requirenent is
2 poinrg to be met?
3 A, Iam assuming it's typicaily in the bid
4 paelage that comes out from the geneval contractor.
5 . When does Mojave determine shich e items,
6 T guess, are golng to be supplied through a
7 disadvantaged brsiness entity?
8 A. Agnin, it's based off tite bid, T mean, there
9 are some husinesscs $haf are minority or disndvantaged
10 Lusitesses thai ave diveet with Mejave.
11 Q. Like Nedco?
12 A, Yes,
13 Q. SolguessIam trying to getan iden.
14 Cashman bid to Mojnve dircetly, Atwiat polbut did
15 Mojave determbne they didot wantfo purchase from
i6 Casliman; they wanted fo purchese that through the DRE,
17 disadvantaged business entity?
18 A. I amnot sure of that exact date,
19 Q. And doyou know what your percentape was with
20 Whiting Tumer, what ufilization you had to do for a
21 DBE on this prajest?
22 A. T am not sure of that number
23 (Eshibif 3 marked)
24 BY MS,LLOYD:
25 Q. Canyou take a look at this aud tell me it
1 you recognize this document?
2 A, Yes, Ido.
3 Q. Canyoufeilme wiak ik is?
4 A, This is our Iarge purchase ovder to CAM
5 Cousulting
6 Q. What do you niean "largs puschase ordet"?
7 A, That is just our terminalogy for - menn,
8 how we track move of the lavger expenditures on a
9 projeck
10 Q. Sobecavse Wsovera cerlain amount?
11 A. Yes, Ji's tracked in our management report
12 for the job just to have a rough kdea of contraci
13 ansount with the suppliev, dollars spent today, what Is
14 remaining on the contract,
15 Q. So this was Issved -- ean youtell me who it
1% was issucd to? ‘
17 A, It Yool Tike CAM Cansulting. And there's ==
g I gness CEO of Cashman Gquipment,
19 Q. Do you know why it was issted that way?
20 A, Tor minority participation.
21 Q. What does that mean, CAM Consulilng, in care
22 of Cashiman Fquipment?
23 A. Tam not sure. .
24 Q. Who decided how it would be Issued?
25 A, This was issued by Pete Fergen,

Page 28

Page 20

1 Q. Do you know how CAM came to be the DBE that
2 you bought this equipment from? ‘
3 A, Ihelieve e contacted Mojave and had done
4 worle with other genetral contraclors.
5 Q. Do you know who ¢fse ho had worked for?
6 A, Ibelieve e has worked for Mavin Harels and
7 Premier ¥echanienl,
g 0. Do you knosy ifho spoke with Troy Nelson?
o A Yes,
i 0. And who is Troy Nelson?
11 A, The president and ane of thio pwiers of Mojave
12 Tlectric or West End Associates, Lid.
13 Q, How did Angelo get a mecting with Troy
14 Nelson?
15 A. T'm not sue,
16 Q. Like, did he just walk i off the street?
17 A, He may have made a phone calt i Troy atd
18 Jnst introduced hinsch as 3t minerity contractor.
1.9 Q. And are you usually, like, Jooking for
20 minority contractors often, or how does that whole
21 process work?
22 A, Typlenlly Trwould assune that with this bid
23 cevtain - T menn, individuals Know fhe bid is oug
24 there, and they will monitor who getsa profect and
25 then contact the awarded subconitactor or su pplier and
1 iry and get a coniract that way, I am assuming,
2 Q. So i one of fhe responses to the
3 interrogatories, Mojave stated llat (hey checked with
4 offrer contractors about CAM, Do you know who it was
5 checked with, I guess?
9] A, Ts that -- Laean, ave you asking the
7 companies that -
8 Q. It just stated that he had met with Troy
9 Nelson and that fie checked with other contractors about
10 hirs,
11 A, That is the Martin Harrls and the Premier
iz Mechanieal, that Tknow of
13 Q. Sodié Troy actually speak with Martin Hatris
14 and Premier Mechanical about Angelo and CAM?
15 A, Yes.
16 0. What was CAM's first project with Mojave?
17 A, ©am notsure of the sequence order. We had
18 two other projects with CARML
19 Q, Inaddition to this project?
20 A, Yos.
21 Q. So thres projects total, So when you
22 determined that you were going to work with him, 35
23 {here a process you go through to cheels Tiim oot prior
24 to conteacting with him?
25 A. Could you elarify whaot -

T T T TR L ret L s S AR AR
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1 Q. Well, you are paying hin: large amounts of 1 Q. So for actual work that was petformed, you
2 nsoney. Do you eheck his eredit? Do you check his 2 Lknow, the actunl supplying of the equipment, the
3 business status, you know? Is there any, T guess, 3 ordering of the equipment, those items, do you know if
4 checking done bafore you decide that you are going to 4 CAM or Angelo had a role in that?
5 contract with him? 5 A, Just ihe coordination of gefting the
6 A, There isu't any evedit ehecks done, There 6 materials, getting whatever subcontractors or suppliers
7 was a cheelc done on his DBE status, 7 we had to get the items to the job site,
8 Q. Soyou verified his DBE? 8 Q. Badw'i Mojove already determined fo buy the
9 A Yes. 9 equipment from Cashman?
10 Q. But you diditt check his gredit? 10 A, Thu uot sure.
11 A, No. ] i1 Q. Soitwasupio CAM to choose who was going
12° Q. And did he have a conteactor’s ficense? 12 to supply the equipment, the generaior equipment?
13 A, T amnot suve, 13 A, I'm nofsure.
14 Q. Mojave didn't check to see if e had a 14 Q. Who would know about that?
15 contractor's lleonse? 15 A, Pete Fevgen,
le A. T ans not sure if somebody olse did or didn't. 16 (Exhibit 4 marked.)
1 Q. Pid you verify how long he had been in. 17 BY M8, LLOYD:
18 Business? . _ 18 Q. Cun you take a look at this docmment for me,
19 A, 1did not. 19 A, Olay.
20 Q. Do you think anyone clse at Majave did? 20 Q. Are you fumiligr with this documient?
21 A, Yamnot sure. 21 A Yes.
22 Q. Who would be respensible for something like 22 Q. Mojave's infermogatory response No, 5 and 7
23 1hat? 23 state that this dociument {s -- it memorializos the
24 A, Probably Pefe Fergen would have been theone, | 24 seope of work that CAM had an this project; is that
25 Q. Does CAM actually perform any work? 25 correol? And the responsc actually cies this aud the
Page 31 Page 33
1 A, Could you clarify that? 1 subsequent exhibil as --
2 Q. What did you hire him to do? What did you 2 A, Yes, it does,
3 hire CAM Consulfing to do? 3 MR. BOSCHEE: Since you cited it and then we
4 A, Just the managing and coordination for 4 reference it in the interrogatory respotise, do W just
5  whatever task he is hired for, 5 want to put the next one --
[ ). Does he actunfly do that? Does he do 3 MS. LLOYD: Together? Wecan, T don't kalow
7 anything? 7 that they really actually go together,
8 A, He does the managing sud coordivntlon, B MR, BOSCHEE: I dow't know either, but when
9 Q. SoifTlook througl ynur job file, would I 8 you ask about the total seaps of work -
10 find dosuments from CAM on flils project related to the 10 MS. LLOYD: So the interrogatory response
11 work he performed? 11 cites Majave 185 to 208, which you can see at the
12 (Ao Lam not sure, ] 1z bottom. The document starfs with Mojave 185 and then
13 Q. 1menn, what does that mean, "management and 13 continmes, And the document T Just provided goes (o
14 coordination”? 14 208,
15 A. Ti's move or less if - fef's just sy we had 15 (Exhibit 5 marked.)
le a Tight fixture evder with kim, Hewould be given, 16 BY MS.LLOYD:
17 Here's the fixtures we need, here's the dendline they 17 Q. Soare these for the work CAM performed on
i liave to De there, and he enordinates ail those items, i3 the new City Hall profect?
19 Q. Butin this instance wasn't Mojave dealing 12 A, No
20 with Cashinan directly on this generator cquipment? 20 Q. Okay. So what are these for?
21 A. Not to nty knowledge, The only denling T had 21 A, These refer to seprrate projects,
22 was through CAM. 22 . Okay. Let's start with No. 4. Can you tell |
23 Q. What deatings did you have through CAM? 23 me what this is7
24 A, Just oy payments, That is all Ireally had 24 A. This s a confrnct for the NV Energy projeet.
25 with CAM. 25 Q. And this Is issued by Mojave to CAM as your

T T L T YT e LT n e R I TP T T T

9 (Pages 30 to 33)

. Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@depointernational.com

JA 00001843




rage 34 Page 36
1 subconiractor? 1 Q. Do youwantto look through all these pages?
2 A, Yes. ' 2 Beeause I don't know I they are all conteact pages or
3 Q. 8o can you tell me what CABL's scope of work 3 something olse, 1 you want to folt me at the end if
4 was for Mojave on this project? 4 anyolthe docwnents that are in here in this exhibit
5 A. Reading off of page 2 it includes supply and 5 clarify that rélationship? t
6 instail o turnkey telecommunication system that's 6 A, Lmeqn, this is just the agreement bobween
7 called for in the contract documents dnted July 16, 7 Mojnve and CAML )
8 2016. 8 Q. SoBates 199, the last page of it, what is
9 Q. Sodoyon aeed a license, 4 conitactor’s 9 that? ’
10 Ticense, to install a telecommunication systew like 10 A. That Is an invateo from CAM to Mojave
11 that? . 11 Electric.
12 MR, BOSCHEE: Ohject o form. May catl fora 1z Q. Under this agreement?
13 legal conclusion, but if you know, you can ansiver. 13 A. Yos _ |
14 THE WITNESS: Ido't know. 14 Q. And then whal is the previous page?
15 BY M$, LLOYD: 15 A, More or less the samo thing, just for the
16 Q. Did CAM perform that work? 16 January thno period.
17 A. Can you clarify it? I sorey. 17 Q. Okay, So lhere s no dogument in here that
18 Q, 8o CAMwas contracted fo supply and insiall 8 18 shows Mojave billing CAM?
15 turnkey telecommunication system. ‘Did CAM do that? 19 A, No.
20 A, Can you clarify that agnin, Decause T am not 20 O, Did Mojave bilL CAM?
21 surewhat you are asklng ' : 21 A, Yes,
22 Q. Well, Mojave hi red CAM -~ ifT am 22 Q. Okay. And do you Imew what Mojave apreed to
23 apderstanding the document sight, Molave hired CAM as 23 pay CAM and then what CAM agreed to piy Mojave For this
24 asubtontraciot to instaltn tusnkéy telecotmunication 24 work? '
25 systei as descrfbed in paragraph L1 Did CAM perform 25 A, Well, for this coutract, it was for §350,470.
]
Page 35 page 37
1 that work? 1 (. Aund then do you know what CAM subcontracied
2 A, Areyou asking sed-performed? 2 with Majave to do the work?
3 Q. Did they porform that work? 1's not a trick 3 A. 1 helieve it was probaDly that doflar @ ount
4 guestion, I promise. 4 Tess — T thinle it was a 3 percent foe for CAM.
5 A. T'm not sure what work, Areyou talking 5 Q. So why did youuse CAM on this project?
6 about the work theve? They were nived to deo i and 6 A. Again, it was a minorlty participation.
7 theu they hived someohe to perform that work. 7 Q. Required by Clark County?
8 (), Wio did they hire to porform ihat work? 8 A. Lami not sure whelher it was NV Energy or
9 A, Onrlow-voltage systems division, ] Clark County, bui there was ainovity participation
10 . Troesthat haved separate corporation? 16 destred on this project.
ii A, No. If's just more or less 8 division under 11 Q. So did the pritne contractor know that you
12 the West End Assoviates, Litd, é/bfa Mojave Eisetric. 12 inserted fim in the middie of yourself?
13 Q. SoMgjave hived CAM to hire Mojave to perform | 13 A, Imn net sure.
14 the work? 14 Q. Okay. Sadidhe complete his work on (his
15 A, Mojave Systems. 15 project?
16 Q. Buiil's the suie corporation, S0 essentially 15 A, The worlk was completed by Mojave Systonis,
17 yout hired CAM to hire Mojave? 17 Q. Was he around until the end of the project?
18 A. Yes - 18 A, I think fhe finat bid of the project was
1% ©. And is there a separate eoniract between CAM 19 when—T mean, it was after tho April 2011 time period
20 and Mojave for the work Mojave - 20 when--
21 A, Twould assnue therels., 21 Q. He siill owed the money and gipped town? l
22 Q. Have you seen 7 29 A. Ves.
23 A. Tmean, Ihaven't looked for it. Wegotso 23 Q. So page 198, it states that -- {t says
24 mauy projects. T couldu' tell yon the cxact contracts | 24 82 percent, Does that rafor to porcentage complete?
25 that are theve or not theve, 25 A, Yes.

Brian Bugni

Cashman Equipment Company, et al. vs.

e ey

- 171072013

CAM Consulting, Inc,, et al

10 (Pages 34 to 37)

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@depoiutemational.com

JA 00001844




=
O W o ~ e W

Rl Sl I e el sl vl ool il o
.uwmn—towmuamm-bmm:—*

25

H
O\pca-amr.nb-wMH

PO R e vl vl
S m ol oy W N

21
22
23
24
25

L

, ~ Brian Bugni
~ Cashman Equipment Company, et

- 1/10/2013

al. v,

Page 38
Q. So thore would have been a subsequent payment 1
far 18 peyeeni? 2
A. Normally there would hiave heen. 3
Q. Sowhat happened to that payment, 1 guess? 4
A Woll, that is when CAM move or less 5
disappeared, so we had Meojave Sysfems finish it, 6
Q. And thes kept the money? 7
A, Well, not veally hept the money. YYe had fo 8
Jo s management for him. 9
Q. Well, did he really do any management on the 10
project? ) 11
A. Yes, 12
Q. Describe to me whal e would do on a daily 1.3
basis on this job. 14
A, 1couldn't feli you, Vow'd have {o get owr 15
projeet manages Bui this project manager jsmolonger | 16
with the company. 17
Q, Who was the project menager on titds job? 18
A, Mark Foster. ) 1%
Q. 5o hewasn't just inserled in 16 meet the DBE 20
requirement, He actually haet a rofe on the project? 21
A. Yes. The managlugfeonrdbiaiion for the 22
low-voliage installation ’ 23
Q. Olkny, Let's took at No. 5. Co you describe z4
o me what that is? 25
e
Page 38
A, This is an agreement befween Mojave Electrie 1
and CAM Consulting for fhie Las Vepas Metro Police 2
Jeadquarters tenant fmprovesent. 3
Q. Sothisisa-- Wojave hired CAM, correch? 4
A. Yes, 5
Q. Andwhat did Mojave hiire CAM to do on this 6
projeet? 7
A, As rveferenced in paragraph 1-12, supply the 8
consuling serviees and confract fhe follpwlng systems 5
for access control, paging multimedia and security 10
systems. 11
Q. Okay. Andthen the price for that wortk, is 12
tiat contained in Article 57 13
A, Ves, lEis . 14
Q. Okay. Anddid CAM complete b8 work on this i5
project? ‘ 16
A, No, this was during the same time frame when 17
CAM disappeared, Sohe hiad completed a portion of it ] 18
and Mojave hnd to stepy in and coordinate for the rest, 19
Q. Okay, Andon thls project CAM hired «« CAM 20
hired the entilies specified? 21
A Yes o 22
Q, Tn 1.1, Stanley Well & Sting? 23
A. Correct, . 24
Q. And did you toll CAM whe to hire to complete 25

- e ——

CAM Consulting, Ine., ef al.
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Page 40

this work? Ts that why it's specified inthe
agrecment? .

A, That is whai I wonld assumé,

Q. Okay. Who was the project manager on this
job?

A, Debbie Corwin,

Q. Isshe stilf with ihe company?

A, Yes,

O, And so do you know if Angelo had a role on
this project?

A. Probably the same as the other nues,

Q. And do you know i there was a DBE
reguirement on this project?

A, Yes, there was.
Q, And is that why he was used?

A, Yes

Q. Sohewasusedfora total of three projects?

A, Yes .

Q. Justtomake sure; the City Hall, the Melro,
and the NV energy?

A Ves,

(). Sowas CAM paid any payments on the Metro
contrast? . i

A, Dam not sure. Lwould have to double-check
on that.

Page 41

Q. Okay. And then do you know if he was paid
my puyments on the NV Energy?

A, Yes,

(Exhibit 6 mavked.)
BY MS$. LLOYD:

0. 'Toke a look st this decument. Do you
recognize it?

A, Yes

Q. Can you tell me what it is?

A, If's a contraet befween Mojave Fleetrie and
CAM Consulting on fhe Las Vegas Metvopolitan Police
headguarters, DL

Q. So did you Issuc two separate contracts fo
CAM?

A, Yes.

0. Sothisone paperwork is for the 1.1, but
it's a different scope of work from the otler faat we
just Tooked at?

A, Yes

Q. And what was -- T don't reatly understand the
seope of work, Canyou tedi me whal he was to do or
CAM was to do on this projeci? On this contract.

_A, Just reading the paragraphs, tie a

suheontractor is required to supply a job site or job
site speeifte safely progimn within 30 days of the
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page 42 Page 44 |
1 contraet, two days priev fo Irnvitlg A person on the job 1 A, Tdon't. Iusoni, fhis is an agreement from
2 gite. ‘This is an M3 dimcnstonal coordinated profect, 2 CAM o Q-Matie, ‘
3 and it appears for a Q-Mntic quate. And elecfrical 3 Q. I you look at Articte 1.1, it Jooks like it
4 contraclor Is fo install conduit aad wive ln standatd 4 contains (he same scope of work as the Mojave to CAM
5 loxes for subcontractor. 5 conitact we were just looking af, the earlier part of
6 Q. So did he subrontract to somedne else fo do 6 {his cxhibit, Yes?
7 anyiliing on this contract, or WeIo these actuatly his 7 A, Yos,
8 duties? _ 8 . Okay. Butyon don't have any knowledge about
] A, Tam nofsuve on this one, 9 whal this agreement was for?
10 Q. Did he perform this work? 10 “A, 1mean, just reading ity I meat, if's to
11 A, Just by Tooking at the subcontract nuntbery it 11 Q-Matie.
12 would - 1¢ appears thai itls for a low-voltage worlk, 12 0. Do you kuow wity Mojave would have a copy of
13 witich might have been my systeims department agaln, but 13 this agreement if it was between CAM and C-Malic?
14 Tamnot 100 percent sure on thai. ' 14 A, An assimpiion would be that CAM needed htelp
i5 Q. The date of this sgrecment s July 20, 2011, 15 with the contract and they hasically took & copy of ouy
16  whichis after the April date you referenced cariicr 16 contrach p
17 where he skipped town. o do you ketow if this was ever 17 Q. With their logo on the front. Tt fooks very
18 actually signed, ot ifhe ever did any of {his work? ig similar ps your contract,
18 A, T not sure on fhis ont 10 A, Woll, ours bs fust an Txcel format, so [am i
20 Q. Con you look fo fhe Dack and teli me what 20 asswming they Just gave i€ to Angelo and just had him
21 those Invoices are (or siarting - 21 change -
22 A. Tt looks like qn invetce from - 22 Q. Okny. So neither one of these docuneils are
23 Q. --sround 280, 23 executed. Do you know il you have exeonted copies?
24 A, 289 maybe. z4 A, T don't kmow.
25 Q. 282,281 25 Q. Do you know if this work was performed?
Page 43 rPage 45
1 A, 281 is a change ovder. i A. Twould have to assume hat it was,
2 Q. Soyouissueda change ordet under the 2 0, Okay. So then if we fool again starting at
3 contract, SoIam nssuming that means frwas - 4 281 wlih the purchase order changes that were issued by
4 A, And the same thing for 282. 4 Mojave (o CAM, would those have been in refersnce to
5 Q. Sowhat does that mean if you issue a change 5 Majave 262, the conienct Deginning af the beginning of
6 atder on o contract? That therelsa contract? 6 this exhibit? -
7 MR, BOSCHER: Can we go offthe vecord fora 7 A, Yes. Tam assuming tt was addittanzl work
8 second? 8 that was required.
9 (Off-record discussion held.) 9 Q. Atthe bottom of thal page where it says,
10 BY MS. LLOYT: , 10 Tlease acknowledge, whe's su pizosed to sign that?
11 Q. Wesiarted off at Mojave 271, Can you sce 11 A. The subcontractor.
12 the mmbers at the bottom? 12 Q. Is that Angelo's signature?
13 A, Yes. 13 A. Tam netsure. T don't know what Angelo's
14 Q. So this document appears to bt a CAM 14 signnture lools ke,
15 agreenent, correct? i5 ). DBecanse Lam gog to represent to you that
i6 A, Yes. 16 in July I any prelty sure he was gone, July of 2011, So
17 Q. Not a Mojave agreement. Flave you seeh thls 17 whoould have signed tiiis document for CAMY
18 document before? ' 18 A, Twould assume that if this was additiona!
19 A. No,Thaven't 19 worle for Q-3 aile, {hat they ad someone from Quatic |
20 (. Becauss you produced it. Tmean, it was in 50 come in and sign that, beeanse at tlie top it says fo
21 youe posgession. T dott know if that - 21 CAM.
22 A, OQkay. 22 Q. In care of QuMatic?
23 Q. Solam notsurs why, but -- so eni you talk 23 A. Yes, Beenuse they weren't able to find
24 to what this agreement Is, o do you nof huve any 24 Angelo to sign it, they just bad somebody come in nnd
25 knowledge of if? - 25 s,
e e E AT T ST EE T T L T I T T R e 5 p T
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1 Q. Andthen the documents following that, can 3 A, ‘Then 228 is an invoice from Stavley,
2 you fell me wht those - 2 Q. And fs that - it looks like il's an involeo
3 A, Stavting with 2837 3 to Mojave directly. l
a Q. Ubehuh. 4 A, I don't know il they just billied us because
5 A, Looks ke invoiees from Q-Matic. 5 this was the time that CAM iind disappearcd and we had
6 Q. Reloled to the work they did? 6 ta start paying for CAM. . ' L
7 A, Yos, 7 Q. So did you just take over ihe scope thal he
8 Q. Orrelgied to those change orders maybe? B ywns supposed [o be performing?
9 A. Thoy would have fo be a combination of both 9 A, Basieally,
10 beenuse the two elange ovders total alittle over 9,300 10 Q. Okay, Then ifyou can, tell me he rest of
‘11 and the subtotal is almost at 41,600, i1 (e doguments essentially represent that.
12 €. So Q-Maticwas able to complete the work 12 A. They awe Just invoices from Stanley Sting and
13 without CAM? ‘ 13 Well Equipment Compauy, And fhig tast invoiee is Just a
14 A, Yes, . 14 Dilling from CAM, which Rppents to be for welt
15 . 0. Anddoes fotsill ageonit Tor your DBE 15 equipment.
18 requirement on that project? : i6 Q. Do you know {fthat was paid to CAM?
17 A, Iwould assume fhat partion would be no whh 17 A, Tam not stre. '
18 CAM belng goue. s 18 Q. Sowhen it's stamped “processed,” docs that
19 {Exhibit 7 mavked.) 19 mean it was paid? ' J
20 BY MS. LLOYD: 20 A. Yt was entered mto onr system, in out
21 Q. Canyou teke a look at thiz amd tell me what - 21 aeeoymiing systent,
22 thisis. 22 Q. o is there -- do you cver put a daie on an
23 A. An ngreement between CAM and Stanley 23 fvoics et shows when it was paid?
24 Cemvergent Securlty Tools on the Las Vepas Mefropolitan 24 A, No
25 Pollee Hendquarters tenant improvement, 25 (Exhibit 8 marked.) T
I -
rage 47 Page 49
1 Q. Was this io complots the work from the 1 BY MS. LLOYD:
z contrnet wo lopked at earlier? 1 think it was 2 ¢, Canyoutakea look at these?
3 Bxhibit 3 between Mojave nnd CAM. 3 A. 'They are chieeks from Mojave to CAM.
4 A. VYos. 4 Q. Ts there any marking on tha check itself that
5 Q. Do you know why Mojave would have a copy of 5 shows what it's a payment for? So if we slart with the
6 this apreemetil? [ fivst page, Cashiman 438, the check Is for 19,989.84.
7 A, T am not sure, 7 Is there a reference on here of what that is for?
8 Q. Then ifyou can take a look starting at B8 A. 1t would be on fhe eheel stub, huf not on |
9 Mojave 218 and describe to me what all the supporting L} this portion of the checkiitself,
10 doguments are, - 10 Q. Okay. Doyouhave reeords in your system of
11 A, Okay, 218 is a listing for our LPO or large 11 what these payments would be for?
12 puvchase order just tracking of invoices chnrged 1z A, Yes,
13 against the LPO. ’ o 13 Q. Have those been praduced fo date to know what
14 Q. Soisthisa Mojave - you produced this 14 {hese different payments were in reforence to? Boif
15  document. You write initor someone from Mojave 15 youwwant fo leok through, do you know offhaad what
16 writes in it? _ ‘ . 16 these payments are in refercice to Hwe go check by
17 A. Yes. 219 is n change order; 220 Is also 17 check? '
18 chanae order; 221 is nlso a change orders 22%isnlson | 18 A. Tmean, I coulin't tell you what cach check
19 change order; 223 Is also a ehange orders 324isalson | 19 wasfon
20 change ovder; 225 is also a change order; 226 isatsoa | 40 €. But you have records to know what cach cheok %
51 change order; 237 ks also a change ordes 21 was paying?
22 Q. Letme stop you there. Most of these chiange 22 A, Yes,
53 ordersappenr to be unsigned. s that normat? 23 Q. Can you provide thase records?’
24 A. Typieally we will geta signature on thent 24 A, Vs, , ) .
25 Q. Okay. ' o 25 Q. Okay. Then if'you want (o keep thai exhibit
. et
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Page 50 Page 52 |
handy, 1 A, Idon't thinl we hid.
(Bxhibit 9 marked.) 2 Q. Okay. But you have records of when you

BY M3, LLOYD: 3 teceived payment and you are going to provide that?

Q. And do you recognize this document? 4 A, Yes.

A. Ti's an unconditional progress relense from 5 Q. Okay.
CAM to Mojave or the City Hall projeet. 6 (Exhibit [0 marked.)

Q. And CAM teceived payment $901,388,937 ki BY MS.LLOYD:

A, Yes, 8 Q. Canyoutakea look at these documents?

0. Do you know what thal was payment for? 9 A, Olay.

A. L would have to pull the -1 think thiee 10 Q. Do you recognize these?
invoices are veferenced on the velense to know exnedly i1 A, Yes.
what it's paying. iz (. Canyoutell me what they are?

. Okay. Because I dot't telieve | have records 13 A, ‘They are checls from CAM fo Mojave.
of that, so could you provide it? 14 €, And do you know what they are paying?

A, Sure. . : 15 A. They ave paying Mejave for the work on the NV

Q. Okay, Did CAM have 8 role on the City Hall 16  Energy projeet.
project besides the gencrater and UPS equipment? 117 Q. Thatwas the first contract we discussed

A T ant not sure, ‘ ' i8 where Mojave hired CAM, then CAM hired Molave?

Q. You don't know if they were supplying other 19 A, Correet
equipment? : 20 Q. Did Mojave submit inveices to CAM?

A T awm sot sure, heenuse T meat, 1 lot of the z1 A. Yes.
projects mixed together wers - Jitee o the Las Vegns 22 Q. Aud do you have copies of those involces?
Metropolltan Pollee Headquarters T1, Tmean, they had | 23 A, Tam assuming we do.
difierent facets on that one, 24 Q. Can you provide those?

Q. So it's possible that CAM was supplying other 25 A Yes

Page 51 Page 53

equipment to the City Hall? 1 O. Ckay. And were these given to CAM af the

A, I'minotsure T 2 same time lie recalved the other checks?

. Okay. But those invoice numbets would telf 3 A Tremember we paid then - the st cheek on
you what this payment was for? 4 NV Energy was given to CAM the month priok. Andd it was

A, Yes. 5 our — [ fhink the Tirst payment on that project and he

Q. Okay. Andis this notary -- does this notacy & didn't bring # check to us. Sowhen he came fo plek up
work for Mojave? 7 the second check, e paid us for the flrst eheek, and

A. Not anymore, but yes, nt the time, g then thesceond eheek on NV Encvgy.

Q, Shedid? 9 Q. Okay. So did you reguirg him to do tnt in

A, Yes. 10 order to issue subsequent payments to irim?

Q. Did you prepare this retease for CAM 11 A, Could you clarify?

Consulting? ' iz Q. So you paid him the mottth befors ad then he

A. Not to my knowledlge. 13 dido't pay Mojave. So wereyor concerned because he

Q. So didanyons at Mojave prepare it? 14 didn’t pay Modave {he monil bofore?

A. Idon't know, I wican, L know L didn't, 1% A, Well, T eontaeted hinl, and tuat's when I Teft

Q. Okay. And then ifyou want to take a fook at 16  lim volcemalls, And Igotan e-mall from Tty saying
{he previous exhibit, Do you know what checks this 17 fhathe was out of ihe country and he woulil be back on
refease was exchanged for? 18 this date fo square everylhing up,

A. Without having a detail in front of me, I 19 Q. Okay. At that pointwere you concerned Hnt
wouldl assume it was the last two checks, possibly. 20 Wiere might be issues with bite {ssuing payment?
Beeause it looks Iike those fivo checks totaled the 21 A. Notreaily,

901,000, 22 Q. Okay. Sowhen lie caine io pick up the other

Q. Soat the tme that Mojave issued these 23 checks you required that hio pay for the previous month
checks, had Mojave been paid for the equipment from | 24 andthat month? :
Whiting Tarner? ' ' 25 A, Correet.

]
;i%
|
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1 Q. OntheNY Energy? 1 pay Mojave?
2 A, Correct, 2 A. No. My assurption was e got ouy clieelc and
3 Q. And did you require that tefore you paid him 3 we got hiks, and he necded ours --
4 on the City Flali project? Like, did you reguire him to 4 Q. Topay yours?
5 squate up everything with Mojave before you were going 5 A, Yes
6 1o give i any more money? : 6 Q. So did you deposit his checks right away, ot
7 ‘A, No, Just on the NV Energy profect. 7 did you wait for your eheck 1o elesr, your eheck to him
8 Q. Sowasthe NV Energy handled at a different 8 to clear?
9 time as the Cliy Hail payment, or werg those handled at g A, No. Typically it was the -1 think thls ene
10 the same time? 10 was late in te day fhat he came In and it was done the
i1 A. Just {lming hit that they weve bafh paid at 11 next day, But be Tarew I wasn't waiting on Irimyg that
12 {Tve same time, so they were handled at the same tims, | 12 thees checks were going in,
13 Q. Sohecameto Molave's offices? i3 Q. How did hie know? .
14 A, Yes ] 14 A. Beenuose I told him, We are depositing the
15 Q. Isthat normal course of degling for your 15 cheels,
16 suppliers? They come to yeur offices to exchange 16 Q. What was his response?
17 reteases for paymonts? . 17 " A. Ticwas fine with it. Beeause ke had our
18 A Yes ‘ 18 payment.
19 0. And so you didn't have any concerns paying 19 Q. An he had the City Hal payrsent --
20 hitt and then waiting for hin fo puy Moiave for the wotk [ 20 A, Yes .
21 that Mojave was doing on the NV Bnetgy projest? 21 Q. --at lhe spsne time?
22 A, Noton the first fime. ' 22 So to go back a fitle bit to the generator
23 Q. Why didn't you have any cohcerns, 1 gaess, if 23 equipment, wo had talked eartier abonf who was {o do
24 he was out of the country and didi't issue payimnent like 24 certaint things on ihe project. So can you deseribe to
25 you thought he wis poing to fssue payment? Z25 me what your undarstanding of Cashman's seope of work
Page 55 page 57
1 A. Titst beeanse we had more worlowith him on NV 1 15 on behalfof Mojave? [ guess, what Mojave's ;
a2 Energy, 50 lmew he would have to get it straighitened 2 wnderstanding of what Caghman's scope of work was on r
3 ontt, 3 the City Tali project?
4 Q. How do you meqt - becauss ifhe wos aut of -4 A. Just my undorstanding was that they were to
5 the couniry, he wasn't really doing anything on te 5 pravide flio complete genesa tor aud complete UPS on the
[ praject. [ project.
7 A, Well, T don'f know if he was ot not, 1 am T Q. Do you know what fitat entaile?
8 ust snyhig, that 15 what fhe response | rocetved Tras. ] A, Not cvery detail. When [ sny neenerafory” T
9 ©. So what was your agreement wwitls ftim on the NV 9 am nof sure of every component Hat makes it a
10 Energy project shouf the payments? Did you have an 10 generpio.
11 agreement? 11 Q. Troyowknow when that scope of wark would
12 A, Itwne basienlly to Dring in a chieck and it 12 sfart? Like, when the fivst work would be done?
13 would be exchanged cheel for cheek and velease, Andwe 13 A, Twouldn't.
14 made an exvor on the fivst payment That wase't done 14 Q. Tro you - daes it inctude the preparaiion of
15 iy miy accounting staff. 8o thert when the second checl 15 submital fron Mojave?
18 was rendy, that is why 1 teld Il Tie weas conting in with 16 A, Yes, Lowoull. :
17 two checks 10 gef NV Energy enrveat on all payments. 17 Q. Sothal wowld be Castman’s responsibifity, or
18 Q. So did you belicve he had (e fmds o cover 18 would thrat he CAM's responsibility?
i2 {heso cheeks in fis account befors depositihg your 18 A, Well, Tor us i€ weutd be CAM's respousibility
20 funds? ' ) - 20 to tell them {hat we need submiteals, and then they H
21 A Vs, : 21 would « 1t would go to Cnshiman fo get the submitéal.
22 Q. Soyou betioved he had the funds to cover 22 Q. Butessentially providing this generator and
23 your cheok before e pul your check in the bank, if 23 UPS system inchudes prepariing submitials when they nre
24 fhat makes sense? So he dida't need to get pakt from 24 aeeded jo give 1o the generad contraclor for approval?
25 Mujrve to pay Mofave? You thought he hnd the goney o 25 A, Yes.
= T P T T ST T P L MR
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1 Q. And do yon know iF Cashiman provided those 1 gencrafor, providing fhe PLC codes. And then fhis

2 submiitals? 2 swould come after, bt just warranty waorl on the

3 A, 1am not sure, 3 generator or the UTS,

4 (. Do you kntow what the puspose of the 4 Q. SoMojave asked for the PLC codes fo be

5 submittals are? S 5  instatled prior to Angelo's bad check?

6 A, Tmesn, simplistieally 6 the owner and & A. Tam notsure. That would be the project

7 general contractor Lo that what was on (he confraet 7 MANAZEY.

8 is bolng instatled. So if there js.a substitution 8 Q. Okay. Soyou are not sufe if thess items

9 being made, if you spee'd ot a Type A fixture made by 9 were not completed by Cashman before or nfer the bad
10 g specifie vequirement, we say we ean get this one less 10 check?
11 exponsive, Can we snbstifite it T's Just so thai il A, Lwonld have fo say before beeause Cashman
iz what is on the vonfrael doenmends ave installed. 1z bifted 100 pereent of the coniraet.
13 Q. So you wait for the owner approval before you 13 Q, Wall, Cashman didn't bill if; CAM billed if?
i4 actuatly issne the go-ghond and order the equipment? 14 A, Right, Cashman billed to CAM, and CAM billed
15 A, I think move the general conlractor, 15 to Mojave o this worlk.
16 Q. And then does Muojave issue a release once 18 Q. Do youknow how the installation of the
17 they huve the gpprovals lo the supplicr fo po ahead md 17 penerator is schednied?
18 order the equipment, thel everylhing fooks gand, or how 18 A. No.
19 does that process work? . 19 Q. Soyou don't know at what point {(he batteries
20 A, Tt would be diciated by the sehedate of flic 20 would be required as opposed to deliver the genetatot
21 prejeet, The projeet manager wanld refease i Tam 21 as opposed to the PLC codes?
22 {ust saying, If day one we got the prajeet and theve is 27 A. Ne.
23 a 90-day iate fime on 4 gencrator and it's 2 Di-day 23 ). So you dow't know if the PLC codes would be
24 praject, T ean't wait until day 90 fo say, olay, we'll 24 instalied immediatcly upon delivery or if that is
25 order a gencvator, 1t would have beex relensed on day 25 something that happens Jater?

Page 58 Page 61

1 oo wiflh a seheduled dellvery date, 1 A, - Twonkin'f [ow.

2 Q. Okay. So obvionsly ail of that is ineluded 2 Q. So you don't really know whether they were on

3 in Cashman's scope of work, (e ordeving of the 3 schedule completing the work prior to Angelo's bad

4 equipment and all of that coordination? 4 chock?

5 A, Through CAM, yes. 5 A, Twouldu't know, But fad wasn't the

6 Q. Andthendid Cashmap domplete all of the work 6 question that you asked,

7 required of it prior o Angplo's bad cheek? 7 Q. Welt, 1 did. Tasked were they completing

8 A, No. ] (lveir work as required prior o CAM or Augelo issulng

9 Q. What did Cashman rot do prior to Angelo's bad 9 that check that eaded up being bad?
10 check? 10 A. Dui I am saging from my perspeetive, oran
11 A, The items that T aun mware of that Cashman 11 accotmiing perspective whenyou 111 100 pevee
12 hadu't provided was Dbattervios Tor the TPS. 12 coptract you ave saying all of the worlcis dong, AngI
13 Q. Was that recquested prior (o Angelo's bad 13 understand warranty work, yon fnm, wonkdu't be done
14 cheek? 14 untifaffer the project Is complete.
15 A, Iam potsure Lthink it was = 1 thinlcif 15 Q. Well, who desides whet your suppiier can bill
16 Was -~ 16 100 percent? Doos your supplicr decide whea they can
17 Q. BecauseT am kind of wanting to start with, 17 bl 100 percent, or docs Mojave decide when they cau
18 you know, hefore the bad check and then afier the bad 18 bifl 100 percent?
18 check. Soifwe deat with before {he bad check, was i0 A, The projeet manages approves the pereeniage.
20 Cashman dolng everything it was required to do before | 20 Q. S0 Mojave's project manager approved '
21 the bad cheek? 21 billing of 100 percent? ‘
22 A No. : 22 A, Yes,
23 Q. So what items didn'tit do before the bad 23 @, And then it was up 1o him to coordinate when
24 check? < 24 those fiems were completed?
25 A, The batteries for (e UPS, the startup afthe | 25 A. T am nof sure what he was thinking on that.
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1 Q. Soifheatlowed 100 percent Bliling, tut say 1 Q. Butis thers an insuranee thal would insure
2 part of the work couidi't be done for, T den't kiow, 2 you agatust a bed check from -~ say, if Whiting Tormer
3 six months because it requires a corlain sequencing, 3 gave you a bad check, do you have insurance fo cover
4 Majave made that decision to allow that to happen? 4 that? _
5 A, Yes 3 A, Tdon't think --T am not sure. Twould have
6 0. Okay. Do you know about the delivery of the ] fo gel our insurance agent and ask him specifically,
7 cquipiaenl to the site? ? agnin the specifies of it. )
8 A, No. 8 Q. So why did you think that Caslunan would have
9 Q. Who would be the best petson at Mojave lo 9 insurate? . ‘
lenow about the delivory and fhe installafion of the 10 A, Just ngainst the theft or fraud,
cquipment? 11 Q. So wete you just kind of assuming they shonid
A. Chris Myers, the project manager. 12 have q policy like that, or did yon have direct
Q. And then do you know anything about the 13 knowledge? Did you see 8 policy?
problems with the instaltation or if there werc 14 A. No. T asked Kelth and he said they had one,
probilems with the instaltation? : 15 but they were self-insured aud they djdn't want {o go
As No, i6 against themselves for the payment.
Q. That woukl be Chris? 17 Q. Aspariof this litigation, does Mojave have
A, Chris also, 18 an agreement with Whiting Turner concerning Cashinan's
©. Do you kiow whes Cashman was 1ast on the 19 claims? ;
project ot performing work for the project? 20 A. Tam not sure what you ntemn by an
A. 1don't know that, Glipis would know that. 21 Bagreenent,"
Q. Do you kaow what work was completed by other | 22 . Maojave had a requireinent 1o keep their
contractors on the generator equipment? 23 project frec of liens and resolve claims by its
A. Roughly the stavtup work was done Ly ofher 24 lower-tiered suppliers; is that right?
subeontrnctors, and then Mojave had to go out and 25 A, Yes
Page 63 Page 65 |

Q. So when Caslman's claim came up, did Whiling

purchase the balterios for e UPS,
Tuener come fo Mojave and say anything?

1
£). Doyou know what he startup work enails on 2
the generators? 3 A. No. Actually, Mojave reacted flist.
A. No 4 Q. Angd did what?
Q. Would Chris - 5 A. Went out and posted a mechanie's Hen bond,
A, Yes, 6 Q. And then what was done subsequent? Was thers )
Q. --latow more fully what wis done by those 7 an agreement reached with Whiting Tumet about the
8
9

otlier subeotractors? defense of Castman's claim?

A, Yes, A. Iam not sure of afl the legal aspeets of It. i
Q. Axd then T recall seeing something i an 10 Q. Who would kuow about that?

e-nnif from yon about self-insurance, Caghnsan having il A, Probalbly our law firm,

celfnsuratice, Do you know whnt that was refering 12 Q. Lnean, who at Mojave would know abont it?

107 ‘ 13 Somcone had to aushorize it and wixderstand what was
A. Yes, because | talled to Keifh aud Shane 14 going on, an Mojave's behall

asking them 1F they had insaranee for coverlng this 15 A, Tvould assunte that would be Troy.

type of transaction, . 16 (3, Were you i the room when the checks were afl
£). What fype of [ransaction? 17 exchanged concerning this equipmeni?

A, Well, whero they are paid. ‘They folen 18 A. Befween CAM nud Mofave, yos.

posidated checl and then CAM fiusn't vome {hrough end | 19 Q. And then was Cashman also on site?
20 A. Cashman was on sife also, And that Is when

w

20 pay bagieatly on a promissory nofe. _

21 Q. Do vou have insurance? Troes Mojave have 21 eliecks wers exchanged in our sales conference room,

22 insurance for that? ' 22 Q. Soyouwere all in the room together?

23 A, Well, we have diveciors, yau know, and 23 A, Tdow't remenber me sitting in that exchange

0a  owner's insurance, cmployee inswrnnee fu ase fhere fs 24 with CAM, Lmenan, that is almost two years ago.

25 atheftofsome {ype. 25 Q. So did you recal -- 1 mean, did you recall
.:,,",',v‘,:'s::LE'A('_"_':-X‘—V—‘J'?—-5...,\.‘-1.--'.;:!,;':. ar R SR I r‘-_",'-‘:._.11\.#::5-5‘:1—‘;';‘:&4:::'-A";-::'J:_‘u..'-l_d R oot A
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seelng CAM give Cashman {he check?

A, Tdon't remember.

Q Okay. And did you sec if the check was glven

in exchange for the release?

A. T i see fliat, but Tmean, 1 saw the relense
after they Ieft. .

Q. Okay. Anddoyou kinow why you required an
unconditional release? '

A, Beenuse Cashiman was being paid 100 percent on
fhie project.

€. Bulwouldnlla conditional release serve the
satne purpose If payment is issued?

MR, BOSCHEE: Objeet to fornt That may cafl
for a fepal conclusion, but you can AHswer i you can,
THE WITNESS: 'To me it's just industry

slandard, Forme to go pickwp 2 check at a general
confractors, T have o coms in with an uneenditionad
peogress or final, depending on witat t]_w check js for.
BY MS. LLOYD: | S

Q. 8o if the check to you from your general
contractor bounces, Is that wuconditional refease -= do
you consider it still 1o be a valid release?

A, Well, I haven bad cheel I could take to the
DA's affice to eollect on,

Q. Right, but say they disappear; do you

rage 67

consider that to still be a valid release if the ¢heck
doesi't clear?

A, T haven't thought about that,

Q. Do you know why Mojave didn't issue a joint
check to CAM and Cashinan for this equipment?

A, Just for the minovity pm‘ttcipatién, Just
hecause T couldn't ssue a joint cheele to CAM and
Cashman. :

Q. Wiy?

A, My understanding is that with the DI progran,
payiments have to go to {lie DR, aad then the DB
disburses then.

Q. Whore did you -- have you stenl that
tequirement in writing atywhere?

A, Just taltdng with differont contraetors
across the couniry, electrienl contraectors.

Q. So did Whiting Turier say yeu can't issue o
joint check?

A. No.

0. Wouldnw'tit have been safer to Issue ajoint
check?

A, Well, figst of all, T didn't have s
joint-check agreement with CAM and Cashman.

Q. But Cashman requested a joiud check, dida't
they?

- 1
Page 68

1 A, They called into the office asking fora
2 joint check and my response to my accounis payable is
3 wo can't do it hecause of the minority participatlion,
4 Ihave (o heven cliecl golng to CAML
5 0. Butyou don't veally have {hnt requirement
6 anywhere in writing from Whiting Turner thaf you
7 coulduit fssue a joint cheek; you just chose ol 1o
8 issue a joint check?
] A. Yes, but that was alse the apreement it
19 CAM, i
11 (. What was the agreement with CAM? '
12 A. 1low they were handiing paynient.
13 Q. What do you mean?
14 A. ‘That tils was sef up before when CAN ol
15 Cashinan met to degide how payments were going to go.
16 Q. ‘Who deolded it?
17 A, Teith and Angelo met, And actunlly Cashinan
18 reduced {lse percentage from -1 thiink on this one I
19 +was from  pereent down to a halfa pereent,
20 Q. But1still don't understand iF Cashmon
z1 requested a joiit cheek, what did yor migan? That there |
22 s an agreement prior {as there wouldi be a joint
23 check?
24 A. No. Thatis how it was explained to Kelth
25  and Angelo, that the pay would go tiy CAM, and fhen CAM
-
Page 69 g
1 would distribute funds.
2 Q. Who explained that?
3 A, Dote Fergen with Kelth and Angeio.
4 (). Pele Fergen soid, Mo jove won't issue a joint
5 check? i
6 A, Tdon'f know If Pete said these words
T speeifieally,
8 Q. What did you mean, then, by whet you said?
9 A. Tam justsnying that they meot with CAM and
10 Cashman on kot payments were golng to flow. And X just
11 Tave to show a eheck that is made to CAM, nnd CAM
12 solely, for {hat amaunt.
13 Q. Does Mojave ever isaue joinf cheels?
14 A. T iypieally try not & ‘
15 Q. Why?
1% A, Tomethey ave just more of hendnche to
17 deal with,
18 Q. Hyouare concerncd that a sub isn't going
12 10 yay a supplier, isu't it safer to issue a joint
20 cheek?
21 A. Noo Iview lasifigetan uncondifional
22 from that supplier, then Tknow titey ave pald, then I
23 can issuo a cheek to that individual,
24 Q. Butifthe check exchange for the
25 unconditional doesn't elear the bank, flie unconditionnl
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jsn't valid anymore under the las.

MR, BOSCHEE: Okay. lam going to have to
object to that since you put munder the law" at the end
of your guestion, but answer if you ca.

THE WITNESS: Youwill have to clarify that
statement. ’

BY MS. LLOYD:

Q. So ifyouwereto issue @ check, wouldn't it
be safer to issue ajoint check to the supplier and the
sub, and get releases from loth; that way you know
you're paying and your funds are good and those

“relenses are good,

A, Possibly if the minority participation isn't
involved, buf not with the minority pal'tlcipaﬁun.

Q. Andjust to clarify, you don't have anything
in writing from Whiting Turner on fhis project that
says you catr't issue & joint cheek?

A. No. ‘

Q. And canyon tell te where you get that
requirement from? Is it some other handbook? Is it
soms regulation somewhere, somne guideline?

A. Tbelieve it's a federal regulation.

Q. That says you can't issue joint checks?

A. Tam not sure if it says - if 1t says you
cannof issue a joint cheel,

e
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Q. But that is why you doit issue joint checks?

A, In fhis insfanee, yes.

O, And then just o ¢l arifyy, you weren't sure
who - if CAM provided praterials from anyone else on
this project. Yo said Chris Myers would know that?

A. Yeoal, T i not sure,

Q. And ther can you descrihe to me the basis for
Maojave's atfegation in its counterclain: that CAR was
Caslunaur's agent?

A, Could you ciaviiy? Tam notsure what you
are asking.

Q. Tnyour counterclaim against Coshmey in this
case, Mojave stales that CAM was Cashunan's agend. 1o
you kitow (e faciual basis for thas claim?

A, Tilen't lmow the legal -~ the Tegal facts for
that.

Q. Why does Mojave think that?

A, Decause we contracted wlilh CAM, and then CAMI
went out and conkracted with Cashman,

G. Doovsit't tht just male CAM your subconiractor
and Cashinun CAM's subcontractor?

A, Tam not sure how the !cgsﬁ ferms worlt,

Q. And didn't Mofave inwoduce CAM and Angelo
1o Crshinan? ‘

A, Taw notsure.

vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., et al,
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Q. Youreferred toa meeling betweer Pote and
Keith and Angelo. So do you know how CAM cqame to be
Muojave's subeontractor on this project?

A. Again, looking for the minority
pavHeipation. o

Q. So did Mojave after meeting CAM introduce CAM
to Cashman? ‘

A, T am assuming e did thes,

Q. Okay. And then do you coisider there o be a
conlract between Mojave and Cash man?

A, No, .

0. SoinCAM's failure to complete the work, do
you consider CAM to have Dreached its contract with
yal, Mojave?

A. 1 haven't really thought about it in those
ferms, ' _

Q. So ifyou ingursed dmnages because CAM dida't
complete fhe generator startup, Mojave woukd pursuc
{hose damages against CAM, its sabeoniractor?

MR, BOSCHEE: Calls fora legal conclusion,
hut go ahead and answer if you can.

THE WITNESS: I'm not suré.
BY M, LLOYD:

Q. And then can you tell me the basis for the
allegation in your counterclaim that Mojave retied upott

Page 73

the uncondltional provided by Coshman? How did -+ what
did Majave do in refinnee upon that unconditional?

A, Coudd you elaify that? Beeauge Tam not
understanding what you meat,

Q. Mojave included in their counterclaim an
allegation that they relicd upon {he uncenditionai
relense provided by Cashman. Cart you felf e how
Mojave relied upon it?

A, Benuse Mojave paid CA M and CAM paid Cashman,
And fhien we got the unconditionnd release and then CAM
and Cashman struck 4 separate deal befween the v

Q. Whatdo you niean they struck a scpavale deaf?

Ao By Cashnan taking 0 postdaied cheele Tome
i heeomes n pronifssory avle, T nemn, basieally
Cashiman foaned CAM the money to e vepald in a certaln
nuniber of days.

Q. Soyaulave pessonal knowdedge of that
agreeitent?

A. Mo, Lam just saying that Cashman took &
postelater) theek.

Q. Soyoune assyning that iz what that mennf?

A Yes

Q. Sowhat if Shane tHdu'l kow fhe glicck was
pasidated when he took fho cheek?

MR, BOSCHEE; Objection. Calls for
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1 spectintion.
z MS. LLOYD: Well, he is speculating right
3 oW,
4 BY MS, LLOYD:
5 Q. Then what do you think about that?
6 A, Buthe di; e knews )
7 €. How did he know It was postdated?
8 A, Teenuse he held the checl, Andin fact,
g Kelth went over fo Pete Tergen's house on 4 Satorday
10 iight affer pieking up the eheek looldug for payment.
11 And then 1 got an e-1uafl over e weekend firom Pefe
12 asking me wiy we didn’t puy Cashtaw, why Cashman wasa'l
13 phid by CAN, And 1 told them they were, And Shaue
14 1o1d e, No, I Just deposited the chigch, T fust
15  Thaven't {olll everyborly yet. '
16 Q. Okay. Giveme time framo herc.
17 A. 1am notsure of the exact dates, put Cashman
18 vecelyed thie cheek from CARY, Shanc sat en the checlk.
18 This may tave been - and Iant not sures If ntay bea
20 Wednesday that Hiey cante {n, orra Thursday, Batena
21 Snfuvday night Keith went to Petc's pevsonal residence
22 Tooking — asking Wt why they weven't paid for the
23 genevator, the 755,000, Pete toid him he thought he
24 was alvendy prid, and that is when Pete sent me an
25 e-inail.
Page 75
1 And on Monday morning I got on fhe plone with
2 Shane inuedintely and Lsald, What Is going ont with
3 this? Beeause Teith went fo Pete's house o Safurday
4 wight asking why Coshman wasy'f pald, And ¥ suid, And
B you have been pakd. Andl he sald, veah. ¥ hinve held
6 the check, T justdidn's teil anybody, 1have now
T deposited it and Twiltled overybody knevw T was paid
8 on the job.
9 Q. So1don'l know why iha infers 1o there was
10 an agreement. 1 don's kuow.
11 A, Well, i you fnke a postilated check ad you
12 hald it fov the time perlod, to meif'sa verbal
13 agreenient,
14 Q. But you arctt't awarc of any ngreement?
1.5 A, No.
16 Q. Youare just assuming thers fs an apretment?
17 A, Yes. .
i8 Q. So Majave hug claimed dameges against Cashmain
18 for the startup cosl, AT You aware of that?
20 A, Yes ‘
21 Q, What is the busis of claiming the denages
22 against Cashman?
23 MR.GOSCHEE: Object to the exicnt it calls
24 for 2 fegal conclusiof, T aim golng fo object.
25
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BY MS. LLOYD:!

Q. Well, the factunl basis,

A, Lam uot suve of the legal Dasls for this,

Q. Well, you fold me you don't have @ contract
with Cashmasn, You testified you don'l have a coniracl
with Cashman, right?

A, Corvect.

0. Areyou aware of another reason why Cashman
should have to pay you for the startup costs?

MR. BOSCHEE: Same objection.
THE WITNESS: T am not sute of the legal
ferms.

(Whercnpon, a re¢ess was takon.)
(Fxhibit 11 marked.}
BY MS. LLOYEx :
Q. Arc you famikiar with this document?
A. Ithinl. Idon'tthinkIhave seen {his
before, though.
Q. No, Do you know what it is?
A. Iam assuming it's our bonding company
contacting Whitlng Turier.
Q. Like in response to a claim?
A, Or else just to release retention possibly.
T am not sure exactly, but 1 Lknow when we had to get
refention velease there had fo be a velease of a

pertry+ M

Page 17

consend of surety. Well, no, I got my dates mixed up
when fhe retention got paid.

Q. When were you paid out on --

A, Tiint ls what Lam fryiog to remember. I
would have to go back and lople. 1 can'f remember if 1
was avound this tivie frame o i iEwas 2012,

Q. That you were camplete and paid ouf on tie
praject?

A. Yeah

Q. Okay. And then can you tell me what Mojave
Jid in response to Cashraar's ten claim?

A, e filed a bond to basienlly vemove tho len
off the properfy and put it owto a mechanie's lien
bond,

Q. Did you contact Cashman concerning the lien?

A, Tdon't rentember iCT did of nat.

Q. Do you know il anyons clse af Mojave
contacted Cashman about the Hen?

A, Tam notsure.

Q. Didyou try io tatk to Cashman about the
claim or what it was based on?

A, 1knew Casliman eame inle our office maybe
{e — I think August of 2010 or 2011 time period. I
forget which one.

Q. Whengver (he payment was -~
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i A, Yeah, L Q. Bven ifyou doit get pald? i;
2 Q. And did what? 2 A, Yes,
3 A. They basieally asked us for o check for 3 (. Hasacheck ever Bounced to you in exchange
4 755,000, 4 for a payment application?
5 ). And what was Ivojave's response? 5 A, Lmean, on smaller work, yes,
1) A. O response was we alveady paitd CAM and 6 Q. So ifMojavs is told they are not gning to
7 Casliman had already been paid. 7 pet paid, they continue 1o work on a projest?
8 Q. But Cashiai hadn't been paid; CAM had been 8 A, Depending on when we are told we are net
9 paid, right? o getiing pakd.
10 . A, Well, Tmean, I justknowa choek went to 10 Q. Ckay. .
11 Cashman and we got onr relense, 1t A, I mean ifwesign a confract. And a gencral
12 Q. And did Mojave comsider contacting Cashman 12 expeets s to go out and do work and for no paym ent --
13 about doing he startup work separately? 13 1 menn, if they say from day one Heve's a S10 milifon
14 A. We asket Cashnian fo da the startup work, {0 | 14 contract we're not going to pay you 4 peany to do this
15 provide the batteries, and every fime it was rejeeted, 15 worl, well, of course we ave 1ot going to ge outand do
16 0. Wore you offeriug payment in exchange for the 16 it. Bat if we are in the middlo of sometiting -- {
17 services? 17 mena, thepe is always dispntes on change orders.
i8 A, Ne 18 Q. But this was 1 failure of payment for the
19 Q. Why not? ) 19 entire amount to Cashman, They didnt get pald a pemiy
20 A, Beenuse our stance was Casbman had already | 20 for this work,
2% heen paid and that was part of the contract. 21 A. T disagree with that statoment.
22 Q. Soyou'd rather pay someono else to do the 22 Q. Well, I mean, Angelo -1 think we can agree
23 work than pay Cashiman fo do the work? 23 {hat Angelo took the money. He got the money and J
24 A. Cashman refused to do the worl, period. 24 instead of paying Cashman he took fhie money. That is
25 Q. Butyouweren't offering paywment for the 25 whai the records show.
Page 79 pPage 8L
1 worls, right? - 1 A, Yes,
2 A. Correet, 2 Q. So Cashman didn't get paid a penay o1 the
3 Q. But you had to pay someonc else to do the 3 project,
4 work? | A, ‘Dut that was - to me that was Cashman's
5 A. Correct. & cholee by taddng a postdated eheek, That was thely
6 Q. So didn't auyone at Mojave consider talking 6 visk of themn getting pait on a profoel.
7 to Cashman about negotiating the claim considering what 7 G, ‘Well, T mean, I guess it's neither here nor
& happened? 8 there. They didn’t get a penny and they supplied that
9 A. T am nof sure what you mean by tegatinte the 9 equipment to the projeet, So T sure you can
10 claim." 10 understand theiv ftustration,
11 Q. Talking to Cashman. 1fyon were goinglo 11 A, VYes and no.
iz pay, say, Clentech to come out and do work, you conld 12 Q. Do you stifl not chieck disadvantaged business
i3 have pald Cashman o do the same work, right? 13 ontities when you enttiract with them? Da you have lhe
14 A, Yeah 14 same process it place now fhat you had when you firsl
15 {3 Wasthatevera consideration? 15 contracted with CAM?
16 A, No. Betause my understanding was Cashmnm 1% A 1 don's fhiak swe made any roal changes.
17 refused to go ont to the project unless fliey were naid 17 O, So you dow' check to make sure that they are
18 the 755,000, i8 solvent or they cail manage thess type of fands when you %
19 Q. IfMojave didn't get paid on a project, would 15 are giving thent karge poymaents and expeciing them o i
20 they keep working? 20  pay- i
21 A, Yrs 21 A, Well, in indsight we may ehange {he process
22 Q. Lives if they were told they wers not going fo © 22 of hiow we de something for Ruture. ButTmean, we will
23 petpeid? L 23 cross that bridge when we gef to the next DB,
24 A, ITavenever known g ried to finish a 24 €. Since this project you haven't had othet
25 project, ' ) 25 coutracks that require you to use DBE?
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A, Tilte T said before, we may have had some
requiveisenis, but it might have been with, let's sagy n
Nedeo, )

Q. Like a real company?

A. A Nedeo or via Hampton, If we can get fheir
vequivement that way, we will do it that way also,

Q. Instead of having like this person who jnst
kind of gets inserted the middte, but really doesa't
have 4 futction or a company, really? Emean, they
Dhave a company, but Twouldu't eall it a lepitimate
COMPAny.

A, Tam uot golug o comment on that statement.

Q. Okay, And shen were you aware that Castnan
made o bond claim on Whiting Turner's payment
performanee bond? o

A. No,Iam nof. Ithought onr mechanie's Hen
bond tool cave of Cashman's elaim.

Q. Okay, And then wers yoit aware there was
meeting between Cashian and Majave at sone point afler
Angelo's check failed to clear?. .

A, Right. That is what we were tallking abont
hefore.

Q. Were yau part of that meeting?

A. Ivvas in that meeting, yos,

Q. Who'was ot (het meeting? '

s
S o=l e W

NN R DD B N B et R e
mbwmpammqmupwwp

Page 83

A. ‘Troy, myself from Mojave, and I i frying o
vemvember: from Cashman's side. T think it was Kelth, T
fintc it was » Mike, Joel, There may have been one
athor person from Cashman,

0. Where did that meeting tnke place?

A, In our office, our makn confertice rogin,

Q. What was the purpose of that meeling?

A, Tiwnsn'isure, Cashman ywanted to come over
and talk abont what was owed on the projeck,

Q. And go what was fhe substance? Like, what
did you gnys talk aboul?

A, T aall - to me the gist was Cashanan fust
hasteally eame over and asked us whab we were doing fo
cotleet the funds for Cashman, And Fnenn, our
statoment to Cashman was we weven't the dnmaged paris,
s0 we tannot get any lnformation 6a Aungelo, 1mean,
Cashnran 1as flie one that was gotng fo ftave fo go ont
and purste, you know, all the Infornuation that they
needed

Q. And was thers anything ulse discussed af the
meeting? ' '

A, Tmean, It was juse Lam sure talidng about
that project to other projects. )

Q. And then how kind of was itiefi? How was
the Ciity Hall project loff at thet meeting?

O W -y o e

17
ie
19
20
21
22
23
24

25

pPage 84

A, 1think it was Mike and T - Lwon'tswear to
it, hut 1 thought Mike made the statement, I you wanid
to pay us the 755 again, then we wiil tale it,
Othenvise, we ave fling = Tien on the project and in
two or three months we will be paid in full,

(. And then what was, I guess, Mojave's
response? Was there a rogponse?

A. My response was I wanted (o know whe you can
get to coliect a lien in five or three months beeause
it's impossibie. '

Q. Was thers anything else talked about in the
meeling In reforence fo the equipment or Angelo?

A, I think Caslinan provided banl statements from
Angelo, beeause we had asked them for that also, just
trying fo help us fry and traek ihn dows,

0. Wore you looking after Angele's payment --
you didn'l pay themn, Were yout Tooking for Angelo? Did
you try fo go out and find hitn, or anyone from Mojave
iry to focate him?

A Vesh. Xmens, we (vied to contact him on
ecll pltone, I even went on the Tieternet and did some
searches on Angelo, And T gave Shane his address,
Because I didn't kmow if he had this as a residence for
nine. Isald, 'munot sureifit'sa valid address on
T or not, but I thinke that is the one Shane went ont

Page 85

to In the middle of May to meet Angefo o get the
second ehecle, That Iz when I said to Shane, You are
Tiedgy you gok that seeond cheek beeause (he first one
you don't have a leg fo stand o,

Q. Yeah. He's probably tucky he dide't get
harmed at that point, Shane [ niean, not Angelo.

So do you recall anything else happening

afier those conmnunications between Majave and Cashman?

A, T think maybe Joel may have called once or
twiee and said, Fiave yon guys mate any headwny on i?
I menn, we Iooled where we could, but 1 ntenn, we coukl
enly porsue it so far beeanse, again, we weren't {ie
party thatwas deaged.

0. Well, kind of Imean, at this poing -~

A, Al thls polnt we ave.

Q. Soyon weren't able to Tocate Angelo, or you
never spoke with him aftor that payment didu't clear?

A, T may have gotten kit one day vwhen Shane
called me and said the thivd cheelo didn't cloar I
mean, you got the, Lam headed ont of the couniry and I
will get it talren care ol

Q. So lhen after the payment on the Cily Hall
project, all those paymenis like Aprit of 2011, did you
meke any ofher payments to Angelo after that point or
to CAM?
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1 A, No. 1 prylig us, 1 Qidn't went to bring that up, So I wanted
2 Q. And then is that sort of when all his work on 5 thathandled bebween us. Aud dlen Angelo and Francls
3 these other contracts stopped too? 3 went in and T assume It was Steanc that was i theve,
4 A, Pretty much thaf's when everyfhing -- that is ¢ bt T am not sure whe was there from Cashman.
5 when CAM basically disappeared, 5 Q. Some represeniative from Cashman went info
6 Q. Did you guys ever send him a correspondence 6 your conference room with Francis and CAM, and that's
7 about falling to complets his duties on the contract or 7 when they exchanged the cheels?
8 auy thing like that? : 8 A, Yes.
9 A, Tdon't thinf we did, T puesswe just ] MS, LLOYD: And you were not thore?
i0 thought it was stieh a Dlatant item fhat he was gone, | 10 THE WITNESS: No.
11 Q. Can you think of anything else that you would 11 BY MR. BOSCHER: : ]
12 postily to at trial that we baven't discussed here 12 Q. Did you guys ever accepia postdated check '
13 today? ' 13 from CAM for the Mojave Systems portion of the work we
14 A, Invegards to whaf? . 14 talked about earlier?
15 Q. The case, the cluims, Mojave's ciaims against 15 ‘A, No. I menn, we were --wo were behind on
16 Cashiran, Cashman's claims on the project, 16 getting paid on fhiat one.
17 A, At this time, Tmean, 1 couldn't thinlk of 17 Q. Right. But when you giot {he cheek, yougot a [
18 anytiing else, 18 conterporancous cheok aud deposited it at thoe same time -
19 Q. And thenis Moave released as to the Clty 18 they deposited your check, correct?
20 Hall project? 1s ail the wark done? You don't bave 20 A. 1 think we deposited it the next day beeause
21 any mare work on the project? - 21 1 think Angele came in probably about 4:30 or so in the
22 A, We don't have any worlk, There's still a 22 aftarnoon and then just exehanged and took it af the
23 dispute on the underground portion of the contract. | 23 end of the day.
24 Q. But not on the portion that included the 24 Q. And there was nothing - when CAM left your
25 generators? 25 office, went to the conference room with Fraucls, nwt
Page 87 Page 69
1 A. Correct, That contenet is closed completely. 1 with somebody from Cashman, couldn't CAM have just
2 The undergronnd is the only Hem it sl hins an open 2 signed Mojave's check over to Casinuan right then and 3
3 item onlif. 3 there and been done with it? Wouldn't that Tave golien
4 Q. Do you have aiy krowledge 6 1o whether 4 Cashman paid tipht then and there with funds you knew
5 Whiting Tutner has been paid by the owner for the 5 were good?
5 generator equipment? ' 6 A, Yes, buf then Cashman would kave owed CAM
7 As [ rlon't have any knowledge of that. 7 neHEY.
8 Q. Orif theve {s negotiatious between Whiting 8 Q. Cnghman would hove had to write a check -
9 Turner and the ownes about the generator equiphient? 9 A. That was offered oviginatly to do it that
1c A, I not privileged to that information. 10 way, but Cashinan vefused to do that also.
11 M8, LLOVE: [think we are dobe, 11 Q. Who was that offered by?
12 MR. BOSCHEE: T do have just one or W 12 A. That was from Pete Fergen fo Keith,
13 claci fication questions, beeause T yasnt clear on 13 Q. Okay. Andwhen did that liappen?
14 something, 1 niade a note about it. 14 A, T think at the stari of the project,
i5 EXAMINATION ' 15 MR, BOSCHEI: Okay. [just wanted toask a
16 BY MR. BOSCHEL: ls couple of clarifications, Tam done,
17 Q. You testified a litlle it eatlier about the 17 MS. LLOYD: Can T clarify, then?
i8 day that the checks were exchanged in your conference i8 FURTHER EXAMINATION
19 room. You were thege, it sounds like for part of it, 19 BY MS, LLOYD:
20 bt siot For all of it. s that accurate? Orwho was 20 Q. Were you lirere wiey Pele talked to Keilh
21 in the conferanee room during s check exchange in 21 about that agreemont you just referred ta?
22 April? 22 A, No
23 A, ‘T'he first cheelc exchange hetween Mojave ani 23 Q. So how do you knaw that that was offcred?
24 CAM was in my offtce wlth Francs, my accounts payable 24 A, That is what Pete told me.
25 person, Angelo and suyself. Beeause Just wilh him not 25 Q. Okay. Andthenif we can go back really

TR TN R TR Lt iR e i T
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certify and declare the within and forepoing
16 teanserlption to be my deposition in sxid sction; that
I hawe read, correeied and do heteby affix my stgnature
17 1o sald deposition wnder penatty of perjury.
18 o
BRIAN BUGNI, Deponent [E
15
20
Z1
22
23
24
25

Page 90 Page 92 i
i guickly fo Bxhibit 10, the checks from CAM to Mojave, 1 % SIATE Dg}gqlgf&gﬁm OF REPORTER
2 think you testified you got these at the same lime in 55 )
3 thiat meeting? 3 COUNTY OF CLARK )
4 A Y 1 1, Christy L. DeJonker, a duly cammissioned
: + XES ‘ Hotary Publie, Clark County, tate of Nevadn, do ficreby
s Q. Can you look at the dates on those checks? 5 cerify: Ehot [ reported the deposition of Bt
6 A. Onels the 27th and on is the 28th, ¢ ?E%.’ﬁ‘aﬁ‘;“‘““e"m“g on Thusday, Janmniy 10,2013, at
i Q. Do you know what dnte (it meeting cccurred 1 That prior to being deposed, the wilness was
8 on? daly swamm by me to testify ©© the frati.. That !
: : o g  thereafler imngetibed vy sait sharthand notes inlo
G A, 1 thinle i was the 26th, Like said, itwas Iypewriting ard (hat the typewitien ttianscn'p% isa
i ) g comptels, frue and accirale sranseription of my said I
10 Tate in the nfteracon. shothand noles. That review of the {ranscript wos ;
11 Q. Soyouanceepled two postdated checks from 10  reauested.
12 CAM? 1 , Ifusther f[eﬂiiy st [ am not 1 relative, .
’ employes of independent contracios of eounsel of any of
13 A. Iam nefsureifwedid 1 would have to go 12 the pasties; noc a celulive, employes or independent
14 back and look at the exact days, : mntmcin; ofthe ﬁmﬁcs inwollved i[n sakl aclion; gar
- 13 aperson financially intereste in the action; net do 1
15 MS. LLOYD: Okay. That isit, have any ehier relationship with any of tha parties or
16 MR, BOSCHEE: ‘And you have -- just for my 14 wih Nlaﬂscf of any of ﬂt:f parties in\'q!vcd:;p {!16 "
17 clarification. You have got -+ for all the chiccks we 15 3322;;01123_‘““’? reasonably cause my fpactnliy 1o
18 have looked at here, you have got something in your 16 . i ;Vl'(r:N BSS \.gg;,llfgr 1 "?‘{3 sctdmy llz_mml i any
19 acoounting ar somo paperwork matching up the checksto | 17 S dayor, oo, 2083, fate of Novad, this
20 invoice numbers that you can. provide fo me and then 13
21 well provide to Jennifer; is that right? jz‘g
22 THE WITNESS: Yes. CHRIATY LYN DeSONKER, CCR NO, 691
23 MR, BOSCHEE: Okay. %
24 (Thereupon, the deposition 23 :
25 concluded at 1:20 pan.) ig i
N —
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a

a Nevada corporation, - CASE NO.: A642583
: DEPT. NO.: 32
Plaintiff,

)
)
)
)
)
)
Vs . )
‘ ) Consolidated with
CAM CONSULTING INC., a Nevada )} Case No.: A6H3029
corporation; ANGELO CARVALHO, )
an individual; JANEL RENNIE )
aka JANEI. CARVALHO, an )
individual; WEST EDNA )
ASSOCIATES, LTD., dba MOJAVE }
ELECTRIC, a Nevada )
corporation; WESTERN SURETY )
COMPANY, a surety; THE WHITING )
TURNER CONTRACTING COMPANY, a )
Maryland-corporation; FIDELITY )
AND DEPOSIT COMPAENY OF )
MARYLAND, a surety;? DOES 1~10, )
inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS)
1-10, inclusive; )
)
)

Defendants.

—

)
R )
AND ALL RELATED MATTERS. )

)
e
DEPOSITION OF CHRISTOPHER MEIERS
Taken on Thursday, dJanuary 31, 2013
At 1:00 p.m.

6725 Via Austil Parkway, #290
Las Vegas, Nevada

Reported by: RENE' HANNAH, CCR #326
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Page 2 pPage 4
1  APPEARANCES: 1 accurate record, You cai take a break at any time,
2 Forthe P“‘i"lﬁgdfﬁﬁg ém LLOYD, BSQ: 5 except for when a question is pending I would ask
3 &725 Via Austi Parkway 3 that you answer the question and thea take the
Suile 260 . 4 break. Your testimony is under oath, just as it
4 I(A‘?gz\)fg%gsﬁ';;ada 89119 1 5 would be i a court of law, T you don't understand
5 irobinson@pezzillolioyd.com 3 a question or you want e 10 olarify a question, i
6 ) . 7 ptease ask and Il do the best fo do so, because we
; For flee Defendant Mojave Eleclric: g wantyour best testimony hetre today. Is there any
SHEMILLY A. BRISCOE, ESQ. 9 veasont you can't give complefe and teuthful
8 Cotton, Driggs, Watch, Holley, 10 testimony today?
Wolesow, Thompson 1t A No.
s é?grﬁ'ﬁggwm Strect 12 Q What did you do to prepare for your
10 1.as Viegas, Nevada 39101 13 deposition?
{702) 791-0308 ' 14 A Mot with Shemilly and Brian.
ié (NDEX 15 Q Idon't want to get into aty
13 Exantinationby: Direct Cross Re-direct Recross 16 comniunications. Did you review any documents?
14 Ms, Lioyd 3 17 A No
%2 : 18 Q O talk to anyone at Mojave?
17, EXHIBITS 18 A No
18 Deseription Page 20 Q Doyou holdany professianal licenses?
ég E‘\*‘l“‘]‘[‘)‘!{ff Vhiing-Tumer Subeontaet 8 21 _ A State jowrneyman's license. "Wiscousin.
21 Exhibit2  Application for Payment 22 Q Tnwhaterea? Isthattoa specific
32 Exihit3  CAM Consuiting Tuvoice 13 23 field?
23 Exhibltd  Contract Supplement 39 24 A REtlectrical.
%é ' : 25 Q Were you a cantraciot in Wisconsin?
—v_ﬂ—______ﬁ‘____,__r_———————“——_-v__—f
Page 3 Page b
1 (NRCP Rule 30¢h)(4) was walved by the parties prior 1 A No
2 to conmencentent of the deposition.) 2 Q How long have you had that license i
3 Thereupou, 3 Wisconsin?
4 CHRISTOPHER MEJERS, 4 A Boy, olt, hoy. Probably going on 16 years,
5 having been first duly sworn, was examined and 5 Q And what's the highest level of education
é testified as follows: 6 you have achieved?
7 DIRECT EXAMINATION 7 A ‘Techmieal school.
g BYMS.LLOYD: 8 Q And what tech nical schoal did yon attend?
3 Q Hi 9 A Northeast Wisconsin Technical College.
10 A Hi iQ Q0 Andisthata gpecific type of degree?
i1 Q My nameis Jennifer Lloyd. Weinel 11 A Depree, associates degree in electricity.
12 eaclier. We're hete in the case Cashman Equipment 12 Q When did you graduate from thers?
13 versus CAM, et cetera, AGA2583, If you can g0 ghead| 13 A 1990,
14 and state your name for the record. 14 Q Andthenl have to ask this question, even
15 A Christopher Melers, 15 though T don't fike to. Have you been conhvicted of
16 ¢ And can you spell your last name? 16 atty crimes within the last ten years?
17 A N-E-IE-R-S, 17 A No,
18 Q Okay. Haveyouevet had your deposition 18 Q Okay, Andwhere ts your current
19 taken beforc? 1¢ enployment at?
20 A No. 20 A Mojave Eleciric,
21 Q Okay. Let's go overa few of the ground 21 O And how long have you been entployed by
22 rules. 1¢'s question and answer. We need verbal 22 Muojave?
23 responses. The coutt repoiter is taking down 23 A Alittle over 16 yeais.
24 everything that we say, 50 it's important that we 24 0 And what's yowr current position?
25 not speak at the same time so she can niake al 25 A Project manager.
2 (Pages 2 to 53
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____—-——-—"___u_._____—————_k_k___,]
Page 6 : page 8
1 ¢ Have you been a project manager the entire 1 and turned over to us, or a letter of intent.
2 time you have been at hojave? 2 Q  And so who was involved in the bidding
3 A Yes n 3 process?
4 Q Canyou briefly describe your job duties 4 A That woeukl he onxr estimafing depariment.
5 as project manager? ' 5 Q And for this project was it Pele Fergen?
& A Eracking jobs, schiednies, coordinating 6 A He's more of onr putehasing department.
7 with my field seaff, submitting pay ap pitcations. 7 Q 8o for a job like this, | guess when
8 ( Doyou get assigied to one particular 8 you're bidding it can you desoribe to ine, doyou
9 praject? g lnaw liow the bidding process works between the
10 A Multiple projects at the same tiuie, 10 purchasing and the estimating?
11 Q  Sounds fun, . 11 A Actuslly, no,
iz MS. BRISCOE: He wishes it was one. 12 Q Okay.
13 THR WITNESS: I wish it was one, yes. 13 A 1don't get invalved in that end of 1t
14 BY MS, LLOYD: , 14 Q  Soonce it comes fa you itskind of a
15 Q  Sotoday whenlsay project, I'm going to 15 complete bid package, you have all the schedule of
16 be referring (o e New Las Vegas City Hall project, | 1.6 values already set?
17 because that's the project that 18 ai the ceater of 17 A Ihave to ereate (he sohedule of values.
18 this litigation., Can you deseribe what Mojave's 18 Q Okay. Sowhat I'm golng to-do is putl out
10 scope of work was ont the project? 19 the contract, Wecan imark it as Exhibit 1.
20 A Elscirical installation. , 20 (Plaintiffs Exhibit 1 marked.)
21 Q Sothe full electrical package, all the o1 BY MS$, LLOYD:
95 electrical work for thejob? 22 Q 1f you would take a fock at this docunient.
23 A Correct: 03 Areyou famifiar with the document?
24 Q And whenl deposed Mr. Bugni he sald it 24 A Yes
25 was under two contracts, Canyou describe to me? 25 Q Okay. So whenyou sald you create the
page 7 bage 9
1 A There was an und erground confract for 1 schedule of values, do you create the schedule of
2 Nevada Power, and here wrs the regotar building 2 values that's included with this contract, page
3 contraet. 3 11432
4 Q Okay. And what was yout vole on this 4 A No
5 project? 5 Q Who would create this schedule of values?
6 A Project managen 6 A Estimating,
7 { Socanyou desoribe to me kind of your 1l Q 8o when you soid you create 0ne, when do
8 daily invotvement with the project? 8 you create it?
9 A Meet with iy general foreman, disenss 9 A Ycreate {fhe pay application schedule of
10 swhere he is with the prajeet in relationship to the 10 values,
11 general contractor's schedule, ntake sure he's got il ) Doyouuse this to create il?
12 ail his material and the manpower that ho requires 12 A As a veferonce guide,
i3 ta do the project, and solve any problems he may 13 Q How would it chauge, [ guess from one to
14 haveou the joln 14 the other?
15 Q Soarsyad the primary coract with the 15 A My opinton of what semething costs,
16 general contractor? 16 Q Okay. Sothen let's took at the pay aps,
17 A Yes. 17 {oo.
18 Q For Mojave? Okay. And when do you gel 18 (Plaintiff's Exhibit 2 marked.)
19 involved with the project? 19 BY MS. LLOYD:
20 A Assoon as my office tolls e we liave fhe 20 Q  Now, this was produced in this ordet,
21 job. 21 which is why it's in this order, but you can tell
22 Q OQkay. Soonce the couttact Is signed you 29 - e, becansel don't think it's complete., S0 if you
23 would hecome involved, or do you become involved in 23 want fo take a look at themt, can you describe to e
24 the bidding, like in tlie bid process? 24 what they are? _
25 A Move or less after the confract s signed 25 A What fhiey ave as in the jtem numbers?

3 {(Pages 6 to 9)
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pPage 10 Page 12 |
1 @ Yeah, 1f you want fo just tell me 1 Q And who gencrates the large purchase !
2 generally what they ave. 2 ovders? '
3 A Lina by ine, or? ) 3 A Ourpurchasing departiment.
4 Q No, we just want to just start with 4 Q Okay, Soatthe time yoi were given the
5 there's three applications for payment, right? 5 project did you know that Cashman was going o be
) A Ub-huh ' ) ‘ 6 supplying the generator equipment?
7 Q Janwary, 2011, February, 2011, March, 7 A Not in the beghwming,
8 2011 ‘ 8 Q When do you tecall abont when you realized
9 A Olkay. 9 that?
10 Q  Are fhese the complete applications for 10 A About a month or two.
11 each those montlis? 11 Q  Solines four and five would represent the
12 A No. 12 schedule of values for all of the equipment supplicd
13 Q Wasihe schedule of values farger than 13 by Cashman through CAM?
14 what's ineluded here? 14 A Uh-th,
15 A Yes, 15 Q And do you determine whet to bill the
16 Q Okay. But the equipment that we're 16 specific ifems to Whiting-Turnet?
17 concerned with today is the generator gquipment, 17 A Yes
18 That's included in these particular pages? 18 G So you determine what percentage complete
19 A Yes ' o 19 Majave was on tie job for cach particular pay ap?
20 Q Okay. Sowhen [ talk about generator 20 A Yes ‘ :
21 equipment I'm tatking abolit the equipment that 21 @ Okay. And do you then also have a role in
22 Cashmatt supplied, Are you familiar with what that | 22 approving the vendors' biltings?
23 the comprises? 23 A Yes _
24 A Generator, PSG, UPS, hattery pack. 24 Q And how does that process work?
25 O So you went over what that is. Okay. So 25 A The vendor sends the bill te our office,
Page 11 Page 13
1 i you can tetl me on the scliedule of values, and 1 the bl goes into our aceowits payable, they put it
2 we'll start with the Fanvary L, which is 2597, page 2 iu iy Inbox, T deible eheck it, make sure what
3 2597, whers in the schedule of vales does the 3 they're billing is actunily what they have provided,
4 equipment suppiied by Cashrnn tirough CAM show up? 4 Q Okay, Aud sa for the generator equipmet
5 A Lineitem four, 5 did you allow CAM tobitlata nhundred pereent for
6 Q Four, EMSrEency generator? 6 what was being supplied at sonie poimt?
i) A And five, 7 A At the tine, yes.
& Q UPS systeni. 8 Q Andwasthe woik & Tndred percent
) A Correct. -9 complete?
10 Q Okay. And do these schedule of valves 10 A No,
11 wiateh the schedule of values that wes included i S 11 G So how was the determination made o ket
i2 the contract or did you change it, do you recall? 12 CAM bifl it oul?
13 A Tt looks Hike li's been clanged from what 13 A Billing has o be twned i1 {o the general
14 is in the contvact. © 14 contractar by the 25th of each month. Aud it has to
15 Q  And how wou td a cliange tike that occur? 15 e prorated to the end of month, So that's kow it
15 A Depends on what changes came out before 16 gets bliled out a bundred percent, At the time
17 the praject started, 7 there was only about two weeks! warth of worlc left
18 Q Do you recali in this instance what i8 on the generatar, which would Tinve put us at the end
19 sceurred? 19 of the month,
20 A No. 20 Q Which month?
21  Okay. And when you are given {he project 21 A Tdon't remember.
22 you alreddy know wiiat vendors arc fo be used for 22 Okay. Tels take  look at CAM' fvolee.
23 specific ttems? 23 Mayle that will help.
24 A Not until I reecive the layge purchase 24 {Plaintiff’s Bxhibit 3 marked.)
56 arders. 25  BYMS.LLOYD:
L_ = --'--m*:;:-.-r:-:.:u-::.\:::+.-—;.—.=;.¢;=:-.:u&»..-._‘_‘.‘."?l‘.’".? T o T AT TR B T T AR I e e R
4 (Pages 10 t 13)
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1 Q Arcyou familiav with this documeni?
2 A It doesn't have my signature, so. It
3 Loolss familiaw just because it says CAM Consulting
4 on it, but when I approve m invoice my signature's
5 on it. C
6 Q Coold it be the part thal's sort of
7 missing at the bottom, ar no?
8 A If could be, beeause that's usually where
9 Tputmy initlals,

10 Q Soafter you sign oft on it then this

11 goes back to your AP?

12 A Ub-huh,

13 Q And they make all the ather matkings?

14 A Coriects

15 ¢ Sodocs this appesar to be the invoicing

16 for the gevierator equipment and UPS?

17 A Aypearstole, -

18 Q  So can you describe to me the thmeline o

19 the generator equipmsent, or 1 guess wien it was

20 determined when it was billed, when i was approved,

21 when it was pald?

22 A Not offhand,

23 Q Okay. )

24 A Best of my knowledge, witen they actually

25 did the work was like December, 2014.

Page 15

1 Q Ul-lwh. Let's, Tt getting o little bit
2 aitcad. So then can you deseribe from thig invoice
3 or your own knowledge what CAM's role was on the

-4 project? ..
5 A They're like any othier distributor, as far
6 as I'm cancened. Their wantéds on the large
7 purchase order, and that's who our paperwork goes te
8 to retense whatever they ave providing.
9 Q  Sowhatwas CAM to provide on the?

10 A Generstor, UPS, ATS swilches,

11 Q So when does that work refated to the,

12 wehen would that work commence? When wauld that work

13 begin?

14 A Prior o recciving the material?

13 ¢ Orlguess even just from the very

i6 Deginning of the project, like subinittais or release

17 to puishase, or how does that whole process, do you

18 coordinate that process? ‘

19 A 1do not coordinnte the submitial process.

20 That goes throwgh our purchasing depariment.

21 & Daes that ocour after the contracl?

2 A Yes

23 Q Who in purchasing fs the one that would

24 be?

25 A Peie Forgen.

0 2n ~d M O R (o N

]

- 1/31/2013
CAM Consulting, Inc., ef al.

Page 1 6—‘

Q Sowould you consider the submittal
process to be part of what the scope of wark -

A Yes

Q --inciudes?

A Yes. _

Q 8o CAM's work including doing the i
subsmittals, submitting them to Mojave for approval,
making corrections if needed, and then what's the j
next step?

A Onee they're approved, flen there's no
other contact until T'm ready to have (he things
released,

Q And how do you determine when that's going
to happen? :

A Usually they provide a lead fime and 1,
have to judge the lead tiute as to witen the project
is actually veady to receive the cquipment.

O Sodid you conlact CAM about the lead
time?

No.
Wi did you speak with about the lead

Thats part of the LPO

The large purchase-order?
The LPO should, LPO usually has the fead

>0 5O >

Page 17

time on if.

Q  Andwho, did you say purchasing produces
the large purchase order?

A Ub-huh.

Q Soyou'trenot invalved mrtil you need o
arder the equipment? ‘ )

A  Correct.

(  Sowhen you needed this equipment lo be
ordeved -

A Ub-hul

G --whadidyou contact? é

A W just have papeiwork that releases it
1 usually send it to my secretary and she sends the
docunient over to CAM that says relays items oneg,
two, three, four, wiatever it may be, Whatever I'm
veady forat the tme,

G Soyou somymubicated direeily with CAM to
purchase to stard, o make the purclases?

A The paperwork.

Q  And doyouhaves record of that
communication?

A Not offhand. Tden't remember.

Q Doyoulkeepa record af'it?

A Usoally, yes.

Q@ Tsitjusta form letter something you

NI ST ey T

e
Ty T o S e R T T L TR
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Page 18 Page 2?}1

1 send aut, or how daes it look? 1 A Other than their name is on the large
2 A It could be either an emall that 1 send to 2 purchase order,
3 niy seevetary, or a phane call, 3 3 Youdidn't have any contact with him? %
4 Q And who was your sccretary at this titme on 4 A Personally, no.
5 the project? : 5 Q Doyou know if anyone else, like your
6 A Crystal DeSayers (sich 6 foreman or anyonc else had contact with him on this
7 Q. I don't recall sceing anything like that | 7 project?
| to CAM, so I'm wondering if you would have a capy of 8 A Tdonot know,
9 it to provide to us. : 9 Q  Weee there any scheduling Issues refated
10 A Idon'tlmow offhand. 10 to when the equipment needed Lo be delivered?
11 Q) Okay, Do you keep a job file with those 11 A Yes
12 type of correspondence? 12 Q And can you describe that to me?
13 A Usually. 13 A Itwas just a matter of having a cleay
14 MS. LLOYD: Shemilly, is it possible that 14 spot for their semi to pull in, ‘Thelr senil was
15 e could do a search for the document? 15 delayed by three days.
16 MS. BRISCOE: Yeah, but wo already 16 Q Okay.
17 produced the job file. Ifit wasa phone call we 17 A Jusi beeause the street wasn't clea
18 wouldnt have arecord, 13 eisough for thent to briug the semi in and offload it.
19 MS, LLOYD: He sald it would be an 19 Q S0 where did the semi go? Where was it
20 email -~ : 20 waiting? .
21 THIL WITNESS: Email or phone call, is what 21 A I'oynof sure. Tlmow 1t was in town, I
22 1 said. C 22 dat't know exactly where It was staged.
23 MS. LLOYD: Or aphone call, . 23 Q  And was there an extra cast oF anything
24 MS. BRISCOE: 1 ean ask, bui T ktow we 24 related to the semi not being able to deliver the
25 gave you the job file alrendy. But [ ¢can ask Brian. 25 equipment?
- Page 19 ' ' Page 21
1 M8, LLOYD: Yeah, beeause there aren'’l A Yes.
2 very many emails in the documents provided by Q  And what happened witlt that?
3 Mojave, and there were a bunch of emails trom A On theinvoice, fruck Inyover.
4 Whiting-Turner to Mojave when yon didihe Q So that was an additionat cost that wast'i
5 Whiting-Turner production, 3o know we don't have anticipated under the otigi tal sehedule of values?
6 all of the communtication that's came out from Majave A 1would have to go back and look atit,
7 on e job. So, just curious, Q Okay. But that's what you recatl that was
8 BY MS. LLOYD: for?
9 Q  Soafter that polnt when do you cantacl A Yes,

O Okay. Andwho did you spealc with about
the truck layover?

A Caslunan,

Q And can you tefl me who at Cashman you

10 CAM again, I guess, of when did you cotitact CAM
il apain?

1z A 1 didn't have to hecause it was going _
13 throngh — T knew where the equipntent was coming

R i e vl
P P T R = RIS AR

14 frou, which yas Cashiman spoke with?

15 ¢ Ul A Kym Simons or Rob, I don'{ vecall his last
i6 A And 1 alveady had a relationship with nane.

17 Cashman. ’ O Sowhen you were scheduling the delivery
18 Q Soyou vere speaking with Cashiman directly and those things you were dealing with Caghman
19 about the equipment? D persontie] divectly? ‘

20 A Correct. A Yes,

21 Q Sowhat did CAM or the principal of CAM, Q  Sowhen the equipment was delivered is it
29 Augelo, did bhe have any rele on fhis projeet? 22 immediately fnstalled at that point or is there

23 A Nol that I'm aware of. 23 anather staging period?

24 Q So you aren't aware of him doing any wotk 24 A Tmmediately pinced in position.

25 telated 1o his? 25 Q And is there equipment vequired fo do

6 {pPages 18 to 21)
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Page 22 Page 24
i that, like a crane, or? 1 O Sohow nwach contact do you think you had
2 A Yes. 2 with Cashman personte] on this project? ‘
3 Q THow does thal wholg process worlk? 3 A How much contaet?
4 A Yes. That, we schiedule a crane, We have 4 Q Yes.
5 ta sehedule the truels for delivery, and then the 5 A Notvery much. .
6 crpie offlonds the generators and places, sefs thew () ¢ Soyou weren'l involved in the submitta
7 in place, They don't stage it on-site, 7 process, right?
3 Q  Soit's part of Mojave's scope to get the 8 A No.
9 crane on-site to unload the gencrators and place g Q  Andthen after fhe release to order was
10 them? - 10 sent and prior to the delivery, you know, was there
11 A Lwould have to go baclk and loolk at that 11 any contact with Cashman?
12 pavticulne scope OF A contract to see who's contract 12 A Yes.
13 it was In to provide a crane, 1 don'{ remember 13 Q And what was that related to?
14 offliand if it was Mojave ov if it was CAM, Cashmian, { 14 A Just delivery, scheduling.
15 Q Oh, okay, And at ihat point was theve 15 QO Making sure i's conting?
16 issue with placing the pgenerators? 16 A TUit-hub,
17 A No. ' _ 17 Q Okay.
18 Q Okay. Was there an fssuc with the 18 A Correct,
19 equipment room? 19 Q  Andwho wonld you have spoken with at that
20 A Mo 20 point?
21 @ Did it have to be modified at some poin, 21 A Kym Simons.
22 sometning to do with access 10 the generator 22 O Then who was on-site duting the
23 cquipment, or? 23 instaliation?
24 A Nothing for the generafar, 24 A Both Kym and Rob,
25 Q What was it related o? 25 Q From Cashman?
- —— I s S
page 23 : Prage 25
1 A It depends on which room you're talking 1 A Correet, ’
2 ghouf. Tmean, (here are several rooms that are 2 Q Then who was on-site from Maojave?
3 involved with Hlie generator, 3 A Myself, Richard Christensen and manierous
4 Q Canyou describe to me how it's sstup and 4 other cieetvicians,
5 faid out? T 5 @ Was anyote from Whiting-Turner on-siie?
6 A There is a UPS room, Lasieaily, that has 6 4 David Lee, Elliott Llayd.
ki the transfer switeh, the battery racks and sfores 7 ¢ Wasanyone front the owner on-site?
8 the hatterles for the YPS. There's also a main ] A T'monof sure
9 electrieal room for the PSG, which Is the 9 ( Didyoucver have an opporiunity to nest
10 paralieling switehgear, and then fhere's another 10 the owhet's represeniative on-site?
11 main eleetrical yoom that has all of our main gear. 11 A WNo,
12 Q Arethose contiguous rooms, are they alt 12 Q Soafter the equipment i delivered and
13 cohaected? 13 placed in the side gate -
14 A They're conneeted by doorways. 14 A Uldtuh,
15 Q Okay. And was there any modificalon 15 Q =-whatis lef for CAM, Cashman to do
16 related to aity of the equipment provided by CAM or 16 under the contract?
17 Cashman? ‘ 11 A Afterit's delivered to the slte they
18 A 'The design process pefore it was released 18 still have to put everything together, which is an
19 and during {he submilteal process the doorson the | 12 exhaust systent, and then staré-np.
20 generator iad {0 Dbe made basteally in haifl 20 Q Okay. Sowhat's the scheduling on ihose?
21 Q What was that related to? 21 Are those immediately done ot is there some type of
22 A Just being the raom qvatiahie inside of 22 scheduted timefine for ather work, or?
23 the generator arca, 23 A Novmally the exhaust systeru Is installed
24 Q Okay, Was ihat & change ordet? 24 humediately, and tien iherets a map in tinie between
25 A No. That was all n the design process, 25 vt time and when we actually pull our cable and
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ke our determinations and prepave for start-up.

Q 8o forthis pruticular equipment cag you
give e what the schedule was © look like for after
delivery to start-up?

A Cable would have been jruiled to the
gonerator. Cable would have been pulled to the PSG.
T,0ad banlk tesiing the generafor after all the calle
was pulled. And after that it would have been UPS
Dattery installation, wirhg and bringing the UPS
an-iine.

() Andso was that supposed to happen overa
number of weeks, months, or days?

A Usually it wouldn't take move fhana
couple months, espeeially with an installation that
slze.

Q Okay. Sowhenwas the work scheduled to
te completed? Tike for Majave, when was it
seheduled to be completed?

A May, 2011

Q  And so for all those iteins that you were
wmerilloning all that work te be done after if was
delivered - i}

A Ul-huly

Q -was CAMor Angela ihwolved with any of
{hat work? :

A Iwouldn't have contacted anybhody untll we
were ready for stavi-up, Fuel and stav-up.

0 So who did the exhaust system? Was thal
Mojave?

A No. That should hiave been Cashuman.

Q Okay. Soafter it was delivered, what did
Cashman do on-site?

A They Installed one of the exhaust sysiems
complete, Tha second oxhaust system was net
installed complete.

Q And when was that to be completed?

A They were going to come back at start-up
heeause it wasn't going to take, supposediy tnlo
them long fo do that.

) Sowhen were you ready for start-up?

A May.

Q  And is that when the battery would have
been delivered?

A It would kave been aftor that.

Q Okay.

A Decause there is a shelf life far
Datteries, so you dou't arder the hatteries too far
int advance; otherwise, the warranty on the hatteries
would ba up. .

Q So then when would they actually have becn
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completed? When would (hal waik, the work related )
to this generator have been complete? Say
everything had gone as it was supposed to go.
MS. BRISCOE: Objeciion o fon.

BY MS, LLOYD:

Q 1 gness I'm wondering Decause you kind of
said, I belicve you testified that essentially it
would have been compteted by May. That was what the
selieduls was 107 :

A I'm not positive what the sehedule had.

Q Okay. But you teslified that it shonld
have been basically complete by May, that all of the
installation and everything related to the
gencrator, the start-up?

A Tremeniber asling for load bank testing in
May,

Q0 What's load hank testing?

A That's when you actuaity puta load on the
generafor and prepare 1t for start-up.
Who did you ask for load bank testing?
Cashman,
Specifically?
Ky Simans. And Rob.
And when in May was that?
Tivst or second weelk In May.

el el e

Page 29

Q  And whal was their respanse?

A We were coordinnting where the cables
would go, nnd that was about il. They were
preparing for load banlk testing.

(  And then what bappened?

A Yealled for fuel Ttold Cashman that
they need to order fuel so that we could startit up
and do the load banle festing, And that's when Iwas
informed that they weren't going fo be dolug any H
mare worlks

Q Do you recall when that was?

A May.

Q Bepning, end? b

A Middle.

() Solkeepgoing back, When would the
battery have been delivered?

A Sometime after that.

O Was that kind ofa moving target, given i
when the completion was supposed to be, or?

A Correct.

Q And that battery is part of the large 3
purchase order, cotrect?

A Correct

Q Soix May when yon were informed they
weren't going to do any more work, what was lefl to

T

)

W T I

8 (Pages 26 to 22

Depo Infernational, LLC

(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299

admin@dcpointernational.com

JA 00001867




kﬂw'-id'\u'l»huwv-—-

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
ig
1%
20
21
22
23
24
25

Christopher Meiers

Cashman Fquipment Company, et al,

‘page 30

do?

A They had to go through and complete the
jnstzliation on the exhaust system, They shauld
lave done the load hank testing, Fiel should have
peon delivered, And then they shonid have gone
through all the wiring of the PSG to mnle sure any
remote cnunciators, Ay remote wiring bebwoen the
generators and the PSG was covvect, The program
shouid have been loaded at {hat tinie and ready for
start-un

Q 8o when that waso't golng to be completed
oy Cashian, what action did you iake?

A Thad to hire other contractors to
complete that worl.

Q And who did you hire?

A Jentech and Hawmpton Teddey.

Q Sowhatwork did they complete?

A Theinstallation el the exhqust; the
chiecling of the wiving bebweest e generator and the
PSG, the load panic testing, They could not instail
fhe program. _

G Anddid they iry to abiain the program?

A Wo (ried, correct.

Q How did youlryto obtain the program?

A We asked fox fhe program from Cashman,

— ——
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Q Didyoudo anything else to ity to obtain
the program?

A Actually tried o eail the nianufacturer of
the paralleling switchgear to sce i we could get it
from them, and wewere denied it as well,

Q Did Jentech or Hampfon Tedder take any
action concerning the progranuning?

A No

Q Didthey tiy o abtaln it?

A Not that I aware of, .

Q  So then what items are fefl incommplete at
this point?

A The, after Jentech and after Hampten
Tedder? ‘

Q Yeah

A Would have been the receipt and
{ns(aliniion of the hatlery caliinets, along with the
batiery racks and patteries titemsclves.

Q And then that programming?

A The prograuuming was still an fssue.

Q  So at this polnt what's Jlet? At this
e sight now as we sit hiee, whit's left
incomplete?

A Progran.

Q Who did the battery and all the items you

Page 31 Page A3
1 © DId CAM perform any othier work on this
2 project? 3
3 A No.
4 Q Didthey supply malerials from aity other
5 suppliers?
3 A Not that T ean recall, .
7 ¢ Okay, Wers you involved in the decislon
g {o requires the generator equipment to be purchased
o through a specific business entity?
10 A No.
11 Q AndTIbelieve you testified proviousty
12 that you'rs the persen who decides what can be bu ilt
13 and when it can be built for the equipment that's
14 supplied on the project?
15 © A Correct.
16 Q How did yon determine when full payment
17 shoutd be released for this equipment?
18 A Decauseitisa progressive billlmg. We
19 tad to estlmate where we were going to be at the endl
20 of that manth to be able to bill out for that month,
21 G Sothen Mojavo gels {hie money and then '
22 pays, o fo determing what you were going to include
23 from the CAM bifling and your bilting, ¥ guess?
24 A 1don‘t understand your question.
25 Q Tmightbe confused, Let's rephrase. CAM
L—_’"_ LA T .\_':».k.,:‘."_".:,‘rr_-_'..'=:;:-::-.*::—x:— TEACMITRCENCE
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just mentioned? .

A Wedid the installation of the racks, the
batfery and the batteries and the {nterconnecting
wiring, and then Graber Services was ved to do the
testing and staré-up.

Q Torthe hatteries?

A Covreet. I'm not sure at this time iTwe
ad them work on the PSG ov the generator

Q Ohtatiyto do the programming part?

A No, would have heen more of the testing,

Q Dh, okay.

A More testing and start-up. Not positive.

And then youwere involved in finding the
contractors to do this work?

A No.

Q  Who did that?

A Our purchasing deprriment.

Q Andso what's the current stalus of fhe
generator equipment?

A Aliis complete, except for the
programuing beeause they need the codes to.do the
tnterface belween the puilding antomation sysiem sud
the paralleling switchgean,

0 Soi's operational?

A Correel

.,::C_“Jll"f._':'.'.L-‘-—_‘_\','-';ﬂ':{—f-"-__'.'-'.i.;‘_ g
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didn't get payment for the-equipment wntil Apil, T 1
think 1t was the end of April, SoT'm just trying 2
to get an idea, did you decide when to release that 3
payment? ‘ 4
A Noa. ) .5
Q Okay, Sohow does that process work? 6
A After the inveice comes in and 1 review 7
it, if everything looks okay T put my signature on B
it and T furn it back in to out' accounts payable. 9
Q  And yout signature meaus what to your 10
accounts payablc? 11
A That Iwould agiec with those amounts. 12
Q Axd that you would agree that it was 13
complete? o 14
A Atthetime of egtimating at the end of 15
the month, i should have been complete. 16
Q  Solbelieve you just testified that there 17
was going to be work done in May. 18
A Uh<huh, 19
Q And like I said, CAM was paid in full in 20
April : 21
A T4 not lmowledgeable on that, I don't 22
pay thenn ) 53
( Well, because Wr, Bugni basically referved Py
to you in saying that you defermine whien someone 25
]
page 35
conld bilt a hundred percent, 1
A They tur in the bili, corveet, and 1 sign 2
off on it 3
Q Andwhenlt would be paid? 4
A 1don't deternsine when I geis paid. 5
Q Okay. Who deterntines when it gets paid? 6
A Our accounts payable, L
Q  That's M Bugni? 8
A Yos. g
¢ Okay. So wauld you have approved a 10
hundred percent payment of the bitling befare all 11
the work was complets that was yequired to be 12
complete with the lavge purchiase order? 13
A Tritwas estimated that it was golng to 14
be done af the end of that month for my pay 15
appheation, yes. 1 wou'ld have sald it was golng to i6
he done, beeause L have to giess where we're golng 17
to be at the end of (hat manth. 18
Q ltlooks like CAM subimitted their bill in 19
January for & hundred percent, IU's dated January, 20
A Ohlay. 21
Q And so s that becanse of the way they 22
were supplying the equipment 1 this case, or do you 23
knaw how that woull work? Because normally 1 think | 24
peaple bilk a persot in Tuly foiihat thoy've 25

e
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completed, That's kind of what you're deseribing.

A Ub-hul, :

Q So in this case that doesu't seem fo be
how it was done, Da you know why it was done this
particular way?

A No. :

() Because he wasi'l complete in Janvary,
1ight?

A No

@ And ho wasi't complete in February when
the inveice was, | guess stamped recetved by Mojave,
right?

A Corrects

¢ Butthisisa complete biliing for
sverything that he was doing for the generator
equipment?

A Iwould have to look at the large purchase
ovder to determine all of the lite numbers that they
Tiave on! here. _

Q Ckay. Butif you had the large purchase
ovder, you would be able to know tf this was a
complete hilling?

A Yes

QDo you know when Mojave approximalely
billed a hundreed percent for these gencrator ine

rage 37

items to Whiting-Turuer?

A Not offhand.

Q When did you consider your work complate
on the generator iine ltems?

A I'm notsure, Iwould have o go back and
Taok at my pay applications.

© Do you consider it to be complete right
now?

A Right now? Yes.

Q Even though those certain items aren't
done? o
A The only item thatis not done is the code
for the inferface between the puilding antemation
systemt and paralleling switchgear,

Q Butyour work is closed out on that item?

A Corrects

O Andsois Whiting-Turner looking to Mojave
to get anyihing efse concerning this code?

A AL this thne I'm ot sure. 1 haven't heen
contactedl to fry to do any mors myself,

Q When was your last, [ gucss cotrtact
concerning the code?

A Iam not sure as of that tinte,

Q  And when were you complete oft the project?

A Wonld have heen avound February, 2012,

L‘.-‘)C‘.‘.‘::L'_i.'_‘._'..'.:.:._-‘_'_-';_\‘,-'v,-_—.:—‘:?:..a.-:\—‘s::;'.:l.(..-_‘_::a"J-:ﬁn‘:‘.‘i_‘;‘:‘»‘-th’,\'—‘,'_‘_‘_‘;_'u TR P e i - SR

T T T SR TR e e LR

34 to 37)

TR R s P e et

10 {Pages

Depo International, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@depointcrnational.com

JA 00001869




\DG)-JG\(.}'I\&-Q)MH

o D = Oy U1 R L B

Christopher Meiers

Cashman Equipment Company, et al, vs,

rage 3?

Q Isthat when the suitding was opened, if
you recall?

A Yes, it was avound then, Notsure on the
exact date. ‘

Q Didyoudo any wotk concerning the
generator equipment after that point, did Mojave?

A No.

Q When did you flrst find out that Cashman
yadn't received payment for the equipment?

A May.

Q  And how did you find out?
A Threugh Iym Simons, As I stafed earlier,
ji was when I requested heim to 10 1 with fuel.
Q Andwere you partof determining how to
respond to Cashman about the non-payment by CAM?

A No. .

Q Did youspeak with anyone from CAM after
the nog-payiment, learning of the non-paymeit?

A No. [

¢ Andlcant recall, T may have asked {his
before, but did you ever speak with Angslo Carvalho
from CAMY?

A No

Q Is that wnusual, tonot speak with --

A No

e

' Page 39

Q --the vendor ot equipment like this?

A No

Q Oris it just becanse you had Cashmatt and
you kuesw t0 speak with Cashman?

A Correct. Relationship with Cashman
earlier, previously.

@ Had you ever worked with CAM priot to this
project?

A No,

Q  Andfhen did you work with them on any
other projects for Mojave?

A No

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 4 marked.)

BY MS. LLOYD: T

Q Camtyoutakea look at this document? Can
you toll me what it is? '
1t is a contract supplenient.
Tssned by?
Whiting-Turnet.
To?
Mojave Llectrie.
Have you seen it hefore?
Yes. '
And can you tell me what the tine, third
line jtem oh the body, 1 thik it's CRA?
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A To install a roll-up door on the back of

the emergency roont.

What was that related to?

Access to the PSG.
' That's the paralicling switchgear?

Correct

9o that was a deductive change order?

Coryect,

Why?

Because they had to install the roll-up

Yo Yel Fok g

door,

Q Andthey explained, or they said Mojave
shoutd have done it ol known, ot whty was thata
deductive?

A Because the paralicling switeligear was
reloeated in the room.

Q Byt

A Mojave. :

Q Oh, so that eaused there to be an access
issue?

A Correck.

Q Do you know when this work was done?

A Not positive.

Q And how typically ate these issued afler
the issue arises, | guess?

page 41

A Ttvaries.

O Okay. So ii's dated March 23rd. Would
{here have been a corresponding document from Mojave
to Whiting-Turner about that change or was thisa

A There might have been a docuntent, but I'm
not positive,

3 Dao youapprave these?

A Yes, ook at the dellar aniowaits and then
T tarn it in to the vice president of construction,
and then lie signs off on it after lie revigws it

Q  Okay. 3o whenwe were talking eatlicr
alont changes related to {he clectvical room, were
vou tatking about this change or were you fatking
about a different change?

A Changes to the electrieal roort.

Q Well, one the rooms you mentioned that i
they had to modify the door size, [ think you said,
related o the generator,

A That wasn't velated to the room 1tself.

Q Oh,itwasthe acnerator?

A That was the generatot,

Okay.

A AsIstated envlier, itwas part of the

design process.

T T e
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1 Q Okay. So this wasa chatge to those rooms 1 Q Do you know, are you aware if atyone from
2 that occurred after? ‘ 2 Mojave lied (o contact CAM? :
3 A That was a change to the emergency 3 A T'mnot aware.
4 electrical room, 4 Q  And were you involved in deciding what to
5 Q And that was after delivery? 5 do about the non-payment on behalf of Mojave?.
6 A Correct, 3 & MS, BRISCOE: Objeetton. I think this was
7 Q  And that was because Mojave telocated the 7 . asked and answered already.
8 equiptnent inside the room? 8 THE WITNESS: Idon'tunderstand what
9 A Correct. o 9 you're asking.
10 Q Doyoukiow what the reason was for 10 BY MS, LLOYD:
11 relocating the eqnipment? B 11 Q I'm sure after Mojave became aware of the
12 A Tasier access of feeder cables, 12 nen-payment, as Mr, Bugni testified, there was 4
13 ¢ 8o prior to the non-payment was Cashman 13 meeting with Cashman. Were you at the meeting with
14 performing all items that you wanted it to perform? 14 Cashman pessonnet with Mr, Bugni, and T think
15 A Yes. 15  possibly Mr. Nelson?
16 Q  So they were daing the work that you 16 A No.
17 anticipated ptior to the issue of the non-payment 1% Q  And then did Kym provide you with any
18 with them? 18 information after the noh-payment to try to assist
19 A Yes, ‘ 19  you ou the projeci?
20 Q Do you know when Cashman was last on the 1 20 A Tdon't recall,
21 project? ‘ 21 Q  And when was the stark-up work completed?
22 A Not offliand, 22 A Tt wasn't i towards the end of the
23 MS, LLOYD: Let's take a break real quick, 23 project.
24 (Recess taken.) 24 O Do you have fike a timeline range?
25 BYMS, LLOYD: 25 A Twould say November, 2012, Avound there,
Page 43 Page 45
i Q Did you have any discussions with anyone 1 T'm not positive on the date,
2 atCashman sbout the nonpayment of CAM? 2 MS. LLOYD: Tdon't have anything firther.
3 A Ieith Lozean. 3 (Whereupon, proceedings were concluded at
4 Q And what did you falk to Reith about? 4 2:05 pan)
5 A The anly thing I talked to him about was 5
6 wlhent T requested things to be done, his respouses B
1 swere basically, we haven't been paid. 'That was 1L i
8 Q Do you know how many times you spoke with |
] him? 9 i
10 A Not offiand. Maybe four, plus or mitus, 10 i
11 Q  And was that after Kym said we weren't 11
12 going to do auything else? 12
13 A After 13
14 0 Did Kym refer you to Keith? 14
15 A Yes. 15
16 Q And prior to that had you spoken with 16
17 Keith at all about his projest? 17
18 A Mot that T reeall. 18 i
19 Q Because I think that your primary contact 19
20 was Kym? 20
21 A Kym, Justbecause I new Kym front other § 21
22 projecis. 22
23 Q Okay. And afier you became aware ofthe 23
24 non-payment did you try to contact CA M? 24
25 A N 25
S
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12 1, CHRISTOPHER MEIERS, deponent hierein, do
hercby certify and declare dhe wifltin and foregoing
13 {rauseription fo bie my deposition Ta said action;
{hiat T have rend, corzected and do hereby afilx my
1g signature 1o said depasitlon.
1
N CHRISTOPHER MEIENS, Degronent ‘J
B
STATEOFNEVADA ) |
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1
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1 CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
2 STATE OF NEVADA )
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3 COUNTY OF CLARK )
4 1, Rene' Hannalt, Certified Court Reporter,
5 do hereby certify:
€ That | reporied the deposition of
7 CHRISTOPHER MEIERS, commencing on Thursday, Jatuary
8 31, 2013, at 100 p.hu.
9 That prier to being deposed, (he witness
10 was duly sworn by e fo testify to the trath. That
il 1 therenRer teanseribed ity said shorthaud notes
1z info typewriting and that the typesvritten transeript
13 is a conwplete, trae end accurate transcription of iy
14 said shorthand notes. :
15 T further certify that T am mot a relative |
16 ot employee of counsel of my of the parties, nor a
17 relative or employce of the partiey involved in said
18 sction, nor a person. financially interesied in
19 tite action, .
20 1N WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have set 1y hand in
21 my oftiee in the County of Clack, Siate of Nevada,
22 this day of ) L2013,
23 |
24 RENE' R. HANNAH, CCR NO. 326
. 25 '
KR B P EE e T PEREECN \:[é

13 (Pages 46 to 47)
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David Phillips - 1/10/2013
Cashinan Equipment Company, et al, vs. CAM Consulting, Inc., et al.

Page 1

DISTRICT COURT

Y GLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
e ok % % ok

”CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY, a
Nevada corporation,

plaintiff,

)
}
)
)

)
Vs, ) CASE NO, A642583
' )

CAM CONSULTING, INC., a Nevada )
corporation} ANGELO CARVALHO, an }
individual; JANEL RENNIE aka JANEL )
CARVALHO, an individual; WEST EDNA )
ASSOCIATES, LTD., dba MOJAVE )
ELECTRIC, a Nevada corporation:; )
WESTERN SURETY COMPANY, a surety; )
THE WHITING TURNER CONTRACTING }
COMPANY, a Maryland corporation; }
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY OF )
MARYLAND, a surety; DOES 1 through 3
10, inclusive; and ROE CORPORATIONS)
1 through 10, inclusive, )

Defendants.

)
)
)
)
AND ALL RELATED MATTERS. )
)

DEPOSITION OF DAVID PHILLIPS
Paken on Thursday, January 10, 2013
At 3:00 p.m.
At 6725 Via Austi Parkway, Suite 290
Lag Vegas, Nevada

REPORTED BY: CHRISTY LYN DeJONKER, CCR NO. 691

I I e
. Depo Intexnational, LLC
(702) 386-9322 or (800) 982-3299 admin@depointernationalcom
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David Phillips - 1/10/2013
Cashman Equipment Company, ef al. vs. CAM Censulting, Inc,, ef al.

Page 2 Page 4
é ?Priﬁﬁgﬁﬁ?g& 1 tnke down everyihing that we say, so we need to not
5 o e NNIFER R, LLOYD, FSQ. 2 speakat the same lime, Yo et fake a break at any
Dezzilio Lioyd 3 time you need, just ask. Except for when a guestion is
4 g’igs ;’é% Ausli Porkwaoy 4 pending, Twould ask that yon answer the question prior
5 T ot Vopas, Novada 29119 5  folaking thebreak,
é 6 If any of my questions are unclear or you
For the Defondants: 7 dos't understand what I am asking, just ask ne lo
7 DBRIAN W. BOSCHEE, FSO, 8 rept}rasc Et'and I wiE be bappy to do that. Your
g Cotton, Driggs, Watcll, 9 testimony is under oath today, It's the same oath you
Holley, Woloson & Thompson 10 ke in 8 court of faw,
g 4T?0 3‘;:1“‘ Fourth Streot 11 Ts there any reason why you eennot give yout
10 LQ;‘Vegﬁnge\,ﬂda 8014t i2 complote and truthful testimony here todny?
11 13 A, No
ig \WITNESS: D&\}%%[%’ﬁlLL[PS L 13 Q. }Vhatdid you da to prepare for your
14 Examination Furthor Exatiination 15 doposition today?
15 By Ms Lloyd: 3 37 16 A, et with Shinenli (phonetic) on Tuesdny.
ig By Mr. Boschee: 33 17 Q. Not going into the substance of those
18 18 communications, did you do anything else to prepare for
RXHIBITS 18 your deposition foday?
¥ b . 20 A, No. ,
20 ExbigitNo.  Description Page 21 Q. Whatis the highest fevet of education you H
21 1 Prollminaty Notlee of Right to Lien 11 22 have obtained?
Z% % Qgﬁﬁzfg?&xd Certificaticn fﬂragﬂ}'mc"f 26 gi A&);I éhlave. a degree in architeeture from Texas
24 niversity.
25 25 Q. And when did you graduate there?
Page 3 Page b
1 . (Prior o the commencement of the deposition, all of 1 A 1974, '
2 the parties present agreed to watve stalements by the 2 Q. Aud do you hold any professional ltcenses?
3 court reporier, purswant to Rule 30(y(d) of NRCP.) 3 A. T an amentber of the Constrietion
4 Thereupotl -- 4 Specifientions Institute.
5 DAVID PHILLIPS,. 5 Q. And how leng have you beena membet there?
6 was eatled g5 a witness, and having been first duly 3 A, T hellove sinee '88,
7 sworn, was examined and testified as follows: 7 Q. And have you been convieled of any crimes
8 BEXAMINATION 8 within the last ten years?
9 BY MS. LLOYD: ] A, No
10 (. Hi, Tam Jennifer Lioyd. Tamn attorney for 10 Q. Tam required to ask that. T hate 1o ask
11 Cashinen Equipment Compaiy in this matter. Wearchere | 11 that guestion,
12 for your depositton (oday. You can go ahead and state 12 " A Tlnow,
13 your name for the record. 13 Q. 5o lell me abont where you are cutrently i
14 A. Tt's David Ross Philllps, P-H-1-L-L-I-F-5, 14 employed. i
15 Q. You have done this before. 1h A. 1 am eurrently employed with ForestCity
16 A, Yes, I have T 16 Constrietion Services, LLC, which is Dbuskiess unit of
17 Q. Have you had your daposition faken before? 11 VorestCly Enterprises, Ine. based In Ctevatand, Ohio.
18 A. Yes, Thave. 18 Q. And what's your position with ForestCity
19 Q. How many times? A number of timos? 19 Construction Services?
20 A, Probably a dozen maybe. 20 A, Viee president,
21 Q. When was the most rocent? 21 Q. Ofa parficular division ot just viee
22 A, Tt's probably boen 16, 17 years, 22 president?
23 Q. Okay. So fels briefly go over the rules. 23 A, Vice president,
24 Té's question and auswer, We need verbal regponses to 24 Q. Okay. What do your job duties entail?
25 25 A. Lmanage ont development in constrnetion

afl of the questions. The court reporter is poiug to

T T e Tt e e e T T R

B S e P TR ST e e

Depo International, LLC
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CASHMAN EQUIPMENT COMPANY,
a Nevada corporation,

Appellant,
VS.

WEST EDNA ASSOCIATES, LTD., dba
MOJAVE ELECTRIC, a Nevada
corporation; WESTERN SURETY
COMPANY, a surety; THE WHITING
TURNER CONTRACTING
COMPANY, a Maryland corporation;
FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT COMPANY
OF MARYLAND, a surety;
TRAVELERS CASUALTY AND
SURETY COMPANY OF AMERICA, a
surety; QH LAS VEGAS LLC, a foreign
limited liability company; PQ LAS
VEGAS, LLC, a foreign limited liability
company; LW T 1 C SUCCESSOR LLC,
an unknown limited liability company;
FC/LW VEGAS, a foreign limited
liability company;

Respondents.

_ Electronically Filed
Case No: 664523, 17 2015 11:50 a.m.
Case No: 61715Tracie K. Lindeman
Case No: 65819Clerk of Supreme Court

A642583 &
A653029

District Court Case Nos.:

TABLE OF CONTENTS FOR JOINT APPENDIX

- CHRONOLOGICAL & ALPHABETICAL -

Volume 8 of 32

Docket 61715 Document 2015-18520
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Marisa L. Maskas, Esq.
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Pezzillo Lloyd
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Las Vegas, Nevada 89119
Attorneys for Appellant

Brian W. Boschee, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 7612

William N. Miller, Esq.
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